NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA



INVITATION TO BID FOR WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM

BID NO. NBV 2016-003



SEALED PROPOSALS WILL BE RECEIVED BY THE VILLAGE CLERK, 1666 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, SUITE 300, NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL 33141 ON OR BEFORE DECEMBER 13, 2016 - 4:00 p.m. NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA

WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM NORTH BAY VILLAGE

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

Table of Contents

| Section | Title | Pages |
|---------|--|--------|
| ITB | Invitation to Bid | 4 |
| IB | Instructions to Bidders | 7 |
| P | Proposal | 16 |
| BB | Bid Bond | 23 |
| NA | Notice of Intent to Award | 26 |
| C | Contract | 27 |
| PFB | Performance Bond | 33 |
| PYB | Payment Bond | 36 |
| NP | Notice to Proceed | 38 |
| GC | General Conditions, EJCDC C-700 (2007 Edition) | 1 - 62 |
| SC | Supplementary Conditions | 40 |
| SS | Sworn Statement | 58 |
| 01000 | General Requirements | 62 |
| 01020 | Allowance | 70 |
| 01150 | Measurement and Payment | 73 |
| 01300 | Submittals | 79 |
| 01400 | Quality Control | 81 |
| 01500 | Construction Facilities and Temporary Controls | 83 |
| 01700 | Contract Closeout | 86 |
| 01720 | Project Record Documents | 90 |
| 02064 | Modification and Rehabilitation of | |
| | Existing Structures and Equipment | 93 |

WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM NORTH BAY VILLAGE

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

Table of Contents

| Section | Title | Pages |
|----------------|--|----------|
| 02800 | Restoration of Surface Features | 96 |
| A | Appendix A | 103 |
| | Automated Meter Reading System Specific | cations |
| В | Appendix B | 124 |
| | WASD Specifications | |
| | WASD Details | |
| C | Appendix C | 126 |
| | FDEP State Revolving Fund Program | |
| | Supplementary Conditions | |
| | Wage Rates, FL168 – Heavy Construction | Projects |

NORTH BAY VILLAGE INVITATION TO BID

WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM NORTH BAY VILLAGE

BID NO. NBV 2016-003

Public Notice is hereby given that North Bay Village, Florida is soliciting bids from experienced and qualified vendors for the furnishing of all materials, labor, equipment and supplies necessary for North Bay Village Water Meter Replacement Program, including necessary appurtenances and all in accordance with the project specifications.

The nature and scope of this project is:

Furnish all labor and materials to manage the design, equipment supply, replacement of existing water meters, field installation, system implementation, and optimization of a Mobile Based Advanced Metering Infrastructure and Water Loss Management system to read meters in an automated and cost effective manner as well as reduce the Village's unaccounted for and non-revenue water. The scope of work involves, but is not limited to, providing and installing software, hardware, as well as providing all necessary training and installation support. The project also includes repairing or replacing associated water service piping as needed from the new water meters to the water main, water meter box replacement, water system testing, removal of existing water meters and boxes, maintenance of traffic, trench/roadway restoration, site restoration, and all other appurtenances necessary for a complete project. Construction of this project will require close coordination with the Owner and Engineer. Project completion is approximately ten (10) months.

Sealed Responses clearly labeled with the BID title and number must be received by mail or hand delivered on or before December 13, 2016, no later than 4:00 p.m. local time, at which time they will be publicly opened. Late submittals and facsimile submissions will not be considered. The respondent shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of the submittal documents.

All bids must be submitted as a Total Bid Amount with associated Contract Unit Pricing per the Bid Form. Bid Security in the amount of five percent (5%) of the Bid must accompany each submittal in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders.

Respondents must submit an original unbound package, five (5) bound additional copies, and one (1) CD ROM to the Office of the Village Clerk, North Bay Village, 1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300, North Bay Village, Florida 33141.

Copies of this Proposals Document may be obtained at DemandStar by Onvia at www.demandstar.com, at the www.nbvillage.com; at the Village Administrative Offices, 1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300, North Bay Village, Florida 33141 from 9:00 A.M. to 4:00 P.M., Monday through Friday, or by emailing yvonne.hamilton@nbvillage.com.

The Village reserves the right at any time to modify, waive or otherwise vary the terms and conditions of this BID including but not limited to deadlines for submission, submission requirements, informalities or irregularities in any submittal, and the Scope of Work. The Village further reserves the right to reject any or all submittals, to cancel or withdraw this BID at any time or take any other such actions that may be deemed in the best interest of the Village, to award in whole or in part to one or more respondents, or take any other such actions that may be deemed in the best interest of the Village.

Pursuant to Section 38.18 of the Village Code, "Ethics Ordinance", a Cone of Silence is hereby imposed whereby any communications between any potential bidder, service provider, lobbyist or consultant and the Village's staff and elected officials pertaining to this BID are prohibited.

Yvonne P. Hamilton, CMC Village Clerk

SCHEDULE OF EVENTS

Below is the current schedule of the events that will take place in the procurement process. The Village reserves the right to make changes or alterations to the schedule as the Village determines is in the best interests of the public. Proposers will be notified sufficiently in advance of any changes or alterations in the schedule. Unless otherwise notified in writing by the Village, the dates indicated below for submission of items or for other actions on the part of a Proposer shall constitute absolute deadlines for those activities and failure to fully comply by the time stated shall cause a Proposer to be disqualified.

| Date | Event | | | | | |
|-------------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| November 10, 2016 | Advertisement | | | | | |
| November 10, 2016 | Documents Available for Public Inspection and digital copies | | | | | |
| November 23, 2016 | 0:00 AM, pre-bid meeting at: | | | | | |
| | 1666 Kennedy Causeway, Commission Chambers 1st Floor, North | | | | | |
| | Bay Village, Florida 33141. | | | | | |
| December 2, 2016 | Last day opportunity for questions by emailing | | | | | |
| | yvonne.hamilton@nbvillage.com, no later than 3:00 PM local time. | | | | | |
| December 13, 2016 | Bid Documents Submittal due in to Village Clerk Office, no later | | | | | |
| | than 4:00 PM local time. | | | | | |
| December 19, 2016 | Technical Review Committee Meeting | | | | | |
| December 20, 2016 | Award Recommendation to Village Clerk and Village Manager | | | | | |
| January 10, 2017 | Commission Public Meeting to review and confirm Award | | | | | |
| | Recommendation 7:30 pm local time | | | | | |

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM NORTH BAY VILLAGE

Each bidder is encouraged to familiarize themselves with the North Bay Village – Code of Ordinances and Consolidated Land Development Regulations. Below is an excerpt of the procurement requirements and general industry practices as they pertain to the Bond and Insurance requirements for North Bay Village. This is **not a full list** of the North Bay Village requirements.

North Bay Village Municode

Article 36.25 - Procurement requirements.

- (B) Responsibilities of the Village Manager.
- ... The Village Manager may delegate responsibility for the administration of this Code as he or she deems necessary.
 - (D) (7) *Bonds*.
 - a) Construction contracts greater than \$50,000.00. For construction contracts exceeding \$50,000.00, contractors shall submit the following with the bid documents:
 - 1) A bid guarantee equal to five percent of the bid price;
 - 2) A performance bond for 100 percent of the contract price; and
 - 3) A payment bond for 100 percent of the contract price.
 - b) All other contracts. The Village Manager may require any or all of the three bonds or guarantees listed above. The bid specification shall include the amount and type of bond(s) or guarantees that are required.

Chapter 151 - Buildings

Article 151.12 – Bond

The Village will require a 10% bond of the bid price, to meet requirements of Article 151.12.

Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract, EJCDC C-700 (2007 Edition)

1. **DEFINED TERMS**

Terms used in these Instructions to Bidders which are defined in the NSPE-ACEC Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract, EJCDC C-700 (2007 Edition) have the meanings assigned to them in the General Conditions. The term "Successful Bidder" means the lowest, qualified, responsible Bidder to whom Owner (on the basis of Owner's evaluation as hereinafter provided) makes an award.

2. COPIES OF BIDDING DOCUMENTS

- 2.1 Complete sets of the Bidding Documents in the number and for the non-refundable sum, if any, stated in the Advertisement or Invitation to Bid may be obtained from Engineer (unless another issuing office is designated in the Advertisement or Invitation to Bid).
- 2.2 Complete sets of Bidding Documents shall be used in preparing Bids; neither Owner nor Engineer assume any responsibility for errors or misinterpretations resulting from the use of incomplete sets of Bidding Documents.
- 2.3 Owner and Engineer in making copies of Bidding Documents available on the above terms do so only for the purpose of obtaining Bids on the Work and do not confer a license or grant for any other use.

3. QUALIFICATIONS OF BIDDERS

To demonstrate qualifications to perform the Work, each Bidder must be prepared to submit within five days of Owner's request written evidence of the types set forth in the Supplementary Conditions, such as financial data, previous experience and evidence of authority to conduct business in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. Each Bid must contain evidence of Bidder's qualification to do business in the state where the Project is located or covenant to obtain such qualification prior to award of the contract.

4. EXAMINATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SITE

- 4.1 Before submitting a Bid, each Bidder must (a) examine the Contract Documents thoroughly, (b) visit the site to familiarize himself with local conditions that may in any manner affect cost, progress or performance of the Work, (c) familiarize himself with federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations that may in any manner affect cost, progress or performance of the Work; and (d) study and carefully correlate Bidder's observations with the Contract Documents.
- 4.2 Reference is made to the Supplementary Conditions for the identification of those reports of investigations and tests of subsurface and latent physical conditions at the site or otherwise affecting cost, progress or performance of the Work which have been relied upon by Engineer in preparing the Drawings and Specifications. Owner will make copies of such reports available to any Bidder requesting them. These reports are not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness, nor are they part of the Contract Documents. Before submitting his Bid, each Bidder will, at his own expense, make such additional investigations and tests as the Bidder may deem necessary to determine his Bid for performance of the Work in accordance with the time, price and other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents.
- 4.3 On request, Owner will provide each Bidder access to the site to conduct such investigations and tests as each Bidder deems necessary for submission of his Bid.
- 4.4 The lands upon which the Work is to be performed, rights-of-way for access thereto and other lands designated for use by Contractor in performing the Work, are identified in the Supplementary Conditions, General Requirements or Drawings.
- 4.5 The submission of a Bid will constitute an incontrovertible representation by the Bidder that he has complied with every requirement of this Article 4 and that the Contract Documents are sufficient in scope and detail to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions for performance of the Work.
- 4.6 Bidder to document as part of their bid any areas of non-compliance with the system specifications. Areas of non-compliance may result in rejection of a bid.

5. INTERPRETATIONS

All questions about the meaning or intent of the Contract Documents shall be submitted to Owner in writing. Replies will be issued by Addenda mailed or delivered to all parties recorded by Owner as having received the Bidding Documents. Questions received less than ten days prior to the date for opening of Bids will not be answered. Only questions answered by formal written Addenda will be binding. Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect.

6. BID SECURITY

- 6.1 Bid Security shall be made payable to Owner in an amount of five percent (5%) of the Bidder's maximum Bid price and in the form of a certified or bank check or a Bid Bond (on form attached, if a form is prescribed) issued by a Surety as specified in the General Conditions.
- 6.2 The Bid Security of the Successful Bidder will be retained until such Bidder has executed the Agreement and furnished the required Contract Security, whereupon it will be returned; if the successful Bidder fails to execute and deliver the Agreement and furnish the required Contract Security within 10 days of the Notice of Award, Owner may annul the Notice of Award and the Bid Security of that Bidder will be forfeited. The Bid Security of any Bidder whom Owner believes to have a reasonable chance of receiving the award may be retained by Owner until the earlier of the seventh day after the "effective date of the Agreement" (which term is defined in the General Conditions) by Owner to Contractor and the required Contract Security is furnished or the sixty-first day after the Bid opening. Bid Security of other Bidders will be returned within seven days of the Bid opening.

7. CONTRACT TIME

The number of days within which, or the date by which, the Work is to be completed (the Contract Time) is included in the Agreement.

8. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

Provisions for liquidated damages, if any, are set forth in the Agreement.

9. SUBSTITUTE MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT

The Contract, if awarded, will be on the basis of material and equipment described in the Drawings or specified in the Specifications without consideration of possible substitute or "or-equal" items. Whenever it is indicated in the Drawings or specified in the Specifications that a substitute or "or-equal" item of material or equipment may be furnished or used by Contractor if acceptable to Engineer, application for such acceptance will not be considered by Engineer until after the "effective date of the Agreement". The procedure for submittal of any such application by Contractor and consideration by Engineer is set forth in the General Conditions which may be supplemented in the General Requirements.

10. SUBCONTRACTORS, ETC.

- 10.1 If the Supplementary Conditions require the identity of certain Subcontractors and other persons and organizations to be submitted to Owner in advance of the Notice of Award, the apparent Successful Bidder, and any other Bidder so requested, will within seven days after the day of the Bid opening submit to Owner a list of all Subcontractors and other persons and organizations (including those who are to furnish the principal items of material and equipment) proposed for those portions of the Work as to which such identification is so required. Such list shall be accompanied by an experience statement with pertinent information as to similar projects and other evidence of qualification for each such Subcontractor, person and organization if requested by Owner. If Owner or Engineer after due investigation has reasonable objection to any proposed Subcontractor, other person or organization, may before giving the Notice of Award request the apparent Successful Bidder to submit an acceptable substitute without an increase in the Bid price. If the apparent Successful Bidder declines to make any such substitution, the contract shall not be awarded to such Bidder, but his declining to make any such substitution will not constitute grounds for sacrificing his Bid Security. Any Subcontractor, other person or organization so listed and to whom Owner or Engineer does not make written objection prior to the giving of the Notice of Award will be deemed acceptable to Owner and Engineer.
- 10.2 In contracts or portions thereof, where the Contract Price is on the basis of Costof-the-Work Plus a Fee, the apparent Successful Bidder, prior to the Notice of Award, shall identify in writing to Owner those portions of the Work that such Bidder proposes to subcontract and after the Notice of Award may only subcontract other portions of the Work with Owner's written consent.

10.3 No Contractor shall be required to employ any Subcontractor, other person or organization against whom he has reasonable objection.

11. BID FORM

- 11.1 The Bid Form is attached hereto; additional copies may be obtained from Engineer.
- 11.2 Bid Forms must be completed in ink or typed. The Bid price of each item on the form must be stated in numerals. Contractor must bid on all alternates in the bid form.
- 11.3 Bids by corporations must be executed in the corporate name by the president or a vice-president (or other corporate officer accompanied by evidence of authority to sign), and the corporate seal must be affixed and attested by the secretary or an assistant secretary. The corporate address and state of incorporation shall be shown below the signature.
- 11.4 Bids by partnerships or joint venture, must be executed in the partnership name and signed by a partner, whose title must appear under the signature and the official address of the partnership must be shown below the signature. Documentation supporting the partnership of joint venture may be requested at the discretion of the Village.
- 11.5 All names must be typed or printed below the signature.
- 11.6 The Bid shall contain an acknowledgement of receipt of all Addenda (the numbers of which shall be filled in on the Bid Form).
- 11.7 The address to which communications regarding the Bid are to be directed must be shown.

12. SUBMISSION OF BIDS

Bids shall be submitted at the time and place indicated in the Invitation to Bid.

13. MODIFICATION AND WITHDRAWAL OF BIDS

13.1 Bids may be modified or withdrawn by an appropriate document duly executed (in the manner that a Bid must be executed) and delivered to the place where Bids are to be submitted at any time prior to the opening of Bids.

13.2 If, within twenty-four hours after Bids are opened, any Bidder files a duly signed written notice with Owner and promptly thereafter demonstrates to the reasonable satisfaction of Owner that there was a material and substantial mistake in the preparation of his Bid, that Bidder may withdraw his Bid and the Bid Security will be returned. Thereafter, that Bidder will be disqualified from further bidding on the Work.

14. OPENING OF BIDS

Bids will be opened publicly.

14.1 Bids are opened publicly, read aloud, and an abstract of the amounts of the base Bids and major alternates (if any) will be made available after the opening of Bids.

15. BIDS TO REMAIN OPEN

All Bids shall remain open for <u>ninety</u> days after the day of the Bid opening, but Owner may, in his sole discretion, release any Bid and return the Bid Security prior to that date.

16. AWARD OF CONTRACT

- 16.1 Owner reserves the right to reject any and all Bids, to waive any and all informalities and to negotiate contract terms with the Successful Bidder, and the right to disregard all nonconforming, nonresponsive or conditional Bids. Discrepancies between words and figures will be resolved in favor of words. Discrepancies between the indicated sum of any column of figures and the correct sum thereof will be resolved in favor of the correct sum. Discrepancies between the indicated value and the correct value as calculated by the product of the unit price and the estimated quantity will be resolved by using the stated unit price.
- In evaluating Bids, Owner shall consider the qualifications of the Bidders, whether or not the Bids comply with the prescribed requirements, alternates, additive/deductive amounts, and unit prices, if requested in the Bid forms. THE VILLAGE AT ITS SOLE DISCRETION SHALL AWARD THIS CONTRACT BASED ON THE TOTAL BID AMOUNT. It is Owner's intent to accept alternates (if any are accepted) in the order in which they are listed in the Bid form, but award will not be based on alternates and the Owner may accept them in any order or combination.

- 16.3 Owner will consider the qualifications and experience of the Contractor, Subcontractors, and other persons or organizations (including those who are to furnish the principal items of material or equipment) proposed for all portions of the Work. The identity of Subcontractors and other persons and organizations must be submitted as provided in the Supplementary Conditions. Operating costs, maintenance considerations, performance data and guarantees of materials and equipment will also be considered by Owner.
- 16.4 Owner will conduct such investigations as Owner deems necessary to assist in the evaluation of any Bid and to establish the responsibility, qualifications and financial ability of the Bidders, proposed Subcontractors and other persons and organizations to do the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents to Owner's satisfaction within the prescribed time. Issues such as past performance, adherence to schedule, and change order requests will be included in this evaluation. The weighing of these factors is at the discretion of the Village.
- 16.5 At the sole discretion of the Owner, the Owner reserves the right to reject the Bid of any Bidder based upon the evaluation noted in Section 16.4 above. References will NOT be limited to those submitted by the Contractor.
- 16.6 If the contract is to be awarded, it will be awarded to the lowest responsible Bidder whose evaluation by Owner indicates to Owner that the award will be in the best interests of the Project.
- 16.7 If the contract is to be awarded, Owner will give the Successful Bidder a Notice of Award within 10 days after the day of the Bid opening.

17. PERFORMANCE AND OTHER BONDS

Paragraph 5.01 of the General Conditions and the Supplementary Conditions set forth Owner's requirements as to Performance and Payment Bonds. When the Successful Bidder delivers the executed Agreement to Owner, it shall be accompanied by the required Contract Security.

18. SIGNING OF AGREEMENT

When Owner gives a Notice of Award to the Successful Bidder, it will be accompanied by at least six (6) unsigned counterparts of the Agreement and all other Contract Documents. Within ten days thereafter, Contractor shall sign and deliver at least six (6) counter-parts of the Agreement to Owner with all other Contract Documents attached. Within ten days thereafter, Owner will deliver all fully signed counterparts to Contractor.

Engineer will identify those portions of the Contract Documents not fully signed by Owner and Contractor and such identification shall be binding on all parties.

19. CONE OF SILENCE

You are hereby advised that this Invitation to Bid is subject to the "Cone of Silence" in accordance with Section 38.18 of North Bay Village Code of Ordinances. From the time of advertising until the Village Manager issues his recommendation, there is a prohibition on communication with the Village's professional staff. This ordinance does not apply to oral communications at pre-submittal conferences, oral presentations before evaluation committees contract discussions made to Village Commission during any duly noticed public meeting, contract negotiations with the staff following the award of a bid by any Village Commission, or communication in writing at any time with any Village employee, official, or member of the Village Commission unless specifically prohibited. A copy of all written communications must be filed with the Village Clerk. A proposer who violates these provisions shall not be considered for this Invitation to Bid.

20. STATE REVOLVING FUND PROGRAM

This project is funded through the Florida Department of Environmental Protection State Revolving Fund Program and subject to the Supplementary Conditions included as Appendix C.

PROPOSAL

WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM NORTH BAY VILLAGE

North Bay Village 1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300 North Bay Village, FL 33141

Gentlemen:

The undersigned, as Bidder, hereby declares that the only persons, company, or parties interested in the Proposal or the Contract to be entered into, as principals, are named herein; and that this Proposal is made without connection with any other person, company, or parties making a Bid or Proposal; and that it is in all respects fair and in good faith without collusion or fraud.

That the Bidder has carefully and to his full satisfaction examined the attached Instructions to Bidders, General Conditions, Special Conditions, Detailed Specifications, and Form of Contract and Bond, together with the accompanying Plans, and that he has read all addenda issued prior to the opening of Bids; and that he has made a full examination of the location of the propose work and hereby agrees to furnish, unless otherwise provided, all implements, machinery, equipment, transportation, tools, materials, supplies, labor, and other things necessary to the prosecution and completion of the work generally described as follows:

Water Meter Replacement Program BID NO. NBV 2016-003

Furnish all labor and materials to manage the design, equipment supply, replacement of existing water meters, field installation, system implementation, and optimization of a Mobile Based Advanced Metering Infrastructure and Water Loss Management system to read meters in an automated and cost effective manner as well as reduce the Village's unaccounted for and non-revenue water. The scope of work involves, but is not limited to, providing and installing software, hardware, as well as providing all necessary training and installation support. The project also includes repairing or replacing associated water service piping as needed from the new water meters to the water main, water meter box replacement, water system testing, removal of existing water meters and boxes, maintenance of traffic, trench/roadway restoration, site restoration, and all other appurtenances necessary for a complete project. Construction of this project will require close coordination with the Owner and Engineer. Maximum project duration for project completion is ten (10) months.

It is proposed that the project herein described shall be constructed for the Total Bid Amount based on the Contract Unit Prices in this Proposal, all in accordance with the requirements and provisions of the Contract Documents. The Village at its sole discretion shall award this contract based on the Total Bid Amount and in accordance with Section 16 (Award of Contract) in the

Instructions to Bidders.

| TOTAL BID AMOUNT | \$_ | |
|-----------------------------|------------|--|
| TOTAL BID AMOUNT (IN WORDS) | | |

BID FORM

The following Bid Form is presented to assist the Village in evaluating the Bid. After award, the Village reserves the right to modify estimated quantities subject to the unit price, and eliminate line items if necessary. In the event of discrepancy or approved quantity change, the Unit Price for each item will govern. Payment shall be made for the items listed on the Bid Form on the basis of the Work actually performed and completed.

| <u>Item</u> | <u>Description</u> | Estimated Quantity | <u>Unit</u> | <u>Price</u> | <u>Value</u> |
|-------------|---|-----------------------|-------------|--------------|--------------|
| 1. | Mobilization, Bonds & Insurance | 1 | LS | | |
| 2. | Maintenance of Traffic | 1 | LS | | |
| 3. | Mobile Based AMI System Implementation and Support | 1 | LS | | |
| 4. | Mobile AMI Analytics Software Implementation and Support | 1 | LS | | |
| 5. | Water Loss Management System Implementation and Support | 1 | LS | | |
| 6. | Customer Engagement Program Implementation and Support | 1 | LS | | |
| 7. | Furnish and Install (F & I) 5/8" Solid State meters | 265 | EA | | |
| 8. | F & I, 3/4" Solid State meters | 65 | EA | | |
| 9. | F & I, 1" Solid State meters | 200 | EA | | |
| 10. | F & I, 1 1/2" Solid State meters | 75 | EA | | |

| 11. | F & I, 2" Solid State meters | 70 | EA | | |
|-----------------------------|-------------------------------|-----|----|--------------|--------------|
| 12. | F & I, 3" Solid State meters | 30 | EA | | |
| 13. | F & I, 4" Solid State meters | 15 | EA | | |
| 14. | F & I, 5/8" Standard meters | 10 | EA | | |
| 15. | F & I, 3/4" Standard meters | 10 | EA | | |
| 16. | F & I, 1" Standard meters | 10 | EA | | |
| 17. | F & I, 1 1/2" Standard meters | 10 | EA | | |
| 18. | F & I, 2" Standard meters | 10 | EA | | |
| 19. | F & I, 3" Standard meters | 10 | EA | | |
| 20. | F & I, 4" Standard meters | 10 | EA | | |
| 21. | HDPE Service Connections | 420 | EA | | |
| 22. | Meter Box and Lid Replacement | 420 | EA | | |
| 23. | Site Restoration | 1 | LS | | |
| 24. | Allowance | 1 | LS | \$340,000.00 | \$340,000.00 |
| TOTA | TOTAL BID AMOUNT | | \$ | | |
| TOTAL BID AMOUNT (IN WORDS) | | | | | |

TRENCH SAFETY

Bidder acknowledges that included in the various items of the proposal and in the Total Bid Price are costs for complying with the Florida Trench Safety Act (90-96, Laws of Fla.) effective October 1, 1990. The bidder further identifies the costs to be summarized below.

| | TRENCH SAFETY MEASURE (DESCRIPTION) | UNITS OF MEASURE (LF, SY) | UNIT (QUANTITY) | UNIT COST | EXTENDED COST |
|----|-------------------------------------|---------------------------------|--------------------|--------------|------------------|
| A. | | | | | |
| B. | | | | | |
| C. | | | | | |

Failure to complete the above may result in the bid being declared non-responsive.

QUALIFICATION REQUIREMENTS

Only those Bidders and Subcontractor(s) who are qualified will be considered as bona fide bidders. As Bidder, we certify to have constructed at least three (3) similar projects in the last five (5) year period as indicated by the following:

| 1) | NAME OF PROJECT | · |
|----|---------------------|----|
| | YEAR OF PROJECT | |
| | OWNER OF PROJECT | |
| | OWNER TELEPHONE NO. | |
| | LOCATION OF PROJECT | |
| | DESIGNING ENGINEER | |
| | ADDRESS | |
| | SCOPE OF WORK | |
| | APPROXIMATE VALUE | \$ |
| | | |
| 2) | NAME OF PROJECT | |
| | YEAR OF PROJECT | |
| | OWNER OF PROJECT | |
| | OWNER TELEPHONE NO. | |
| | LOCATION OF PROJECT | |
| | DESIGNING ENGINEER | |
| | ADDRESS | |
| | SCOPE OF WORK | |
| | APPROXIMATE VALUE | \$ |
| | | |
| 3) | NAME OF PROJECT | |
| | YEAR OF PROJECT | |
| | OWNER OF PROJECT | |
| | OWNER TELEPHONE NO | |

| LOCATION OF PROJECT | |
|---------------------|----|
| DESIGNING ENGINEER | |
| ADDRESS | |
| SCOPE OF WORK | |
| APPROXIMATE VALUE | \$ |

List Subcontractors and other persons and organizations proposed by the Bidder to perform portions of the work:

| 1) | NAME OF SUBCONTRACTOR | |
|----|-----------------------|--|
| 2) | NAME OF SUBCONTRACTOR | |
| 3) | NAME OF SUBCONTRACTOR | |

NOTE: For additional Subcontractors: Copy this form and attach additional pages as needed.

If awarded the Contract, the undersigned agrees to execute the attached Contract within ten (10) calendar days after the date on which Notice of Award is received and to be substantially complete within 270 calendar days and all work within not more than 300 calendar days after date of receipt of written Notice to Proceed with such extensions of time as are provided for in the General Conditions.

The undersigned understands the contract time starts on date of Notice to Proceed.

There is enclosed a Bid Guarantee consisting of five percent (5%) of Total Bid Amount.

The undersigned furthermore agrees that, in case of failure on his part to execute said contract and bond within ten (10) days after being awarded the contract, the check, bond or other security accompanying his bid and the money payable thereon, shall become the property of the Village, by forfeit as agreed and liquidated damages; otherwise the check or bond accompanying his proposal shall be returned to the undersigned.

The undersigned, if awarded the contract, agrees to furnish at time of signing of contract, Performance and Payment Bonds each in the amount of 100% of the contract as set forth in "Instructions to Bidders".

The undersigned states that this proposal is the only proposal for this project in which he is interested.

| The undersigned further agrees to bear the full cost | t of | maintaining | all | work | until | final |
|--|------|-------------|-----|------|-------|-------|
| acceptance. | | | | | | |
| SUBMITTED | | | | | | |
| FIRM NAME | _ | | | | | |
| BUSINESS ADDRESS | | | | | | |
| BUSINESS TELEPHONE | | | | | | |
| SIGNATURE OF RESPONSIBLE OFFICIAL | | | | | | |
| TITLE | | | | | | |
| STATE OF INCORPORATION | | | | | | |
| FULL NAMES & ADDRESSES OF | | | | | | |
| PERSONS OR PARTIES INTERESTED | | | | | | |
| IN THE FOREGOING BID, AS PRINCIPALS: | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| Addenda No(s) received and attached hereto. | | | | | | |
| received and attached hereto. | | | | | | |

BID BOND

| KN | OW | ALL | MEN | BY | TH | ESE | PRE | SENT | S, | tha | t ' | we, |
|-------------|-------------|-------------|--------------|----------|------------|------------|---------|----------|--------|---------|---------|------|
| (hereinaft | er called t | he Princi | pal), and _ | | | | | (] | hereir | nafter | called | the |
| Surety), | a Corpo | oration | chartered | and | existing | under | the | laws | of | the | State | of |
| with its pr | rincipal of | ffices in t | he City of | | | and auth | orize | d to do | busir | ness ir | the S | tate |
| of Florida | a, and No | orth Bay | Village, a | and ha | ving an | Agent re | esiden | t there | in, s | uch A | Agent a | and |
| Company | acceptab | le to Nor | th Bay Vi | llage, a | are held a | nd firml | y bou | nd unte | o No | rth Ba | ay Vill | age |
| (hereinaft | er | called | O | wner), | | in | th | ie | S | um | | of |
| Dollars (\$ | S |) | , good and | lawful | money o | f the Uni | ited S | tates of | Ame | erica, | to be p | aid |
| upon dem | and of the | e said Ow | vner, to wh | ich pay | yment we | ll and tru | ly to | be mad | le we | bind | ourselv | ves, |
| our heirs, | executors | s, admini | strators, su | ccesso | ers and as | signs, jo | intly a | and sev | erally | y and | firmly | by |
| these pres | ents. | | | | | | | | | | | |

WHEREAS; the above bounded Principal contemplates submitting or has submitted a proposal to the said Owner for furnishing all necessary labor, materials, equipment, machinery, tools, apparatus, services, all State Workmen's Compensation and Unemployment Compensation Taxes incurred in the performance of the contract, and means of transportation for construction of:

NORTH BAY VILLAGE WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM BID NO. NBV 2016-003

for said Owner, and;

WHEREAS; the Principal desires to file this Bond in accordance with law, in lieu of a certified Bidder's check otherwise required to accompany this Proposal in the amount of five percent (5%) of the base bid.

NOW THEREFORE, the conditions of this obligation are such that, if the Proposal be accepted, the Principal shall within ten (10) days after receipt of notification of the acceptance thereof, execute a contract in accordance with the Proposal and upon the terms, conditions and price set forth therein, in the form and manner required by the Owner and execute sufficient and satisfactory Performance and Payment Bonds payable to North Bay Village, Florida, each in an amount of one hundred percent (100%) of the total contract price, as indicated in the Proposal, in form and with security satisfactory to the said Owner, then this obligation to be void, otherwise to be and remain in full force and virtue in law; and the Surety shall upon failure of the Principal to comply with any or all of the foregoing requirements within the time specified above immediately pay to the aforesaid Owner upon demand the amount hereof in good and lawful money of the United States of America, not as a penalty but as liquidated damages.

| IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE s | aid, as "Principal" her | ein |
|---|--|-----|
| has caused these presents to be signed in | its name, by its under its corporate | ion |
| seal, and the said | as "Surety" herein, has caused these prese | nts |
| to be signed in its name by its | , and attested by | its |
| , under its corporate seal, this day of | , A.D., 2016. | |
| ATTEST: | | |
| | BY:(Title) (Principal) | |
| ATTEST: | (Гинстрат) | |
| | BY: | |
| | (Surety) Attorney-in-Fact | |

(Attorneys-in-Fact who sign this bond must file with it a certified copy of their power-of-attorney to sign said Bond).

NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD

| TO: | |
|---------------------------|---|
| | Contractor |
| | Address |
| ATT: | |
| | Name and Title |
| PROJECT: | NORTH BAY VILLAGE WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM BID NO. NBV 2016-003 |
| Gentlemen: | |
| This is to ad | vise that you have been awarded the contract for the above referenced project as a |
| result of you | r bid of: |
| (\$ |) submitted to North Bay Village (Owner) on |
| (Da | nte). |
| Agreement a execute all c | of the Project Manual for this project are attached. Each set contains an unexecuted and the requirement for attaching the Performance and Payment Bonds. Please opies of the Agreement and attach a copy of the Performance and Payment Bonds to nent and return the Project Manuals to our office for final execution by the Owner. |
| the event th | on is invited to the provision whereby your proposal guarantee may be forfeited in the Agreement with satisfactory Performance and Payment Bonds attached is not a delivered to the Owner within ten (10) consecutive calendar days frome). |
| | Sincerely yours, |
| | |
| | By: Gary R. Ratay, P.E. |
| | |

AGREEMENT (CONTRACT)

BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR

| THI | S AGREI | EMENT is o | lated as of the | eo | day of | | in | the |
|---|--|--|---|--|---|--|--|--|
| year 2016 b | y and bet | ween North | Bay Village | (hereinafte | r called OW | NER) and _ | | |
| | | | (hereina | after called | CONTRAC | TOR). | | |
| OWNER ar | nd CONT | RACTOR, | in considerat | tion of the | mutual cov | venants herei | nafter set | forth, |
| agree as foll | lows: | | | | | | | |
| Arti | cle 1. | WORK. | CONTRAC | CTOR shal | l complete | all Work | as specifie | d or |
| indic | cated in th | ne Contract | Documents. | The Work | is generally | described as | s follows: | |
| existing Based A in an aut non-reve software project a new wa | water meadvanced atomated atomated atomated atomated, hardwandso includent | Metering Ir Metering Ir and cost effe er. The scop re, as well a des repairing s to the wa | rials to mana nstallation, synfrastructure a ective manner oe of work invas providing a g or replacing ater main, wa meters and | estem imple and Water is as well as volves, but all necessar g associated ater meter | ementation, a Loss Manag reduce the V is not limite ry training a I water servi box replace | and optimizatement system Village's unacted to, providing and installation of the piping as tement, water | tion of a M m to read m ecounted fo ng and insta on support. needed from system te | tobile neters or and alling The m the sting, |

The Project for which the Work under the Contract Documents may be the whole or only a part is generally described as follows:

restoration, site restoration, and all other appurtenances necessary for a complete project. Construction of this project will require close coordination with the Owner and Engineer.

NORTH BAY VILLAGE WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM BID NO. NBV 2016-003

Article 2. ENGINEER. The Project has been designed by the following:

Maximum project duration for project completion is ten (10) months.

ENGINEER

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. 600 N Pine Island Road, Suite 450 Fort Lauderdale, FL 33324

who is hereinafter called ENGINEER and who will assume all duties and responsibilities and will have the rights and authority assigned to ENGINEER in the Contract Documents in connection with completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

Article 3. CONTRACT TIME.

- 3.1 The Work will be substantially completed within 270 calendar days after the date when the Contract Time commences to run as provided in paragraph 2.03 of the General Conditions, and completed and ready for final payment in accordance with paragraph 14.07 of the General Conditions within 300 calendar days after the date when the Contract Time commences to run.
- 3.2 Project Milestones. In accordance with paragraph 2.05 of the General Conditions, the CONTRACTOR is required to provide as part of the Preliminary Schedule the number of days or dates for starting and completing the various stages of work including the following project milestones:
 - Mobile based AMI system design for review by the OWNER (not to exceed 1 month from Notice to Proceed)
 - Mobile based AMI system configuration and Set Up (not to exceed 4 month from Notice to Proceed)
 - Installation of the approved mobile based AMI system (not to exceed 8 months from Notice to Proceed)
 - Substantial and Final completion within the time specified in paragraph 3.1 above.
- 3.3 Liquidated Damages. OWNER and CONTRACTOR recognize that time is of the essence of this Agreement and that OWNER will suffer financial loss if the Work is not substantially complete within the time specified in paragraph 3.1 above, plus any extensions thereof allowed in accordance with Article 12 of the General Conditions. They also recognize the delays, expense and difficulties involved in proving in a legal or arbitration proceeding the actual loss suffered by OWNER if the Work is not substantially complete on time. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, OWNER and CONTRACTOR agree, that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty), CONTRACTOR shall pay OWNER Five Hundred and 00/100 dollars (\$500) for each day that expires after the time specified in Paragraph 3.1 for substantial completion until the Work is substantially complete. Liquidated damages shall be deducted from the final CONTRACTOR pay request.

Article 4. CONTRACT TIME.

4.1 OWNER shall pay CONTRACTOR for performance of the Work in accordance with the Contract Document in current funds as follows:

According to the TOTAL BID AMOUNT contained in the proposal and the Schedule of Values provided for payment request purposes.

Article 5. PAYMENT PROCEDURES.

CONTRACTOR shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 14 of the General Conditions. Applications for payment will be processed by ENGINEER as provided in the General Conditions.

- 5.1. Progress Payments. OWNER shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Price on the basis of CONTRACTOR'S Applications for Payment as recommended by ENGINEER, on or before the 28th day of each month during construction as provided below. The Applications for Payment shall be in AIA format. All progress payments will be on the basis of the progress of the Work measured by the schedule of values provided for in paragraph 14.01 of the General Conditions.
 - 5.1.1 Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments will be in an amount equal to: 90% of the Work completed and 90% of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work but delivered and suitably stored, less in each case the aggregate of payments previously made.
 - 5.1.2 Upon Substantial Completion, OWNER shall pay an amount sufficient to increase total payments to CONTRACTOR to 95% of the Contract Price, less such amounts as ENGINEER shall determine in accordance with paragraph 14.02.B.5 of the General Conditions.
- 5.2. Final Payment. Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with paragraph 14.07.B.1 of the General Conditions, OWNER shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price as recommended by ENGINEER as provided in said paragraph 14.07.B.1.

Article 6. INTEREST. Not Applicable

Article 7. CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIONS.

In order to induce OWNER to enter into Procurement Agreement, CONTRACTOR makes the following representations:

- 7.1. CONTRACTOR has familiarized himself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents, Work, locality, and with all local conditions and federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations that in any manner may affect cost, progress or performance of the Work.
- 7.2. CONTRACTOR has studied carefully all reports of investigations and tests of subsurface and latent physical conditions at the site or otherwise affecting cost, progress or performance of the Work which were relied upon by ENGINEER in the preparation of the Drawings and Specifications and which have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions.
- 7.3. CONTRACTOR has made or caused to be made examinations, investigations and tests and studies of such reports and related data in addition to those referred to in paragraph 7.2 as he deems necessary for the performance of the Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Time and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents; and no additional examinations, investigations, tests, reports or similar data are or will be required by CONTRACTOR for such purposes.
- 7.4. CONTRACTOR has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, tests, reports and data with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents.
- 7.5. CONTRACTOR has given ENGINEER written notice of all conflicts, errors or discrepancies that he has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution thereof by ENGINEER is acceptable to CONTRACTOR.

Article 8. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.

The Contract Documents which comprise the entire agreement between OWNER and CONTRACTOR are attached to this Agreement, made a part hereof and consists of the following:

- 8.1. This Agreement (all pages)
- 8.2. Exhibits and Appendices to this Contract Document/Agreement
- 8.3. Performance and Payment Bonds
- 8.4. Notice of Award
- 8.5. General Conditions (pages 1 to 62, inclusive)
- 8.6. Supplementary Conditions

8.7. Specifications bearing the following general title:

North Bay Village

Water Meter Replacement Program

BID NO. NBV 2016-003

8.8. Drawings bearing the following general title:

North Bay Village

Water Meter Replacement Program

BID NO. NBV 2016-003

- 8.9 Addenda
- 8.10. CONTRACTOR'S BID
- 8.11 Documentation submitted by CONTRACTOR prior to Notice of Award
- 8.12 Any Modifications, including Change Orders, duly delivered after execution of Agreement.

There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 8. The Contract Documents may only be altered, amended or repealed by a Modification (as defined in Section 1 of the General Conditions).

Article 9. MISCELLANEOUS

- 9.1. Terms used in this Agreement which are defined in Article 1 of the General Conditions shall have the meanings indicated in the General Conditions.
- 9.2. No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract Documents will be binding on another party hereto without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and specifically but without limitation, moneys that may become due and moneys that are due may be assigned without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under the Contract Documents.
- 9.3. OWNER and CONTRACTOR each binds himself, his partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives to the other party hereto, his partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives in respect to all covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the Contract Documents.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have signed six (6) sets of this Agreement. At least one counterpart each has been delivered to OWNER, CONTRACTOR, and ENGINEER. All portions of the Contract Documents have been signed or identified by OWNER and CONTRACTOR or by ENGINEER on their behalf.

| OWNER | CONTRACTOR |
|----------------------------------|--------------------|
| North Bay Village | |
| ADDRESS | ADDRESS |
| 1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300 | |
| North Bay Village, FL 33141 | |
| BY(CORPORATE SEAL) | BY(CORPORATE SEAL) |
| ATTEST | ATTEST |

NORTH BAY VILLAGE

PERFORMANCE BOND

| PROJECT TITLE: WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM BID NO. NBV 2016-003 | | |
|---|---|--|
| CONTRACTOR: CONTRACT NO: | CONTRA | ACT DATED: |
| STATE OF | § § | |
| COUNTY OF | § | |
| KNOW ALL MEN BY | Y THESE PRESENTS: That by | this Bond, we, of the City of and State of authorized, |
| | as Principal, and | , and state of, authorized, |
| bonds, as Surety, are hoof whereof, the said Prince executors, successors | neld and firmly bound unto North Dollar Cipal and Surety bind themselves and assigns, jointly and severally | |
| | | itten Contract with Oblige, dated the the construction of the Public Works eference made a part of this Bond. |
| Principal shall faithful observe and perform a by said Contract agree according to the true in | ly perform said Contract and sha ll and singular the covenants, co d and covenanted by the Princip | BLIGATION, IS SUCH THAT, if the said all in all respects fully and faithfully inditions, warranties and agreements in and all to be observed and performed, and act, then this obligation shall be void; |
| | | n default under the Contract, Oblige e Surety shall promptly remedy the default, |
| (1) Complete the C | Contract in accordance with its te | erms and conditions; or |

(2) Obtain a Bid or Bids for completion of the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions and upon determination by Surety of the lowest responsive, responsible Bidder, or, if Oblige elects, upon determination by Oblige and the Surety jointly of the lowest responsive, responsible Bidder, arrange for a Contract between such Bidder and Surety for completion of the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions, and make available as work progresses (even though there should be a default or a succession of defaults under the Contract or Contracts of completion arranged under this paragraph) sufficient funds to pay the cost of completion less the balance of the Contract price; but not exceeding the amounts set forth in the first paragraph hereof.

The term "balance of the Contract price" as used in this Bond, shall mean the total amount payable by Oblige to Principal under the Contract and amendments thereto, less the amount paid by Oblige to Principal and less amounts withheld by Oblige pursuant to its rights under the Contract.

Surety, for value received, stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract, or to the work performed thereunder, or the plans, specifications, or drawings accompanying the same, shall in any way affect its obligation on this Bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract, or to the work to be performed thereunder and further agrees to all of the terms contained in the Contract.

No right of action shall accrue on this Bond to or for the use of any person or corporation other than the Oblige named herein or the heirs, successors, executors or administrators of the Oblige.

| Witness: | Witness: |
|---------------|---------------|
| Principal | Surety |
| By: | By: |
| Name: (Print) | Name: (Print) |
| Title: | ` , |
| Address: | Address: |

| The name and address of the Resident Agent for service of process on Suret | y is: |
|--|-------|
| Name: | |
| Address: | |
| Phone: | |

NORTH BAY VILLAGE

LABOR AND MATERIAL PAYMENT BOND

| | ATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM O NO. NBV 2016-003 CONTRACT DATED: |
|---|---|
| STATE OF | § |
| COUNTY OF | § § |
| , of the C , State corporation, authorized, Florida, as Surety, are he \$ | HESE PRESENTS: That, by this Bond, we y of |
| | HE BOND is that if Principal: |

2. Pays Oblige all loss, damage, expenses, costs, and attorneys' fees, including appellate proceedings that Oblige sustains because of default by Principal under this Bond; then this Bond is void; otherwise, it remains in full force.

Any changes, extensions of time, alterations or additions in or under the Contract, Contract Documents, plans, specifications and/or drawings, or the work to be performed thereunder, and compliance or noncompliance with formalities connected with the Contract or with the changes do not affect Surety's obligations under this Bond, and Surety does hereby waive notice of any such changes, extensions of time, alterations or additions in or under the Contract, Contract Documents, plans, specifications and/or drawings, or the work to be performed thereunder.

This Bond is filed in accordance with Section 713.23, Florida Statutes, and/or Section 255.05, Florida Statutes, whichever or both as may be applicable.

| DATED on | , 20 |
|--|--|
| IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Printhis day of | ncipal and Surety have signed and sealed this instrument, 20 |
| Witness: | Witness: |
| Principal | Surety |
| By: | By: |
| Name:(Print) Title: | (Print) Title: |
| Date: | |
| The name and address of the Resident A Name: | · |
| Address: | |
| Phone: | |

NOTICE TO PROCEED

| TO: | | | |
|------|------------------|---|---|
| | Contra | ctor | • |
| | Street | Address | - |
| | City | | <u>.</u> |
| ATT | N: | | |
| | Name | and Title | |
| PRO | JECT: | NORTH BAY VILLAGE WATER METER REPLACEMEN BID NO. NBV 2016-003 | TT PROGRAM |
| Gent | lemen: | | |
| | igh the E | | the above project has been forwarded to you s, 20 Completion |
| _ | | nder the Contract Documents on the | on whereby you shall start to perform your Commencement date. Said date shall begin the |
| | The En | ngineer in charge of the Work for No | rth Bay Village will be: |
| | Gary R | Ratay, P.E. | |
| | 600 N Fort La | y-Horn and Associates, Inc. Pine Island Road, Suite 450 auderdale, FL 33324 5-5100 | |
| | | | Sincerely yours, |
| | | | Gary R Ratay, P.E. |

WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM NORTH BAY VILLAGE BID NO. NBV 2016-003

GENERAL CONDITIONS, EJCDC C-700 (2007 EDITION)

This document has important legal consequences; consultation with an attorney is encouraged with respect to its use or modification. This document should be adapted to the particular circumstances of the contemplated Project and the controlling Laws and Regulations.

STANDARD GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

Prepared by

ENGINEERS JOINT CONTRACT DOCUMENTS COMMITTEE

and

Issued and Published Jointly by









AMERICAN COUNCIL OF ENGINEERING COMPANIES

ASSOCIATED GENERAL CONTRACTORS OF AMERICA

AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CIVIL ENGINEERS

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS IN PRIVATE PRACTICE

A Practice Division of the

NATIONAL SOCIETY OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS

These General Conditions have been prepared for use with the Suggested Forms of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor (EJCDC C-520 or C-525, 2007 Editions). Their provisions are interrelated and a change in one may necessitate a change in the other. Comments concerning their usage are contained in the Narrative Guide to the EJCDC Construction Documents (EJCDC C-001, 2007 Edition). For guidance in the preparation of Supplementary Conditions, see Guide to the Preparation of Supplementary Conditions (EJCDC C-800, 2007 Edition).

Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers 1420 King Street, Alexandria, VA 22314-2794 (703) 684-2882 www.nspe.org

> American Council of Engineering Companies 1015 15th Street N.W., Washington, DC 20005 (202) 347-7474 www.acec.org

American Society of Civil Engineers 1801 Alexander Bell Drive, Reston, VA 20191-4400 (800) 548-2723 www.asce.org

Associated General Contractors of America 2300 Wilson Boulevard, Suite 400, Arlington, VA 22201-3308 (703) 548-3118 www.agc.org

STANDARD GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| | | Page |
|----------------|--|------------|
| Article 1 – | Definitions and Terminology | 1 |
| 1.01 | Defined Terms | 1 1 |
| 1.02 | Terminology | 5 |
| Arriolo 7 | | |
| 2.01 | Preliminary Matters | 6 |
| 2.01 2.02 | Delivery of Bonds and Evidence of Insurance | 6 |
| 2.02 | Copies of Documents | 6 |
| 2.03 | Commencement of Contract Times; Notice to Proceed | 6 |
| 2.04 | Starting the Work | 7 |
| 2.03 | Before Starting Construction | 7 |
| 2.07 | Preconstruction Conference; Designation of Authorized Representatives | 7 |
| 2.07 | Initial Acceptance of Schedules | 7 |
| Article 3 – | Contract Documents: Intent, Amending, Reuse | . 8 |
| 3.01 | Intent | 8 |
| 3.02 | Reference Standards | 8 |
| 3.03 | Reporting and Resolving Discrepancies | 9 |
| 3.04 | Amending and Supplementing Contract Documents | . 9 |
| 3.05 | Reuse of Documents | 10 |
| 3.06 | Electronic Data | .10 |
| A - a * -1 - 4 | | |
| Article 4 – . | Availability of Lands; Subsurface and Physical Conditions; Hazardous Environmental | |
| 4.01 | onditions; Reference Points | .11 |
| 4.01 | Availability of Lands | .11 |
| 4.02 | Subsurface and Physical Conditions | .11 |
| 4.03 | Differing Subsurface or Physical Conditions | .12 |
| 4.04 | Underground Facilities | .13 |
| | Reference Points | .14 |
| 4.06 | Hazardous Environmental Condition at Site | .14 |
| Article 5 – I | Bonds and Insurance | .16 |
| 5.01 | Performance, Payment, and Other Bonds | |
| 5.02 | Licensed Sureties and Insurers | 16 |
| 5.03 | Certificates of Insurance | 17 |
| 5.04 | Contractor's Insurance | 17 |
| 5.05 | Owner's Liability Insurance | 10 |
| 5.06 | Property Insurance | 10 |
| 5.07 | Waiver of Rights | 20 20 |
| 5.08 | Receipt and Application of Insurance Proceeds | ∠∪ 21 |
| | 1 II | 4 1 |

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.

Page i

| 5.09 | Acceptance of Bonds and Insurance; Option to Replace | 21 |
|-------------|---|--|
| 5.10 | Partial Utilization, Acknowledgment of Property Insurer | |
| Article 6 | Contractor's Responsibilities | 22 |
| 6.01 | Supervision and Superintendence | |
| 6.02 | Labor; Working Hours | |
| 6.03 | Services, Materials, and Equipment | |
| 6.04 | Progress Schedule | |
| 6.05 | Substitutes and "Or-Equals" | |
| 6.06 | Concerning Subcontractors, Suppliers, and Others | |
| 6.07 | Patent Fees and Royalties. | |
| 6.08 | Permits | |
| 6.09 | Laws and Regulations | |
| 6.10 | Taxes | |
| 6.11 | Use of Site and Other Areas | |
| 6.12 | Record Documents | |
| 6.13 | Safety and Protection | |
| 6.14 | Safety Representative | |
| 6.15 | Hazard Communication Programs | |
| 6.16 | Emergencies | |
| 6.17 | Shop Drawings and Samples | |
| 6.18 | Continuing the Work | |
| 6.19 | Contractor's General Warranty and Guarantee | |
| 6.20 | Indemmification | |
| 6.21 | Delegation of Professional Design Services | |
| A 1 - 7 | Od W 1 od C'r | 25 |
| | Other Work at the Site | |
| 7.01 | Related Work at Site | |
| 7.02 | Coordination | |
| 7.03 | Legal Relationships | 30 |
| Article 8 – | Owner's Responsibilities | |
| 8.01 | Communications to Contractor | 36 |
| 8.02 | Replacement of Engineer | 36 |
| 8.03 | Furnish Data | 36 |
| 8.04 | Pay When Due | |
| 8.05 | Lands and Easements; Reports and Tests | 36 |
| 8.06 | Insurance | 36 |
| 8.07 | Change Orders | |
| 8.08 | Inspections, Tests, and Approvals | |
| 8.09 | Limitations on Owner's Responsibilities | |
| 8.10 | Undisclosed Hazardous Environmental Condition | 37 |
| 8.11 | Evidence of Financial Arrangements | |
| 8.12 | Compliance with Site Safety Program | 37 |
| Article 0 | Engineer's Status During Construction | 37 |
| | Owner's Representative | |
| 7.01 | Owner a representative | ······································ |

| 9.02 | Visits to Site | 37 |
|--------------|--|----|
| 9.03 | Project Representative | 38 |
| 9.04 | Authorized Variations in Work | 38 |
| 9.05 | Rejecting Defective Work | 38 |
| 9.06 | Shop Drawings, Change Orders and Payments | |
| 9.07 | Determinations for Unit Price Work | |
| 9.08 | Decisions on Requirements of Contract Documents and Acceptability of Work | 39 |
| 9.09 | Limitations on Engineer's Authority and Responsibilities | 39 |
| 9.10 | Compliance with Site Safety Program | |
| | Changes in the Work; Claims | |
| 10.01 | Authorized Changes in the Work | 40 |
| | Unauthorized Changes in the Work | |
| 10.03 | Execution of Change Orders | 41 |
| 10.04 | Notification to Surety | 41 |
| 10.05 | Claims | 41 |
| | Cost of the Work; Allowances; Unit Price Work | |
| 11.01 | Cost of the Work | 42 |
| | Allowances | |
| 11.03 | Unit Price Work | 45 |
| | Change of Contract Price; Change of Contract Times | |
| | Change of Contract Price | |
| | Change of Contract Times | |
| 12.03 | Delays | 47 |
| | Tests and Inspections; Correction, Removal or Acceptance of Defective Work | |
| | Notice of Defects | |
| | Access to Work | |
| | Tests and Inspections | |
| | Uncovering Work | |
| | Owner May Stop the Work | |
| | Correction or Removal of Defective Work | |
| | Correction Period | |
| | Acceptance of Defective Work | |
| 13.09 | Owner May Correct Defective Work | 52 |
| Article 14 – | Payments to Contractor and Completion | 52 |
| 14.01 | Schedule of Values | 52 |
| | Progress Payments | |
| | Contractor's Warranty of Title | |
| | Substantial Completion | |
| | Partial Utilization | |
| 14.06 | Final Inspection | 57 |
| 14.07 | Final Payment | 57 |
| 14.08 | Final Completion Delayed | 58 |

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.

Page iii

| 14.09 Waiver of Claims | 58 |
|---|----|
| Article 15 – Suspension of Work and Termination | 59 |
| 15.01 Owner May Suspend Work | |
| 15.02 Owner May Terminate for Cause | |
| 15.03 Owner May Terminate For Convenience | |
| 15.04 Contractor May Stop Work or Terminate | 60 |
| Article 16 – Dispute Resolution | 61 |
| 16.01 Methods and Procedures | 61 |
| Article 17 – Miscellaneous | 61 |
| 17.01 Giving Notice | 61 |
| 17.02 Computation of Times | |
| 17.03 Cumulative Remedies | |
| 17.04 Survival of Obligations | 62 |
| 17.05 Controlling Law | 62 |
| 17.06 Headings | |

ARTICLE 1 – DEFINITIONS AND TERMINOLOGY

1.01 Defined Terms

- A. Wherever used in the Bidding Requirements or Contract Documents and printed with initial capital letters, the terms listed below will have the meanings indicated which are applicable to both the singular and plural thereof. In addition to terms specifically defined, terms with initial capital letters in the Contract Documents include references to identified articles and paragraphs, and the titles of other documents or forms.
 - 1. Addenda—Written or graphic instruments issued prior to the opening of Bids which clarify, correct, or change the Bidding Requirements or the proposed Contract Documents.
 - 2. *Agreement*—The written instrument which is evidence of the agreement between Owner and Contractor covering the Work.
 - 3. Application for Payment—The form acceptable to Engineer which is to be used by Contractor during the course of the Work in requesting progress or final payments and which is to be accompanied by such supporting documentation as is required by the Contract Documents.
 - 4. Asbestos—Any material that contains more than one percent asbestos and is friable or is releasing asbestos fibers into the air above current action levels established by the United States Occupational Safety and Health Administration.
 - 5. *Bid*—The offer or proposal of a Bidder submitted on the prescribed form setting forth the prices for the Work to be performed.
 - 6. Bidder—The individual or entity who submits a Bid directly to Owner.
 - 7. Bidding Documents—The Bidding Requirements and the proposed Contract Documents (including all Addenda).
 - 8. *Bidding Requirements*—The advertisement or invitation to bid, Instructions to Bidders, Bid security of acceptable form, if any, and the Bid Form with any supplements.
 - Change Order—A document recommended by Engineer which is signed by Contractor and Owner and authorizes an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work or an adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Times, issued on or after the Effective Date of the Agreement.
 - 10. *Claim*—A demand or assertion by Owner or Contractor seeking an adjustment of Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, or other relief with respect to the terms of the Contract. A demand for money or services by a third party is not a Claim.
 - 11. Contract—The entire and integrated written agreement between the Owner and Contractor concerning the Work. The Contract supersedes prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, whether written or oral.
 - 12. Contract Documents—Those items so designated in the Agreement. Only printed or hard copies of the items listed in the Agreement are Contract Documents. Approved Shop

- Drawings, other Contractor submittals, and the reports and drawings of subsurface and physical conditions are not Contract Documents.
- 13. Contract Price—The moneys payable by Owner to Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents as stated in the Agreement (subject to the provisions of Paragraph 11.03 in the case of Unit Price Work).
- 14. Contract Times—The number of days or the dates stated in the Agreement to: (i) achieve Milestones, if any; (ii) achieve Substantial Completion; and (iii) complete the Work so that it is ready for final payment as evidenced by Engineer's written recommendation of final payment.
- 15. Contractor—The individual or entity with whom Owner has entered into the Agreement.
- 16. Cost of the Work—See Paragraph 11.01 for definition.
- 17. *Drawings*—That part of the Contract Documents prepared or approved by Engineer which graphically shows the scope, extent, and character of the Work to be performed by Contractor. Shop Drawings and other Contractor submittals are not Drawings as so defined.
- 18. Effective Date of the Agreement—The date indicated in the Agreement on which it becomes effective, but if no such date is indicated, it means the date on which the Agreement is signed and delivered by the last of the two parties to sign and deliver.
- 19. Engineer—The individual or entity named as such in the Agreement.
- 20. Field Order—A written order issued by Engineer which requires minor changes in the Work but which does not involve a change in the Contract Price or the Contract Times.
- 21. General Requirements—Sections of Division 1 of the Specifications.
- 22. Hazardous Environmental Condition—The presence at the Site of Asbestos, PCBs, Petroleum, Hazardous Waste, or Radioactive Material in such quantities or circumstances that may present a substantial danger to persons or property exposed thereto.
- 23. *Hazardous Waste*—The term Hazardous Waste shall have the meaning provided in Section 1004 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act (42 USC Section 6903) as aniended from time to time.
- 24. Laws and Regulations; Laws or Regulations—Any and all applicable laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, codes, and orders of any and all governmental bodies, agencies, authorities, and courts having jurisdiction.
- Liens—Charges, security interests, or encumbrances upon Project funds, real property, or personal property.
- 26. *Milestone*—A principal event specified in the Contract Documents relating to an intermediate completion date or time prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work.

- 27. Notice of Award—The written notice by Owner to the Successful Bidder stating that upon timely compliance by the Successful Bidder with the conditions precedent listed therein, Owner will sign and deliver the Agreement.
- 28. *Notice to Proceed*—A written notice given by Owner to Contractor fixing the date on which the Contract Times will commence to run and on which Contractor shall start to perform the Work under the Contract Documents.
- 29. *Owner*—The individual or entity with whom Contractor has entered into the Agreement and for whom the Work is to be performed.
- 30. PCBs—Polychlorinated biphenyls.
- 31. *Petroleum*—Petroleum, including crude oil or any fraction thereof which is liquid at standard conditions of temperature and pressure (60 degrees Fahrenheit and 14.7 pounds per square inch absolute), such as oil, petroleum, fuel oil, oil sludge, oil refuse, gasoline, kerosene, and oil mixed with other non-Hazardous Waste and crude oils.
- 32. *Progress Schedule*—A schedule, prepared and maintained by Contractor, describing the sequence and duration of the activities comprising the Contractor's plan to accomplish the Work within the Contract Times.
- 33. *Project*—The total construction of which the Work to be performed under the Contract Documents may be the whole, or a part.
- 34. *Project Manual*—The bound documentary information prepared for bidding and constructing the Work. A listing of the contents of the Project Manual, which may be bound in one or more volumes, is contained in the table(s) of contents.
- 35. Radioactive Material—Source, special nuclear, or byproduct material as defined by the Atomic Energy Act of 1954 (42 USC Section 2011 et seq.) as amended from time to time.
- 36. Resident Project Representative—The authorized representative of Engineer who may be assigned to the Site or any part thereof.
- 37. Samples—Physical examples of materials, equipment, or workmanship that are representative of some portion of the Work and which establish the standards by which such portion of the Work will be judged.
- 38. Schedule of Submittals—A schedule, prepared and maintained by Contractor, of required submittals and the time requirements to support scheduled performance of related construction activities.
- 39. Schedule of Values—A schedule, prepared and maintained by Contractor, allocating portions of the Contract Price to various portions of the Work and used as the basis for reviewing Contractor's Applications for Payment.

- 40. Shop Drawings—All drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules, and other data or information which are specifically prepared or assembled by or for Contractor and submitted by Contractor to illustrate some portion of the Work.
- 41. Site—Lands or areas indicated in the Contract Documents as being furnished by Owner upon which the Work is to be performed, including rights-of-way and easements for access thereto, and such other lands furnished by Owner which are designated for the use of Contractor.
- 42. Specifications—That part of the Contract Documents consisting of written requirements for materials, equipment, systems, standards and workmanship as applied to the Work, and certain administrative requirements and procedural matters applicable thereto.
- 43. *Subcontractor*—An individual or entity having a direct contract with Contractor or with any other Subcontractor for the performance of a part of the Work at the Site.
- 44. Substantial Completion—The time at which the Work (or a specified part thereof) has progressed to the point where, in the opinion of Engineer, the Work (or a specified part thereof) is sufficiently complete, in accordance with the Contract Documents, so that the Work (or a specified part thereof) can be utilized for the purposes for which it is intended. The terms "substantially complete" and "substantially completed" as applied to all or part of the Work refer to Substantial Completion thereof.
- 45. Successful Bidder—The Bidder submitting a responsive Bid to whom Owner makes an award.
- 46. Supplementary Conditions—That part of the Contract Documents which amends or supplements these General Conditions.
- 47. Supplier—A manufacturer, fabricator, supplier, distributor, materialman, or vendor having a direct contract with Contractor or with any Subcontractor to furnish materials or equipment to be incorporated in the Work by Contractor or Subcontractor.
- 48. *Underground Facilities*—All underground pipelines, conduits, ducts, cables, wires, manholes, vaults, tanks, tunnels, or other such facilities or attachments, and any encasements containing such facilities, including those that convey electricity, gases, steam, liquid petroleum products, telephone or other communications, cable television, water, wastewater, storm water, other liquids or chemicals, or traffic or other control systems.
- 49. *Unit Price Work*—Work to be paid for on the basis of unit prices.
- 50. Work—The entire construction or the various separately identifiable parts thereof required to be provided under the Contract Documents. Work includes and is the result of performing or providing all labor, services, and documentation necessary to produce such construction, and furnishing, installing, and incorporating all materials and equipment into such construction, all as required by the Contract Documents.
- 51. Work Change Directive—A written statement to Contractor issued on or after the Effective Date of the Agreement and signed by Owner and recommended by Engineer ordering an

addition, deletion, or revision in the Work, or responding to differing or unforeseen subsurface or physical conditions under which the Work is to be performed or to emergencies. A Work Change Directive will not change the Contract Price or the Contract Times but is evidence that the parties expect that the change ordered or documented by a Work Change Directive will be incorporated in a subsequently issued Change Order following negotiations by the parties as to its effect, if any, on the Contract Price or Contract Times.

1.02 Terminology

A. The words or terms discussed in Paragraph 1.02.B-F are not defined but, when used in the Bidding Requirements or Contract Documents, have the indicated meaning.

B. Intent of Certain Terms or Adjectives:

1. The Contract Documents include the terms "as allowed," "as approved," "as ordered," "as directed" or terms of like effect or import to authorize an exercise of professional judgment by Engineer. In addition, the adjectives "reasonable," "suitable," "acceptable," "proper," "satisfactory," or adjectives of like effect or import are used to describe an action or determination of Engineer as to the Work. It is intended that such exercise of professional judgment, action, or determination will be solely to evaluate, in general, the Work for compliance with the information in the Contract Documents and with the design concept of the Project as a functioning whole as shown or indicated in the Contract Documents (unless there is a specific statement indicating otherwise). The use of any such term or adjective is not intended to and shall not be effective to assign to Engineer any duty or authority to supervise or direct the performance of the Work, or any duty or authority to undertake responsibility contrary to the provisions of Paragraph 9.09 or any other provision of the Contract Documents.

C. Day:

1. The word "day" means a calendar day of 24 hours measured from midnight to the next midnight.

D. Defective:

- 1. The word "defective," when modifying the word "Work," refers to Work that is unsatisfactory, faulty, or deficient in that it:
 - a. does not conform to the Contract Documents; or
 - b. does not meet the requirements of any applicable inspection, reference standard, test, or approval referred to in the Contract Documents; or
 - c. has been damaged prior to Engineer's recommendation of final payment (unless responsibility for the protection thereof has been assumed by Owner at Substantial Completion in accordance with Paragraph 14.04 or 14.05).

E. Furnish, Install, Perform, Provide:

- 1. The word "furnish," when used in connection with services, materials, or equipment, shall mean to supply and deliver said services, materials, or equipment to the Site (or some other specified location) ready for use or installation and in usable or operable condition.
- 2. The word "install," when used in connection with services, materials, or equipment, shall mean to put into use or place in final position said services, materials, or equipment complete and ready for intended use.
- 3. The words "perform" or "provide," when used in connection with services, materials, or equipment, shall mean to furnish and install said services, materials, or equipment complete and ready for intended use.
- 4. When "furnish," "install," "perform," or "provide" is not used in connection with services, materials, or equipment in a context clearly requiring an obligation of Contractor, "provide" is implied.
- F. Unless stated otherwise in the Contract Documents, words or phrases which have a well-known technical or construction industry or trade meaning are used in the Contract Documents in accordance with such recognized meaning.

ARTICLE 2 – PRELIMINARY MATTERS

2.01 Delivery of Bonds and Evidence of Insurance

- A. When Contractor delivers the executed counterparts of the Agreement to Owner, Contractor shall also deliver to Owner such bonds as Contractor may be required to furnish.
- B. Evidence of Insurance: Before any Work at the Site is started, Contractor and Owner shall each deliver to the other, with copies to each additional insured identified in the Supplementary Conditions, certificates of insurance (and other evidence of insurance which either of them or any additional insured may reasonably request) which Contractor and Owner respectively are required to purchase and maintain in accordance with Article 5.

2.02 Copies of Documents

A. Owner shall furnish to Contractor up to ten printed or hard copies of the Drawings and Project Manual. Additional copies will be furnished upon request at the cost of reproduction.

2.03 Commencement of Contract Times; Notice to Proceed

A. The Contract Times will commence to run on the thirtieth day after the Effective Date of the Agreement or, if a Notice to Proceed is given, on the day indicated in the Notice to Proceed. A Notice to Proceed may be given at any time within 30 days after the Effective Date of the Agreement. In no event will the Contract Times commence to run later than the sixtieth day after the day of Bid opening or the thirtieth day after the Effective Date of the Agreement, whichever date is earlier.

2.04 Starting the Work

A. Contractor shall start to perform the Work on the date when the Contract Times commence to run. No Work shall be done at the Site prior to the date on which the Contract Times commence to run.

2.05 Before Starting Construction

- A. *Preliminary Schedules:* Within 10 days after the Effective Date of the Agreement (unless otherwise specified in the General Requirements), Contractor shall submit to Engineer for timely review:
 - 1. a preliminary Progress Schedule indicating the times (numbers of days or dates) for starting and completing the various stages of the Work, including any Milestones specified in the Contract Documents;
 - 2. a preliminary Schedule of Submittals; and
 - 3. a preliminary Schedule of Values for all of the Work which includes quantities and prices of items which when added together equal the Contract Price and subdivides the Work into component parts in sufficient detail to serve as the basis for progress payments during performance of the Work. Such prices will include an appropriate amount of overhead and profit applicable to each item of Work.

2.06 Preconstruction Conference; Designation of Authorized Representatives

- A. Before any Work at the Site is started, a conference attended by Owner, Contractor, Engineer, and others as appropriate will be held to establish a working understanding among the parties as to the Work and to discuss the schedules referred to in Paragraph 2.05.A, procedures for handling Shop Drawings and other submittals, processing Applications for Payment, and maintaining required records.
- B. At this conference Owner and Contractor each shall designate, in writing, a specific individual to act as its representative with respect to the services and responsibilities under the Contract. Such individuals shall have the authority to transmit instructions, receive information, render decisions relative to the Contract, and otherwise act on behalf of each respective party.

2.07 Initial Acceptance of Schedules

- A. At least 10 days before submission of the first Application for Payment a conference attended by Contractor, Engineer, and others as appropriate will be held to review for acceptability to Engineer as provided below the schedules submitted in accordance with Paragraph 2.05.A. Contractor shall have an additional 10 days to make corrections and adjustments and to complete and resubmit the schedules. No progress payment shall be made to Contractor until acceptable schedules are submitted to Engineer.
 - 1. The Progress Schedule will be acceptable to Engineer if it provides an orderly progression of the Work to completion within the Contract Times. Such acceptance will not impose on

Engineer responsibility for the Progress Schedule, for sequencing, scheduling, or progress of the Work, nor interfere with or relieve Contractor from Contractor's full responsibility therefor.

- 2. Contractor's Schedule of Submittals will be acceptable to Engineer if it provides a workable arrangement for reviewing and processing the required submittals.
- 3. Contractor's Schedule of Values will be acceptable to Engineer as to form and substance if it provides a reasonable allocation of the Contract Price to component parts of the Work.

ARTICLE 3 – CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: INTENT, AMENDING, REUSE

3.01 Intent

- A. The Contract Documents are complementary; what is required by one is as binding as if required by all.
- B. It is the intent of the Contract Documents to describe a functionally complete project (or part thereof) to be constructed in accordance with the Contract Documents. Any labor, documentation, services, materials, or equipment that reasonably may be inferred from the Contract Documents or from prevailing custom or trade usage as being required to produce the indicated result will be provided whether or not specifically called for, at no additional cost to Owner.
- C. Clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents shall be issued by Engineer as provided in Article 9.

3.02 Reference Standards

- A. Standards, Specifications, Codes, Laws, and Regulations
 - Reference to standards, specifications, manuals, or codes of any technical society, organization, or association, or to Laws or Regulations, whether such reference be specific or by implication, shall mean the standard, specification, manual, code, or Laws or Regulations in effect at the time of opening of Bids (or on the Effective Date of the Agreement if there were no Bids), except as may be otherwise specifically stated in the Contract Documents.
 - 2. No provision of any such standard, specification, manual, or code, or any instruction of a Supplier, shall be effective to change the duties or responsibilities of Owner, Contractor, or Engineer, or any of their subcontractors, consultants, agents, or employees, from those set forth in the Contract Documents. No such provision or instruction shall be effective to assign to Owner, Engineer, or any of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors, any duty or authority to supervise or direct the performance of the Work or any duty or authority to undertake responsibility inconsistent with the provisions of the Contract Documents.

A. Reporting Discrepancies:

- 1. Contractor's Review of Contract Documents Before Starting Work: Before undertaking each part of the Work, Contractor shall carefully study and compare the Contract Documents and check and verify pertinent figures therein and all applicable field measurements. Contractor shall promptly report in writing to Engineer any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy which Contractor discovers, or has actual knowledge of, and shall obtain a written interpretation or clarification from Engineer before proceeding with any Work affected thereby.
- 2. Contractor's Review of Contract Documents During Performance of Work: If, during the performance of the Work, Contractor discovers any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy within the Contract Documents, or between the Contract Documents and (a) any applicable Law or Regulation, (b) any standard, specification, manual, or code, or (c) any instruction of any Supplier, then Contractor shall promptly report it to Engineer in writing. Contractor shall not proceed with the Work affected thereby (except in an emergency as required by Paragraph 6.16.A) until an amendment or supplement to the Contract Documents has been issued by one of the methods indicated in Paragraph 3.04.
- 3. Contractor shall not be liable to Owner or Engineer for failure to report any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy in the Contract Documents unless Contractor had actual knowledge thereof.

B. Resolving Discrepancies:

- 1. Except as may be otherwise specifically stated in the Contract Documents, the provisions of the Contract Documents shall take precedence in resolving any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy between the provisions of the Contract Documents and:
 - a. the provisions of any standard, specification, manual, or code, or the instruction of any Supplier (whether or not specifically incorporated by reference in the Contract Documents); or
 - b. the provisions of any Laws or Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work (unless such an interpretation of the provisions of the Contract Documents would result in violation of such Law or Regulation).

3.04 Amending and Supplementing Contract Documents

- A. The Contract Documents may be amended to provide for additions, deletions, and revisions in the Work or to modify the terms and conditions thereof by either a Change Order or a Work Change Directive.
- B. The requirements of the Contract Documents may be supplemented, and minor variations and deviations in the Work may be authorized, by one or more of the following ways:

- 1. A Field Order;
- 2. Engineer's approval of a Shop Drawing or Sample (subject to the provisions of Paragraph 6.17.D.3); or
- 3. Engineer's written interpretation or clarification.

3.05 Reuse of Documents

- A. Contractor and any Subcontractor or Supplier shall not:
 - have or acquire any title to or ownership rights in any of the Drawings, Specifications, or other documents (or copies of any thereof) prepared by or bearing the seal of Engineer or its consultants, including electronic media editions; or
 - 2. reuse any such Drawings, Specifications, other documents, or copies thereof on extensions of the Project or any other project without written consent of Owner and Engineer and specific written verification or adaptation by Engineer.
- B. The prohibitions of this Paragraph 3.05 will survive final payment, or termination of the Contract. Nothing herein shall preclude Contractor from retaining copies of the Contract Documents for record purposes.

3.06 Electronic Data

- A. Unless otherwise stated in the Supplementary Conditions, the data furnished by Owner or Engineer to Contractor, or by Contractor to Owner or Engineer, that may be relied upon are limited to the printed copies (also known as hard copies). Files in electronic media format of text, data, graphics, or other types are furnished only for the convenience of the receiving party. Any conclusion or information obtained or derived from such electronic files will be at the user's sole risk. If there is a discrepancy between the electronic files and the hard copies, the hard copies govern.
- B. Because data stored in electronic media format can deteriorate or be modified inadvertently or otherwise without authorization of the data's creator, the party receiving electronic files agrees that it will perform acceptance tests or procedures within 60 days, after which the receiving party shall be deemed to have accepted the data thus transferred. Any errors detected within the 60-day acceptance period will be corrected by the transferring party.
- C. When transferring documents in electronic media format, the transferring party makes no representations as to long term compatibility, usability, or readability of documents resulting from the use of software application packages, operating systems, or computer hardware differing from those used by the data's creator.

ARTICLE 4 – AVAILABILITY OF LANDS; SUBSURFACE AND PHYSICAL CONDITIONS; HAZARDOUS ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS; REFERENCE POINTS

4.01 Availability of Lands

- A. Owner shall furnish the Site. Owner shall notify Contractor of any encumbrances or restrictions not of general application but specifically related to use of the Site with which Contractor must comply in performing the Work. Owner will obtain in a timely manner and pay for easements for permanent structures or permanent changes in existing facilities. If Contractor and Owner are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, as a result of any delay in Owner's furnishing the Site or a part thereof, Contractor may make a Claim therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05.
- B. Upon reasonable written request, Owner shall furnish Contractor with a current statement of record legal title and legal description of the lands upon which the Work is to be performed and Owner's interest therein as necessary for giving notice of or filing a mechanic's or construction lien against such lands in accordance with applicable Laws and Regulations.
- C. Contractor shall provide for all additional lands and access thereto that may be required for temporary construction facilities or storage of materials and equipment.

4.02 Subsurface and Physical Conditions

- A. Reports and Drawings: The Supplementary Conditions identify:
 - 1. those reports known to Owner of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the Site; and
 - 2. those drawings known to Owner of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site (except Underground Facilities).
- B. Limited Reliance by Contractor on Technical Data Authorized: Contractor may rely upon the accuracy of the "technical data" contained in such reports and drawings, but such reports and drawings are not Contract Documents. Such "technical data" is identified in the Supplementary Conditions. Except for such reliance on such "technical data," Contractor may not rely upon or make any claim against Owner or Engineer, or any of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors with respect to:
 - 1. the completeness of such reports and drawings for Contractor's purposes, including, but not limited to, any aspects of the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by Contractor, and safety precautions and programs incident thereto; or
 - 2. other data, interpretations, opinions, and information contained in such reports or shown or indicated in such drawings; or
 - 3. any Contractor interpretation of or conclusion drawn from any "technical data" or any such other data, interpretations, opinions, or information.

4.03 Differing Subsurface or Physical Conditions

- A. *Notice:* If Contractor believes that any subsurface or physical condition that is uncovered or revealed either:
 - 1. is of such a nature as to establish that any "technical data" on which Contractor is entitled to rely as provided in Paragraph 4.02 is materially inaccurate; or
 - 2. is of such a nature as to require a change in the Contract Documents; or
 - 3. differs materially from that shown or indicated in the Contract Documents; or
 - 4. is of an unusual nature, and differs materially from conditions ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in work of the character provided for in the Contract Documents;

then Contractor shall, promptly after becoming aware thereof and before further disturbing the subsurface or physical conditions or performing any Work in connection therewith (except in an emergency as required by Paragraph 6.16.A), notify Owner and Engineer in writing about such condition. Contractor shall not further disturb such condition or perform any Work in connection therewith (except as aforesaid) until receipt of written order to do so.

- B. *Engineer's Review*: After receipt of written notice as required by Paragraph 4.03.A, Engineer will promptly review the pertinent condition, determine the necessity of Owner's obtaining additional exploration or tests with respect thereto, and advise Owner in writing (with a copy to Contractor) of Engineer's findings and conclusions.
- C. Possible Price and Times Adjustments:
 - 1. The Contract Price or the Contract Times, or both, will be equitably adjusted to the extent that the existence of such differing subsurface or physical condition causes an increase or decrease in Contractor's cost of, or time required for, performance of the Work; subject, however, to the following:
 - a. such condition must meet any one or more of the categories described in Paragraph 4.03.A; and
 - b. with respect to Work that is paid for on a Unit Price Basis, any adjustment in Contract Price will be subject to the provisions of Paragraphs 9.07 and 11.03.
 - 2. Contractor shall not be entitled to any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times if:
 - a. Contractor knew of the existence of such conditions at the time Contractor made a final commitment to Owner with respect to Contract Price and Contract Times by the submission of a Bid or becoming bound under a negotiated contract; or
 - b. the existence of such condition could reasonably have been discovered or revealed as a result of any examination, investigation, exploration, test, or study of the Site and

- contiguous areas required by the Bidding Requirements or Contract Documents to be conducted by or for Contractor prior to Contractor's making such final commitment; or
- c. Contractor failed to give the written notice as required by Paragraph 4.03.A.
- 3. If Owner and Contractor are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, a Claim may be made therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05. However, neither Owner or Engineer, or any of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors shall be liable to Contractor for any claims, costs, losses, or damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) sustained by Contractor on or in connection with any other project or anticipated project.

4.04 Underground Facilities

- A. Shown or Indicated: The information and data shown or indicated in the Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the Site is based on information and data furnished to Owner or Engineer by the owners of such Underground Facilities, including Owner, or by others. Unless it is otherwise expressly provided in the Supplementary Conditions:
 - 1. Owner and Engineer shall not be responsible for the accuracy or completeness of any such information or data provided by others; and
 - 2. the cost of all of the following will be included in the Contract Price, and Contractor shall have full responsibility for:
 - a. reviewing and checking all such information and data;
 - b. locating all Underground Facilities shown or indicated in the Contract Documents;
 - c. coordination of the Work with the owners of such Underground Facilities, including Owner, during construction; and
 - d. the safety and protection of all such Underground Facilities and repairing any damage thereto resulting from the Work.

B. Not Shown or Indicated:

1. If an Underground Facility is uncovered or revealed at or contiguous to the Site which was not shown or indicated, or not shown or indicated with reasonable accuracy in the Contract Documents, Contractor shall, promptly after becoming aware thereof and before further disturbing conditions affected thereby or performing any Work in connection therewith (except in an emergency as required by Paragraph 6.16.A), identify the owner of such Underground Facility and give written notice to that owner and to Owner and Engineer. Engineer will promptly review the Underground Facility and determine the extent, if any, to which a change is required in the Contract Documents to reflect and document the

- consequences of the existence or location of the Underground Facility. During such time, Contractor shall be responsible for the safety and protection of such Underground Facility.
- 2. If Engineer concludes that a change in the Contract Documents is required, a Work Change Directive or a Change Order will be issued to reflect and document such consequences. An equitable adjustment shall be made in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, to the extent that they are attributable to the existence or location of any Underground Facility that was not shown or indicated or not shown or indicated with reasonable accuracy in the Contract Documents and that Contractor did not know of and could not reasonably have been expected to be aware of or to have anticipated. If Owner and Contractor are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any such adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times, Owner or Contractor may make a Claim therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05.

4.05 Reference Points

A. Owner shall provide engineering surveys to establish reference points for construction which in Engineer's judgment are necessary to enable Contractor to proceed with the Work. Contractor shall be responsible for laying out the Work, shall protect and preserve the established reference points and property monuments, and shall make no changes or relocations without the prior written approval of Owner. Contractor shall report to Engineer whenever any reference point or property monument is lost or destroyed or requires relocation because of necessary changes in grades or locations, and shall be responsible for the accurate replacement or relocation of such reference points or property monuments by professionally qualified personnel.

4.06 Hazardous Environmental Condition at Site

- A. Reports and Drawings: The Supplementary Conditions identify those reports and drawings known to Owner relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions that have been identified at the Site.
- B. Limited Reliance by Contractor on Technical Data Authorized: Contractor may rely upon the accuracy of the "technical data" contained in such reports and drawings, but such reports and drawings are not Contract Documents. Such "technical data" is identified in the Supplementary Conditions. Except for such reliance on such "technical data," Contractor may not rely upon or make any claim against Owner or Engineer, or any of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors with respect to:
 - 1. the completeness of such reports and drawings for Contractor's purposes, including, but not limited to, any aspects of the means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures of construction to be employed by Contractor and safety precautions and programs incident thereto; or
 - 2. other data, interpretations, opinions and information contained in such reports or shown or indicated in such drawings; or
 - 3. any Contractor interpretation of or conclusion drawn from any "technical data" or any such other data, interpretations, opinions or information.

- C. Contractor shall not be responsible for any Hazardous Environmental Condition uncovered or revealed at the Site which was not shown or indicated in Drawings or Specifications or identified in the Contract Documents to be within the scope of the Work. Contractor shall be responsible for a Hazardous Environmental Condition created with any materials brought to the Site by Contractor, Subcontractors, Suppliers, or anyone else for whom Contractor is responsible.
- D. If Contractor encounters a Hazardous Environmental Condition or if Contractor or anyone for whom Contractor is responsible creates a Hazardous Environmental Condition, Contractor shall immediately: (i) secure or otherwise isolate such condition; (ii) stop all Work in connection with such condition and in any area affected thereby (except in an emergency as required by Paragraph 6.16.A); and (iii) notify Owner and Engineer (and promptly thereafter confirm such notice in writing). Owner shall promptly consult with Engineer concerning the necessity for Owner to retain a qualified expert to evaluate such condition or take corrective action, if any. Promptly after consulting with Engineer, Owner shall take such actions as are necessary to permit Owner to timely obtain required permits and provide Contractor the written notice required by Paragraph 4.06.E.
- E. Contractor shall not be required to resume Work in connection with such condition or in any affected area until after Owner has obtained any required permits related thereto and delivered written notice to Contractor: (i) specifying that such condition and any affected area is or has been rendered safe for the resumption of Work; or (ii) specifying any special conditions under which such Work may be resumed safely. If Owner and Contractor cannot agree as to entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, as a result of such Work stoppage or such special conditions under which Work is agreed to be resumed by Contractor, either party may make a Claim therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05.
- F. If after receipt of such written notice Contractor does not agree to resume such Work based on a reasonable belief it is unsafe, or does not agree to resume such Work under such special conditions, then Owner may order the portion of the Work that is in the area affected by such condition to be deleted from the Work. If Owner and Contractor cannot agree as to entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times as a result of deleting such portion of the Work, then either party may make a Claim therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05. Owner may have such deleted portion of the Work performed by Owner's own forces or others in accordance with Article 7.
- G. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Contractor, Subcontractors, and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to a Hazardous Environmental Condition, provided that such Hazardous Environmental Condition: (i) was not shown or indicated in the Drawings or Specifications or identified in the Contract Documents to be included within the scope of the Work, and (ii) was not created by Contractor or by anyone for whom Contractor is responsible. Nothing in this Paragraph 4.06.G shall obligate Owner to indemnify any individual or entity from and against the consequences of that individual's or entity's own negligence.

- H. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to a Hazardous Environmental Condition created by Contractor or by anyone for whom Contractor is responsible. Nothing in this Paragraph 4.06.H shall obligate Contractor to indemnify any individual or entity from and against the consequences of that individual's or entity's own negligence.
- I. The provisions of Paragraphs 4.02, 4.03, and 4.04 do not apply to a Hazardous Environmental Condition uncovered or revealed at the Site.

ARTICLE 5 – BONDS AND INSURANCE

5.01 Performance, Payment, and Other Bonds

- A. Contractor shall furnish performance and payment bonds, each in an amount at least equal to the Contract Price as security for the faithful performance and payment of all of Contractor's obligations under the Contract Documents. These bonds shall remain in effect until one year after the date when final payment becomes due or until completion of the correction period specified in Paragraph 13.07, whichever is later, except as provided otherwise by Laws or Regulations or by the Contract Documents. Contractor shall also furnish such other bonds as are required by the Contract Documents.
- B. All bonds shall be in the form prescribed by the Contract Documents except as provided otherwise by Laws or Regulations, and shall be executed by such sureties as are named in the list of "Companies Holding Certificates of Authority as Acceptable Sureties on Federal Bonds and as Acceptable Reinsuring Companies" as published in Circular 570 (amended) by the Financial Management Service, Surety Bond Branch, U.S. Department of the Treasury. All bonds signed by an agent or attorney-in-fact must be accompanied by a certified copy of that individual's authority to bind the surety. The evidence of authority shall show that it is effective on the date the agent or attorney-in-fact signed each bond.
- C. If the surety on any bond furnished by Contractor is declared bankrupt or becomes insolvent or its right to do business is terminated in any state where any part of the Project is located or it ceases to meet the requirements of Paragraph 5.01.B, Contractor shall promptly notify Owner and Engineer and shall, within 20 days after the event giving rise to such notification, provide another bond and surety, both of which shall comply with the requirements of Paragraphs 5.01.B and 5.02.

5.02 Licensed Sureties and Insurers

A. All bonds and insurance required by the Contract Documents to be purchased and maintained by Owner or Contractor shall be obtained from surety or insurance companies that are duly licensed or authorized in the jurisdiction in which the Project is located to issue bonds or insurance policies for the limits and coverages so required. Such surety and insurance companies shall also

meet such additional requirements and qualifications as may be provided in the Supplementary Conditions.

5.03 Certificates of Insurance

- A. Contractor shall deliver to Owner, with copies to each additional insured and loss payee identified in the Supplementary Conditions, certificates of insurance (and other evidence of insurance requested by Owner or any other additional insured) which Contractor is required to purchase and maintain.
- B. Owner shall deliver to Contractor, with copies to each additional insured and loss payee identified in the Supplementary Conditions, certificates of insurance (and other evidence of insurance requested by Contractor or any other additional insured) which Owner is required to purchase and maintain.
- C. Failure of Owner to demand such certificates or other evidence of Contractor's full compliance with these insurance requirements or failure of Owner to identify a deficiency in compliance from the evidence provided shall not be construed as a waiver of Contractor's obligation to maintain such insurance.
- D. Owner does not represent that insurance coverage and limits established in this Contract necessarily will be adequate to protect Contractor.
- E. The insurance and insurance limits required herein shall not be deemed as a limitation on Contractor's liability under the indemnities granted to Owner in the Contract Documents.

5.04 Contractor's Insurance

- A. Contractor shall purchase and maintain such insurance as is appropriate for the Work being performed and as will provide protection from claims set forth below which may arise out of or result from Contractor's performance of the Work and Contractor's other obligations under the Contract Documents, whether it is to be performed by Contractor, any Subcontractor or Supplier, or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of the Work, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable:
 - 1. claims under workers' compensation, disability benefits, and other similar employee benefit acts;
 - 2. claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or disease, or death of Contractor's employees;
 - 3. claims for damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease, or death of any person other than Contractor's employees;
 - 4. claims for damages insured by reasonably available personal injury liability coverage which are sustained:

- a. by any person as a result of an offense directly or indirectly related to the employment of such person by Contractor, or
- b. by any other person for any other reason;
- 5. claims for damages, other than to the Work itself, because of injury to or destruction of tangible property wherever located, including loss of use resulting therefrom; and
- 6. claims for damages because of bodily injury or death of any person or property damage arising out of the ownership, maintenance or use of any motor vehicle.

B. The policies of insurance required by this Paragraph 5.04 shall:

- 1. with respect to insurance required by Paragraphs 5.04.A.3 through 5.04.A.6 inclusive, be written on an occurrence basis, include as additional insureds (subject to any customary exclusion regarding professional liability) Owner and Engineer, and any other individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions, all of whom shall be listed as additional insureds, and include coverage for the respective officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of all such additional insureds, and the insurance afforded to these additional insureds shall provide primary coverage for all claims covered thereby;
- include at least the specific coverages and be written for not less than the limits of liability provided in the Supplementary Conditions or required by Laws or Regulations, whichever is greater;
- 3. include contractual liability insurance covering Contractor's indemnity obligations under Paragraphs 6.11 and 6.20;
- 4. contain a provision or endorsement that the coverage afforded will not be canceled, materially changed or renewal refused until at least 30 days prior written notice has been given to Owner and Contractor and to each other additional insured identified in the Supplementary Conditions to whom a certificate of insurance has been issued (and the certificates of insurance furnished by the Contractor pursuant to Paragraph 5.03 will so provide);
- 5. remain in effect at least until final payment and at all times thereafter when Contractor may be correcting, removing, or replacing defective Work in accordance with Paragraph 13.07; and
- 6. include completed operations coverage:
 - a. Such insurance shall remain in effect for two years after final payment.
 - b. Contractor shall furnish Owner and each other additional insured identified in the Supplementary Conditions, to whom a certificate of insurance has been issued, evidence satisfactory to Owner and any such additional insured of continuation of such insurance at final payment and one year thereafter.

5.05 Owner's Liability Insurance

A. In addition to the insurance required to be provided by Contractor under Paragraph 5.04, Owner, at Owner's option, may purchase and maintain at Owner's expense Owner's own liability insurance as will protect Owner against claims which may arise from operations under the Contract Documents.

5.06 Owner's Property Insurance

- A. Unless otherwise provided in the Supplementary Conditions, Owner shall purchase and maintain property insurance upon the Work at the Site in the amount of the full replacement cost thereof (subject to such deductible amounts as may be provided in the Supplementary Conditions or required by Laws and Regulations). This insurance shall:
 - include the interests of Owner, Contractor, Subcontractors, and Engineer, and any other individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them, each of whom is deemed to have an insurable interest and shall be listed as a loss payee;
 - 2. be written on a Builder's Risk "all-risk" policy form that shall at least include insurance for physical loss or damage to the Work, temporary buildings, falsework, and materials and equipment in transit, and shall insure against at least the following perils or causes of loss: fire, lightning, extended coverage, theft, vandalism and malicious mischief, earthquake, collapse, debris removal, demolition occasioned by enforcement of Laws and Regulations, water damage (other than that caused by flood), and such other perils or causes of loss as may be specifically required by the Supplementary Conditions.
 - 3. include expenses incurred in the repair or replacement of any insured property (including but not limited to fees and charges of engineers and architects);
 - 4. cover materials and equipment stored at the Site or at another location that was agreed to in writing by Owner prior to being incorporated in the Work, provided that such materials and equipment have been included in an Application for Payment recommended by Engineer;
 - 5. allow for partial utilization of the Work by Owner;
 - 6. include testing and startup; and
 - 7. be maintained in effect until final payment is made unless otherwise agreed to in writing by Owner, Contractor, and Engineer with 30 days written notice to each other loss payee to whom a certificate of insurance has been issued.
- B. Owner shall purchase and maintain such equipment breakdown insurance or additional property insurance as may be required by the Supplementary Conditions or Laws and Regulations which will include the interests of Owner, Contractor, Subcontractors, and Engineer, and any other individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions, and the officers, directors,

- members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them, each of whom is deemed to have an insurable interest and shall be listed as a loss payee.
- C. All the policies of insurance (and the certificates or other evidence thereof) required to be purchased and maintained in accordance with this Paragraph 5.06 will contain a provision or endorsement that the coverage afforded will not be canceled or materially changed or renewal refused until at least 30 days prior written notice has been given to Owner and Contractor and to each other loss payee to whom a certificate of insurance has been issued and will contain waiver provisions in accordance with Paragraph 5.07.
- D. Owner shall not be responsible for purchasing and maintaining any property insurance specified in this Paragraph 5.06 to protect the interests of Contractor, Subcontractors, or others in the Work to the extent of any deductible amounts that are identified in the Supplementary Conditions. The risk of loss within such identified deductible amount will be borne by Contractor, Subcontractors, or others suffering any such loss, and if any of them wishes property insurance coverage within the limits of such amounts, each may purchase and maintain it at the purchaser's own expense.
- E. If Contractor requests in writing that other special insurance be included in the property insurance policies provided under this Paragraph 5.06, Owner shall, if possible, include such insurance, and the cost thereof will be charged to Contractor by appropriate Change Order. Prior to commencement of the Work at the Site, Owner shall in writing advise Contractor whether or not such other insurance has been procured by Owner.

5.07 Waiver of Rights

- A. Owner and Contractor intend that all policies purchased in accordance with Paragraph 5.06 will protect Owner, Contractor, Subcontractors, and Engineer, and all other individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions as loss payees (and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them) in such policies and will provide primary coverage for all losses and damages caused by the perils or causes of loss covered thereby. All such policies shall contain provisions to the effect that in the event of payment of any loss or damage the insurers will have no rights of recovery against any of the insureds or loss payees thereunder. Owner and Contractor waive all rights against each other and their respective officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them for all losses and damages caused by, arising out of or resulting from any of the perils or causes of loss covered by such policies and any other property insurance applicable to the Work; and, in addition, waive all such rights against Subcontractors and Engineer, and all other individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions as loss payees (and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them) under such policies for losses and damages so caused. None of the above waivers shall extend to the rights that any party making such waiver may have to the proceeds of insurance held by Owner as trustee or otherwise payable under any policy so issued.
- B. Owner waives all rights against Contractor, Subcontractors, and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them for:

- 1. loss due to business interruption, loss of use, or other consequential loss extending beyond direct physical loss or damage to Owner's property or the Work caused by, arising out of, or resulting from fire or other perils whether or not insured by Owner; and
- 2. loss or damage to the completed Project or part thereof caused by, arising out of, or resulting from fire or other insured peril or cause of loss covered by any property insurance maintained on the completed Project or part thereof by Owner during partial utilization pursuant to Paragraph 14.05, after Substantial Completion pursuant to Paragraph 14.04, or after final payment pursuant to Paragraph 14.07.
- C. Any insurance policy maintained by Owner covering any loss, damage or consequential loss referred to in Paragraph 5.07.B shall contain provisions to the effect that in the event of payment of any such loss, damage, or consequential loss, the insurers will have no rights of recovery against Contractor, Subcontractors, or Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them.

5.08 Receipt and Application of Insurance Proceeds

- A. Any insured loss under the policies of insurance required by Paragraph 5.06 will be adjusted with Owner and made payable to Owner as fiduciary for the loss payees, as their interests may appear, subject to the requirements of any applicable mortgage clause and of Paragraph 5.08.B. Owner shall deposit in a separate account any money so received and shall distribute it in accordance with such agreement as the parties in interest may reach. If no other special agreement is reached, the damaged Work shall be repaired or replaced, the moneys so received applied on account thereof, and the Work and the cost thereof covered by an appropriate Change Order.
- B. Owner as fiduciary shall have power to adjust and settle any loss with the insurers unless one of the parties in interest shall object in writing within 15 days after the occurrence of loss to Owner's exercise of this power. If such objection be made, Owner as fiduciary shall make settlement with the insurers in accordance with such agreement as the parties in interest may reach. If no such agreement among the parties in interest is reached, Owner as fiduciary shall adjust and settle the loss with the insurers and, if required in writing by any party in interest, Owner as fiduciary shall give bond for the proper performance of such duties.

5.09 Acceptance of Bonds and Insurance; Option to Replace

A. If either Owner or Contractor has any objection to the coverage afforded by or other provisions of the bonds or insurance required to be purchased and maintained by the other party in accordance with Article 5 on the basis of non-conformance with the Contract Documents, the objecting party shall so notify the other party in writing within 10 days after receipt of the certificates (or other evidence requested) required by Paragraph 2.01.B. Owner and Contractor shall each provide to the other such additional information in respect of insurance provided as the other may reasonably request. If either party does not purchase or maintain all of the bonds and insurance required of such party by the Contract Documents, such party shall notify the other party in writing of such failure to purchase prior to the start of the Work, or of such failure to maintain prior to any change in the required coverage. Without prejudice to any other right or remedy, the other party may elect to obtain equivalent bonds or insurance to protect such other party's

interests at the expense of the party who was required to provide such coverage, and a Change Order shall be issued to adjust the Contract Price accordingly.

5.10 Partial Utilization, Acknowledgment of Property Insurer

A. If Owner finds it necessary to occupy or use a portion or portions of the Work prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work as provided in Paragraph 14.05, no such use or occupancy shall commence before the insurers providing the property insurance pursuant to Paragraph 5.06 have acknowledged notice thereof and in writing effected any changes in coverage necessitated thereby. The insurers providing the property insurance shall consent by endorsement on the policy or policies, but the property insurance shall not be canceled or permitted to lapse on account of any such partial use or occupancy.

ARTICLE 6 – CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES

6.01 Supervision and Superintendence

- A. Contractor shall supervise, inspect, and direct the Work competently and efficiently, devoting such attention thereto and applying such skills and expertise as may be necessary to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. Contractor shall be solely responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction. Contractor shall not be responsible for the negligence of Owner or Engineer in the design or specification of a specific means, method, technique, sequence, or procedure of construction which is shown or indicated in and expressly required by the Contract Documents.
- B. At all times during the progress of the Work, Contractor shall assign a competent resident superintendent who shall not be replaced without written notice to Owner and Engineer except under extraordinary circumstances.

6.02 Labor; Working Hours

- A. Contractor shall provide competent, suitably qualified personnel to survey and lay out the Work and perform construction as required by the Contract Documents. Contractor shall at all times maintain good discipline and order at the Site.
- B. Except as otherwise required for the safety or protection of persons or the Work or property at the Site or adjacent thereto, and except as otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, all Work at the Site shall be performed during regular working hours. Contractor will not permit the performance of Work on a Saturday, Sunday, or any legal holiday without Owner's written consent (which will not be unreasonably withheld) given after prior written notice to Engineer.

6.03 Services, Materials, and Equipment

A. Unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents, Contractor shall provide and assume full responsibility for all services, materials, equipment, labor, transportation, construction equipment and machinery, tools, appliances, fuel, power, light, heat, telephone, water, sanitary facilities, temporary facilities, and all other facilities and incidentals necessary for the performance, testing, start-up, and completion of the Work.

- B. All materials and equipment incorporated into the Work shall be as specified or, if not specified, shall be of good quality and new, except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents. All special warranties and guarantees required by the Specifications shall expressly run to the benefit of Owner. If required by Engineer, Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence (including reports of required tests) as to the source, kind, and quality of materials and equipment.
- C. All materials and equipment shall be stored, applied, installed, connected, erected, protected, used, cleaned, and conditioned in accordance with instructions of the applicable Supplier, except as otherwise may be provided in the Contract Documents.

6.04 Progress Schedule

- A. Contractor shall adhere to the Progress Schedule established in accordance with Paragraph 2.07 as it may be adjusted from time to time as provided below.
 - 1. Contractor shall submit to Engineer for acceptance (to the extent indicated in Paragraph 2.07) proposed adjustments in the Progress Schedule that will not result in changing the Contract Times. Such adjustments will comply with any provisions of the General Requirements applicable thereto.
 - 2. Proposed adjustments in the Progress Schedule that will change the Contract Times shall be submitted in accordance with the requirements of Article 12. Adjustments in Contract Times may only be made by a Change Order.

6.05 Substitutes and "Or-Equals"

- A. Whenever an item of material or equipment is specified or described in the Contract Documents by using the name of a proprietary item or the name of a particular Supplier, the specification or description is intended to establish the type, function, appearance, and quality required. Unless the specification or description contains or is followed by words reading that no like, equivalent, or "or-equal" item or no substitution is permitted, other items of material or equipment or material or equipment of other Suppliers may be submitted to Engineer for review under the circumstances described below.
 - 1. "Or-Equal" Items: If in Engineer's sole discretion an item of material or equipment proposed by Contractor is functionally equal to that named and sufficiently similar so that no change in related Work will be required, it may be considered by Engineer as an "or-equal" item, in which case review and approval of the proposed item may, in Engineer's sole discretion, be accomplished without compliance with some or all of the requirements for approval of proposed substitute items. For the purposes of this Paragraph 6.05.A.1, a proposed item of material or equipment will be considered functionally equal to an item so named if:
 - a. in the exercise of reasonable judgment Engineer determines that:
 - 1) it is at least equal in materials of construction, quality, durability, appearance, strength, and design characteristics;

- 2) it will reliably perform at least equally well the function and achieve the results imposed by the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole; and
- 3) it has a proven record of performance and availability of responsive service.
- b. Contractor certifies that, if approved and incorporated into the Work:
 - 1) there will be no increase in cost to the Owner or increase in Contract Times; and
 - 2) it will conform substantially to the detailed requirements of the item named in the Contract Documents.

2. Substitute Items:

- a. If in Engineer's sole discretion an item of material or equipment proposed by Contractor does not qualify as an "or-equal" item under Paragraph 6.05.A.1, it will be considered a proposed substitute item.
- b. Contractor shall submit sufficient information as provided below to allow Engineer to determine if the item of material or equipment proposed is essentially equivalent to that named and an acceptable substitute therefor. Requests for review of proposed substitute items of material or equipment will not be accepted by Engineer from anyone other than Contractor.
- c. The requirements for review by Engineer will be as set forth in Paragraph 6.05.A.2.d, as supplemented by the General Requirements, and as Engineer may decide is appropriate under the circumstances.
- d. Contractor shall make written application to Engineer for review of a proposed substitute item of material or equipment that Contractor seeks to furnish or use. The application:
 - 1) shall certify that the proposed substitute item will:
 - a) perform adequately the functions and achieve the results called for by the general design,
 - b) be similar in substance to that specified, and
 - c) be suited to the same use as that specified;
 - 2) will state:
 - a) the extent, if any, to which the use of the proposed substitute item will prejudice Contractor's achievement of Substantial Completion on time,
 - b) whether use of the proposed substitute item in the Work will require a change in any of the Contract Documents (or in the provisions of any other direct contract with Owner for other work on the Project) to adapt the design to the proposed substitute item, and

- c) whether incorporation or use of the proposed substitute item in connection with the Work is subject to payment of any license fee or royalty;
- 3) will identify:
 - a) all variations of the proposed substitute item from that specified, and
 - b) available engineering, sales, maintenance, repair, and replacement services; and
- 4) shall contain an itemized estimate of all costs or credits that will result directly or indirectly from use of such substitute item, including costs of redesign and claims of other contractors affected by any resulting change.
- B. Substitute Construction Methods or Procedures: If a specific means, method, technique, sequence, or procedure of construction is expressly required by the Contract Documents, Contractor may furnish or utilize a substitute means, method, technique, sequence, or procedure of construction approved by Engineer. Contractor shall submit sufficient information to allow Engineer, in Engineer's sole discretion, to determine that the substitute proposed is equivalent to that expressly called for by the Contract Documents. The requirements for review by Engineer will be similar to those provided in Paragraph 6.05.A.2.
- C. Engineer's Evaluation: Engineer will be allowed a reasonable time within which to evaluate each proposal or submittal made pursuant to Paragraphs 6.05.A and 6.05.B. Engineer may require Contractor to furnish additional data about the proposed substitute item. Engineer will be the sole judge of acceptability. No "or equal" or substitute will be ordered, installed or utilized until Engineer's review is complete, which will be evidenced by a Change Order in the case of a substitute and an approved Shop Drawing for an "or equal." Engineer will advise Contractor in writing of any negative determination.
- D. Special Guarantee: Owner may require Contractor to furnish at Contractor's expense a special performance guarantee or other surety with respect to any substitute.
- E. Engineer's Cost Reimbursement: Engineer will record Engineer's costs in evaluating a substitute proposed or submitted by Contractor pursuant to Paragraphs 6.05.A.2 and 6.05.B. Whether or not Engineer approves a substitute so proposed or submitted by Contractor, Contractor shall reimburse Owner for the reasonable charges of Engineer for evaluating each such proposed substitute. Contractor shall also reimburse Owner for the reasonable charges of Engineer for making changes in the Contract Documents (or in the provisions of any other direct contract with Owner) resulting from the acceptance of each proposed substitute.
- F. *Contractor's Expense*: Contractor shall provide all data in support of any proposed substitute or "or-equal" at Contractor's expense.
- 6.06 Concerning Subcontractors, Suppliers, and Others
 - A. Contractor shall not employ any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity (including those acceptable to Owner as indicated in Paragraph 6.06.B), whether initially or as a replacement, against whom Owner may have reasonable objection. Contractor shall not be

- required to employ any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity to furnish or perform any of the Work against whom Contractor has reasonable objection.
- B. If the Supplementary Conditions require the identity of certain Subcontractors, Suppliers, or other individuals or entities to be submitted to Owner in advance for acceptance by Owner by a specified date prior to the Effective Date of the Agreement, and if Contractor has submitted a list thereof in accordance with the Supplementary Conditions, Owner's acceptance (either in writing or by failing to make written objection thereto by the date indicated for acceptance or objection in the Bidding Documents or the Contract Documents) of any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity so identified may be revoked on the basis of reasonable objection after due investigation. Contractor shall submit an acceptable replacement for the rejected Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity, and the Contract Price will be adjusted by the difference in the cost occasioned by such replacement, and an appropriate Change Order will be issued. No acceptance by Owner of any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity, whether initially or as a replacement, shall constitute a waiver of any right of Owner or Engineer to reject defective Work.
- C. Contractor shall be fully responsible to Owner and Engineer for all acts and omissions of the Subcontractors, Suppliers, and other individuals or entities performing or furnishing any of the Work just as Contractor is responsible for Contractor's own acts and omissions. Nothing in the Contract Documents:
 - 1. shall create for the benefit of any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity any contractual relationship between Owner or Engineer and any such Subcontractor, Supplier or other individual or entity; nor
 - 2. shall create any obligation on the part of Owner or Engineer to pay or to see to the payment of any moneys due any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity except as may otherwise be required by Laws and Regulations.
- D. Contractor shall be solely responsible for scheduling and coordinating the Work of Subcontractors, Suppliers, and other individuals or entities performing or furnishing any of the Work under a direct or indirect contract with Contractor.
- E. Contractor shall require all Subcontractors, Suppliers, and such other individuals or entities performing or furnishing any of the Work to communicate with Engineer through Contractor.
- F. The divisions and sections of the Specifications and the identifications of any Drawings shall not control Contractor in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or Suppliers or delineating the Work to be performed by any specific trade.
- G. All Work performed for Contractor by a Subcontractor or Supplier will be pursuant to an appropriate agreement between Contractor and the Subcontractor or Supplier which specifically binds the Subcontractor or Supplier to the applicable terms and conditions of the Contract Documents for the benefit of Owner and Engineer. Whenever any such agreement is with a Subcontractor or Supplier who is listed as a loss payee on the property insurance provided in Paragraph 5.06, the agreement between the Contractor and the Subcontractor or Supplier will contain provisions whereby the Subcontractor or Supplier waives all rights against Owner,

Contractor, Engineer, and all other individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions to be listed as insureds or loss payees (and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them) for all losses and damages caused by, arising out of, relating to, or resulting from any of the perils or causes of loss covered by such policies and any other property insurance applicable to the Work. If the insurers on any such policies require separate waiver forms to be signed by any Subcontractor or Supplier, Contractor will obtain the same.

6.07 Patent Fees and Royalties

- A. Contractor shall pay all license fees and royalties and assume all costs incident to the use in the performance of the Work or the incorporation in the Work of any invention, design, process, product, or device which is the subject of patent rights or copyrights held by others. If a particular invention, design, process, product, or device is specified in the Contract Documents for use in the performance of the Work and if, to the actual knowledge of Owner or Engineer, its use is subject to patent rights or copyrights calling for the payment of any license fee or royalty to others, the existence of such rights shall be disclosed by Owner in the Contract Documents.
- B. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Contractor, and its officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to any infringement of patent rights or copyrights incident to the use in the performance of the Work or resulting from the incorporation in the Work of any invention, design, process, product, or device specified in the Contract Documents, but not identified as being subject to payment of any license fee or royalty to others required by patent rights or copyrights.
- C. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to any infringement of patent rights or copyrights incident to the use in the performance of the Work or resulting from the incorporation in the Work of any invention, design, process, product, or device not specified in the Contract Documents.

6.08 Permits

A. Unless otherwise provided in the Supplementary Conditions, Contractor shall obtain and pay for all construction permits and licenses. Owner shall assist Contractor, when necessary, in obtaining such permits and licenses. Contractor shall pay all governmental charges and inspection fees necessary for the prosecution of the Work which are applicable at the time of opening of Bids, or, if there are no Bids, on the Effective Date of the Agreement. Owner shall pay all charges of utility owners for connections for providing permanent service to the Work.

6.09 Laws and Regulations

- A. Contractor shall give all notices required by and shall comply with all Laws and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work. Except where otherwise expressly required by applicable Laws and Regulations, neither Owner nor Engineer shall be responsible for monitoring Contractor's compliance with any Laws or Regulations.
- B. If Contractor performs any Work knowing or having reason to know that it is contrary to Laws or Regulations, Contractor shall bear all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to such Work. However, it shall not be Contractor's responsibility to make certain that the Specifications and Drawings are in accordance with Laws and Regulations, but this shall not relieve Contractor of Contractor's obligations under Paragraph 3.03.
- C. Changes in Laws or Regulations not known at the time of opening of Bids (or, on the Effective Date of the Agreement if there were no Bids) having an effect on the cost or time of performance of the Work shall be the subject of an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times. If Owner and Contractor are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any such adjustment, a Claim may be made therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05.

6.10 Taxes

A. Contractor shall pay all sales, consumer, use, and other similar taxes required to be paid by Contractor in accordance with the Laws and Regulations of the place of the Project which are applicable during the performance of the Work.

6.11 Use of Site and Other Areas

A. Limitation on Use of Site and Other Areas:

- Contractor shall confine construction equipment, the storage of materials and equipment, and
 the operations of workers to the Site and other areas permitted by Laws and Regulations, and
 shall not unreasonably encumber the Site and other areas with construction equipment or
 other materials or equipment. Contractor shall assume full responsibility for any damage to
 any such land or area, or to the owner or occupant thereof, or of any adjacent land or areas
 resulting from the performance of the Work.
- 2. Should any claim be made by any such owner or occupant because of the performance of the Work, Contractor shall promptly settle with such other party by negotiation or otherwise resolve the claim by arbitration or other dispute resolution proceeding or at law.
- 3. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to any claim or action, legal or equitable, brought

by any such owner or occupant against Owner, Engineer, or any other party indemnified hereunder to the extent caused by or based upon Contractor's performance of the Work.

- B. Removal of Debris During Performance of the Work: During the progress of the Work Contractor shall keep the Site and other areas free from accumulations of waste materials, rubbish, and other debris. Removal and disposal of such waste materials, rubbish, and other debris shall conform to applicable Laws and Regulations.
- C. Cleaning: Prior to Substantial Completion of the Work Contractor shall clean the Site and the Work and make it ready for utilization by Owner. At the completion of the Work Contractor shall remove from the Site all tools, appliances, construction equipment and machinery, and surplus materials and shall restore to original condition all property not designated for alteration by the Contract Documents.
- D. Loading Structures: Contractor shall not load nor permit any part of any structure to be loaded in any manner that will endanger the structure, nor shall Contractor subject any part of the Work or adjacent property to stresses or pressures that will endanger it.

6.12 Record Documents

A. Contractor shall maintain in a safe place at the Site one record copy of all Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Change Orders, Work Change Directives, Field Orders, and written interpretations and clarifications in good order and annotated to show changes made during construction. These record documents together with all approved Samples and a counterpart of all approved Shop Drawings will be available to Engineer for reference. Upon completion of the Work, these record documents, Samples, and Shop Drawings will be delivered to Engineer for Owner.

6.13 Safety and Protection

- A. Contractor shall be solely responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work. Such responsibility does not relieve Subcontractors of their responsibility for the safety of persons or property in the performance of their work, nor for compliance with applicable safety Laws and Regulations. Contractor shall take all necessary precautions for the safety of, and shall provide the necessary protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to:
 - 1. all persons on the Site or who may be affected by the Work;
 - 2. all the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the Site; and
 - 3. other property at the Site or adjacent thereto, including trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, structures, utilities, and Underground Facilities not designated for removal, relocation, or replacement in the course of construction.
- B. Contractor shall comply with all applicable Laws and Regulations relating to the safety of persons or property, or to the protection of persons or property from damage, injury, or loss; and

shall erect and maintain all necessary safeguards for such safety and protection. Contractor shall notify owners of adjacent property and of Underground Facilities and other utility owners when prosecution of the Work may affect them, and shall cooperate with them in the protection, removal, relocation, and replacement of their property.

- C. Contractor shall comply with the applicable requirements of Owner's safety programs, if any. The Supplementary Conditions identify any Owner's safety programs that are applicable to the Work.
- D. Contractor shall inform Owner and Engineer of the specific requirements of Contractor's safety program with which Owner's and Engineer's employees and representatives must comply while at the Site.
- E. All damage, injury, or loss to any property referred to in Paragraph 6.13.A.2 or 6.13.A.3 caused, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, by Contractor, any Subcontractor, Supplier, or any other individual or entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of the Work, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, shall be remedied by Contractor (except damage or loss attributable to the fault of Drawings or Specifications or to the acts or omissions of Owner or Engineer or anyone employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, and not attributable, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, to the fault or negligence of Contractor or any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them).
- F. Contractor's duties and responsibilities for safety and for protection of the Work shall continue until such time as all the Work is completed and Engineer has issued a notice to Owner and Contractor in accordance with Paragraph 14.07.B that the Work is acceptable (except as otherwise expressly provided in connection with Substantial Completion).

6.14 Safety Representative

A. Contractor shall designate a qualified and experienced safety representative at the Site whose duties and responsibilities shall be the prevention of accidents and the maintaining and supervising of safety precautions and programs.

6.15 Hazard Communication Programs

A. Contractor shall be responsible for coordinating any exchange of material safety data sheets or other hazard communication information required to be made available to or exchanged between or among employers at the Site in accordance with Laws or Regulations.

6.16 Emergencies

A. In emergencies affecting the safety or protection of persons or the Work or property at the Site or adjacent thereto, Contractor is obligated to act to prevent threatened damage, injury, or loss. Contractor shall give Engineer prompt written notice if Contractor believes that any significant changes in the Work or variations from the Contract Documents have been caused thereby or are required as a result thereof. If Engineer determines that a change in the Contract Documents is

required because of the action taken by Contractor in response to such an emergency, a Work Change Directive or Change Order will be issued.

6.17 Shop Drawings and Samples

A. Contractor shall submit Shop Drawings and Samples to Engineer for review and approval in accordance with the accepted Schedule of Submittals (as required by Paragraph 2.07). Each submittal will be identified as Engineer may require.

1. Shop Drawings:

- a. Submit number of copies specified in the General Requirements.
- b. Data shown on the Shop Drawings will be complete with respect to quantities, dimensions, specified performance and design criteria, materials, and similar data to show Engineer the services, materials, and equipment Contractor proposes to provide and to enable Engineer to review the information for the limited purposes required by Paragraph 6.17.D.

2. Samples:

- a. Submit number of Samples specified in the Specifications.
- b. Clearly identify each Sample as to material, Supplier, pertinent data such as catalog numbers, the use for which intended and other data as Engineer may require to enable Engineer to review the submittal for the limited purposes required by Paragraph 6.17.D.
- B. Where a Shop Drawing or Sample is required by the Contract Documents or the Schedule of Submittals, any related Work performed prior to Engineer's review and approval of the pertinent submittal will be at the sole expense and responsibility of Contractor.

C. Submittal Procedures:

- 1. Before submitting each Shop Drawing or Sample, Contractor shall have:
 - a. reviewed and coordinated each Shop Drawing or Sample with other Shop Drawings and Samples and with the requirements of the Work and the Contract Documents;
 - b. determined and verified all field measurements, quantities, dimensions, specified performance and design criteria, installation requirements, materials, catalog numbers, and similar information with respect thereto;
 - c. determined and verified the suitability of all materials offered with respect to the indicated application, fabrication, shipping, handling, storage, assembly, and installation pertaining to the performance of the Work; and
 - d. determined and verified all information relative to Contractor's responsibilities for means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction, and safety precautions and programs incident thereto.

- 2. Each submittal shall bear a stamp or specific written certification that Contractor has satisfied Contractor's obligations under the Contract Documents with respect to Contractor's review and approval of that submittal.
- 3. With each submittal, Contractor shall give Engineer specific written notice of any variations that the Shop Drawing or Sample may have from the requirements of the Contract Documents. This notice shall be both a written communication separate from the Shop Drawings or Sample submittal; and, in addition, by a specific notation made on each Shop Drawing or Sample submitted to Engineer for review and approval of each such variation.

D. Engineer's Review:

- Engineer will provide timely review of Shop Drawings and Samples in accordance with the Schedule of Submittals acceptable to Engineer. Engineer's review and approval will be only to determine if the items covered by the submittals will, after installation or incorporation in the Work, conform to the information given in the Contract Documents and be compatible with the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated by the Contract Documents.
- 2. Engineer's review and approval will not extend to means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction (except where a particular means, method, technique, sequence, or procedure of construction is specifically and expressly called for by the Contract Documents) or to safety precautions or programs incident thereto. The review and approval of a separate item as such will not indicate approval of the assembly in which the item functions.
- 3. Engineer's review and approval shall not relieve Contractor from responsibility for any variation from the requirements of the Contract Documents unless Contractor has complied with the requirements of Paragraph 6.17.C.3 and Engineer has given written approval of each such variation by specific written notation thereof incorporated in or accompanying the Shop Drawing or Sample. Engineer's review and approval shall not relieve Contractor from responsibility for complying with the requirements of Paragraph 6.17.C.1.

E. Resubmittal Procedures:

 Contractor shall make corrections required by Engineer and shall return the required number of corrected copies of Shop Drawings and submit, as required, new Samples for review and approval. Contractor shall direct specific attention in writing to revisions other than the corrections called for by Engineer on previous submittals.

6.18 Continuing the Work

A. Contractor shall carry on the Work and adhere to the Progress Schedule during all disputes or disagreements with Owner. No Work shall be delayed or postponed pending resolution of any disputes or disagreements, except as permitted by Paragraph 15.04 or as Owner and Contractor may otherwise agree in writing.

6.19 Contractor's General Warranty and Guarantee

- A. Contractor warrants and guarantees to Owner that all Work will be in accordance with the Contract Documents and will not be defective. Engineer and its officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors shall be entitled to rely on representation of Contractor's warranty and guarantee.
- B. Contractor's warranty and guarantee hereunder excludes defects or damage caused by:
 - 1. abuse, modification, or improper maintenance or operation by persons other than Contractor, Subcontractors, Suppliers, or any other individual or entity for whom Contractor is responsible; or
 - 2. normal wear and tear under normal usage.
- C. Contractor's obligation to perform and complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents shall be absolute. None of the following will constitute an acceptance of Work that is not in accordance with the Contract Documents or a release of Contractor's obligation to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents:
 - 1. observations by Engineer;
 - 2. recommendation by Engineer or payment by Owner of any progress or final payment;
 - 3. the issuance of a certificate of Substantial Completion by Engineer or any payment related thereto by Owner;
 - 4. use or occupancy of the Work or any part thereof by Owner;
 - 5. any review and approval of a Shop Drawing or Sample submittal or the issuance of a notice of acceptability by Engineer;
 - 6. any inspection, test, or approval by others; or
 - 7. any correction of defective Work by Owner.

6.20 Indemnification

A. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to the performance of the Work, provided that any such claim, cost, loss, or damage is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), including the loss of use resulting therefrom but only to the extent caused by any negligent act or omission of Contractor, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, or any individual or entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of the Work or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable.

- B. In any and all claims against Owner or Engineer or any of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors by any employee (or the survivor or personal representative of such employee) of Contractor, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, or any individual or entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of the Work, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation under Paragraph 6.20.A shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for Contractor or any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity under workers' compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts.
- C. The indemnification obligations of Contractor under Paragraph 6.20.A shall not extend to the liability of Engineer and Engineer's officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors arising out of:
 - 1. the preparation or approval of, or the failure to prepare or approve maps, Drawings, opinions, reports, surveys, Change Orders, designs, or Specifications; or
 - 2. giving directions or instructions, or failing to give them, if that is the primary cause of the injury or damage.

6.21 Delegation of Professional Design Services

- A. Contractor will not be required to provide professional design services unless such services are specifically required by the Contract Documents for a portion of the Work or unless such services are required to carry out Contractor's responsibilities for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures. Contractor shall not be required to provide professional services in violation of applicable law.
- B. If professional design services or certifications by a design professional related to systems, materials or equipment are specifically required of Contractor by the Contract Documents, Owner and Engineer will specify all performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. Contractor shall cause such services or certifications to be provided by a properly licensed professional, whose signature and seal shall appear on all drawings, calculations, specifications, certifications, Shop Drawings and other submittals prepared by such professional. Shop Drawings and other submittals related to the Work designed or certified by such professional, if prepared by others, shall bear such professional's written approval when submitted to Engineer.
- C. Owner and Engineer shall be entitled to rely upon the adequacy, accuracy and completeness of the services, certifications or approvals performed by such design professionals, provided Owner and Engineer have specified to Contractor all performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy.
- D. Pursuant to this Paragraph 6.21, Engineer's review and approval of design calculations and design drawings will be only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with performance and design criteria given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. Engineer's review and approval of Shop Drawings and other submittals (except design calculations and design drawings) will be only for the purpose stated in Paragraph 6.17.D.1.

E. Contractor shall not be responsible for the adequacy of the performance or design criteria required by the Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 7 – OTHER WORK AT THE SITE

7.01 Related Work at Site

- A. Owner may perform other work related to the Project at the Site with Owner's employees, or through other direct contracts therefor, or have other work performed by utility owners. If such other work is not noted in the Contract Documents, then:
 - 1. written notice thereof will be given to Contractor prior to starting any such other work; and
 - 2. if Owner and Contractor are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times that should be allowed as a result of such other work, a Claim may be made therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05.
- B. Contractor shall afford each other contractor who is a party to such a direct contract, each utility owner, and Owner, if Owner is performing other work with Owner's employees, proper and safe access to the Site, provide a reasonable opportunity for the introduction and storage of materials and equipment and the execution of such other work, and properly coordinate the Work with theirs. Contractor shall do all cutting, fitting, and patching of the Work that may be required to properly connect or otherwise make its several parts come together and properly integrate with such other work. Contractor shall not endanger any work of others by cutting, excavating, or otherwise altering their work and will only cut or alter their work with the written consent of Engineer and the others whose work will be affected. The duties and responsibilities of Contractor under this Paragraph are for the benefit of such utility owners and other contractors to the extent that there are comparable provisions for the benefit of Contractor in said direct contracts between Owner and such utility owners and other contractors.
- C. If the proper execution or results of any part of Contractor's Work depends upon work performed by others under this Article 7, Contractor shall inspect such other work and promptly report to Engineer in writing any delays, defects, or deficiencies in such other work that render it unavailable or unsuitable for the proper execution and results of Contractor's Work. Contractor's failure to so report will constitute an acceptance of such other work as fit and proper for integration with Contractor's Work except for latent defects and deficiencies in such other work.

7.02 Coordination

- A. If Owner intends to contract with others for the performance of other work on the Project at the Site, the following will be set forth in Supplementary Conditions:
 - 1. the individual or entity who will have authority and responsibility for coordination of the activities among the various contractors will be identified;
 - 2. the specific matters to be covered by such authority and responsibility will be itemized; and
 - 3. the extent of such authority and responsibilities will be provided.

B. Unless otherwise provided in the Supplementary Conditions, Owner shall have sole authority and responsibility for such coordination.

7.03 Legal Relationships

- A. Paragraphs 7.01.A and 7.02 are not applicable for utilities not under the control of Owner.
- B. Each other direct contract of Owner under Paragraph 7.01.A shall provide that the other contractor is liable to Owner and Contractor for the reasonable direct delay and disruption costs incurred by Contractor as a result of the other contractor's wrongful actions or inactions.
- C. Contractor shall be liable to Owner and any other contractor under direct contract to Owner for the reasonable direct delay and disruption costs incurred by such other contractor as a result of Contractor's wrongful action or inactions.

ARTICLE 8 – OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

- 8.01 Communications to Contractor
 - A. Except as otherwise provided in these General Conditions, Owner shall issue all communications to Contractor through Engineer.
- 8.02 Replacement of Engineer
 - A. In case of termination of the employment of Engineer, Owner shall appoint an engineer to whom Contractor makes no reasonable objection, whose status under the Contract Documents shall be that of the former Engineer.
- 8.03 Furnish Data
 - A. Owner shall promptly furnish the data required of Owner under the Contract Documents.
- 8.04 Pay When Due
 - A. Owner shall make payments to Contractor when they are due as provided in Paragraphs 14.02.C and 14.07.C.
- 8.05 Lands and Easements; Reports and Tests
 - A. Owner's duties with respect to providing lands and easements and providing engineering surveys to establish reference points are set forth in Paragraphs 4.01 and 4.05. Paragraph 4.02 refers to Owner's identifying and making available to Contractor copies of reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions and drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site.
- 8.06 Insurance
 - A. Owner's responsibilities, if any, with respect to purchasing and maintaining liability and property insurance are set forth in Article 5.

8.07 Change Orders

A. Owner is obligated to execute Change Orders as indicated in Paragraph 10.03.

8.08 Inspections, Tests, and Approvals

A. Owner's responsibility with respect to certain inspections, tests, and approvals is set forth in Paragraph 13.03.B.

8.09 Limitations on Owner's Responsibilities

A. The Owner shall not supervise, direct, or have control or authority over, nor be responsible for, Contractor's means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, or for any failure of Contractor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work. Owner will not be responsible for Contractor's failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

8.10 Undisclosed Hazardous Environmental Condition

A. Owner's responsibility in respect to an undisclosed Hazardous Environmental Condition is set forth in Paragraph 4.06.

8.11 Evidence of Financial Arrangements

A. Upon request of Contractor, Owner shall furnish Contractor reasonable evidence that financial arrangements have been made to satisfy Owner's obligations under the Contract Documents.

8.12 Compliance with Safety Program

A. While at the Site, Owner's employees and representatives shall comply with the specific applicable requirements of Contractor's safety programs of which Owner has been informed pursuant to Paragraph 6.13.D.

ARTICLE 9 - ENGINEER'S STATUS DURING CONSTRUCTION

9.01 Owner's Representative

A. Engineer will be Owner's representative during the construction period. The duties and responsibilities and the limitations of authority of Engineer as Owner's representative during construction are set forth in the Contract Documents.

9.02 Visits to Site

A. Engineer will make visits to the Site at intervals appropriate to the various stages of construction as Engineer deems necessary in order to observe as an experienced and qualified design professional the progress that has been made and the quality of the various aspects of Contractor's executed Work. Based on information obtained during such visits and observations, Engineer, for the benefit of Owner, will determine, in general, if the Work is proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents. Engineer will not be required to make exhaustive or

continuous inspections on the Site to check the quality or quantity of the Work. Engineer's efforts will be directed toward providing for Owner a greater degree of confidence that the completed Work will conform generally to the Contract Documents. On the basis of such visits and observations, Engineer will keep Owner informed of the progress of the Work and will endeavor to guard Owner against defective Work.

B. Engineer's visits and observations are subject to all the limitations on Engineer's authority and responsibility set forth in Paragraph 9.09. Particularly, but without limitation, during or as a result of Engineer's visits or observations of Contractor's Work, Engineer will not supervise, direct, control, or have authority over or be responsible for Contractor's means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, or for any failure of Contractor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work.

9.03 Project Representative

A. If Owner and Engineer agree, Engineer will furnish a Resident Project Representative to assist Engineer in providing more extensive observation of the Work. The authority and responsibilities of any such Resident Project Representative and assistants will be as provided in the Supplementary Conditions, and limitations on the responsibilities thereof will be as provided in Paragraph 9.09. If Owner designates another representative or agent to represent Owner at the Site who is not Engineer's consultant, agent or employee, the responsibilities and authority and limitations thereon of such other individual or entity will be as provided in the Supplementary Conditions.

9.04 Authorized Variations in Work

A. Engineer may authorize minor variations in the Work from the requirements of the Contract Documents which do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Times and are compatible with the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated by the Contract Documents. These may be accomplished by a Field Order and will be binding on Owner and also on Contractor, who shall perform the Work involved promptly. If Owner or Contractor believes that a Field Order justifies an adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, and the parties are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any such adjustment, a Claim may be made therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05.

9.05 Rejecting Defective Work

A. Engineer will have authority to reject Work which Engineer believes to be defective, or that Engineer believes will not produce a completed Project that conforms to the Contract Documents or that will prejudice the integrity of the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated by the Contract Documents. Engineer will also have authority to require special inspection or testing of the Work as provided in Paragraph 13.04, whether or not the Work is fabricated, installed, or completed.

9.06 Shop Drawings, Change Orders and Payments

- A. In connection with Engineer's authority, and limitations thereof, as to Shop Drawings and Samples, see Paragraph 6.17.
- B. In connection with Engineer's authority, and limitations thereof, as to design calculations and design drawings submitted in response to a delegation of professional design services, if any, see Paragraph 6.21.
- C. In connection with Engineer's authority as to Change Orders, see Articles 10, 11, and 12.
- D. In connection with Engineer's authority as to Applications for Payment, see Article 14.

9.07 Determinations for Unit Price Work

A. Engineer will determine the actual quantities and classifications of Unit Price Work performed by Contractor. Engineer will review with Contractor the Engineer's preliminary determinations on such matters before rendering a written decision thereon (by recommendation of an Application for Payment or otherwise). Engineer's written decision thereon will be final and binding (except as modified by Engineer to reflect changed factual conditions or more accurate data) upon Owner and Contractor, subject to the provisions of Paragraph 10.05.

9.08 Decisions on Requirements of Contract Documents and Acceptability of Work

- A. Engineer will be the initial interpreter of the requirements of the Contract Documents and judge of the acceptability of the Work thereunder. All matters in question and other matters between Owner and Contractor arising prior to the date final payment is due relating to the acceptability of the Work, and the interpretation of the requirements of the Contract Documents pertaining to the performance of the Work, will be referred initially to Engineer in writing within 30 days of the event giving rise to the question.
- B. Engineer will, with reasonable promptness, render a written decision on the issue referred. If Owner or Contractor believes that any such decision entitles them to an adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times or both, a Claim may be made under Paragraph 10.05. The date of Engineer's decision shall be the date of the event giving rise to the issues referenced for the purposes of Paragraph 10.05.B.
- C. Engineer's written decision on the issue referred will be final and binding on Owner and Contractor, subject to the provisions of Paragraph 10.05.
- D. When functioning as interpreter and judge under this Paragraph 9.08, Engineer will not show partiality to Owner or Contractor and will not be liable in connection with any interpretation or decision rendered in good faith in such capacity.

9.09 Limitations on Engineer's Authority and Responsibilities

A. Neither Engineer's authority or responsibility under this Article 9 or under any other provision of the Contract Documents nor any decision made by Engineer in good faith either to exercise or not

exercise such authority or responsibility or the undertaking, exercise, or performance of any authority or responsibility by Engineer shall create, impose, or give rise to any duty in contract, tort, or otherwise owed by Engineer to Contractor, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, any other individual or entity, or to any surety for or employee or agent of any of them.

- B. Engineer will not supervise, direct, control, or have authority over or be responsible for Contractor's means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, or for any failure of Contractor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work. Engineer will not be responsible for Contractor's failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- C. Engineer will not be responsible for the acts or omissions of Contractor or of any Subcontractor, any Supplier, or of any other individual or entity performing any of the Work.
- D. Engineer's review of the final Application for Payment and accompanying documentation and all maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, guarantees, bonds, certificates of inspection, tests and approvals, and other documentation required to be delivered by Paragraph 14.07.A will only be to determine generally that their content complies with the requirements of, and in the case of certificates of inspections, tests, and approvals that the results certified indicate compliance with, the Contract Documents.
- E. The limitations upon authority and responsibility set forth in this Paragraph 9.09 shall also apply to the Resident Project Representative, if any, and assistants, if any.

9.10 Compliance with Safety Program

A. While at the Site, Engineer's employees and representatives shall comply with the specific applicable requirements of Contractor's safety programs of which Engineer has been informed pursuant to Paragraph 6.13.D.

ARTICLE 10 - CHANGES IN THE WORK; CLAIMS

10.01 Authorized Changes in the Work

- A. Without invalidating the Contract and without notice to any surety, Owner may, at any time or from time to time, order additions, deletions, or revisions in the Work by a Change Order, or a Work Change Directive. Upon receipt of any such document, Contractor shall promptly proceed with the Work involved which will be performed under the applicable conditions of the Contract Documents (except as otherwise specifically provided).
- B. If Owner and Contractor are unable to agree on entitlement to, or on the amount or extent, if any, of an adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, that should be allowed as a result of a Work Change Directive, a Claim may be made therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05.

10.02 Unauthorized Changes in the Work

A. Contractor shall not be entitled to an increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Times with respect to any work performed that is not required by the Contract Documents as amended, modified, or supplemented as provided in Paragraph 3.04, except in the case of an emergency as provided in Paragraph 6.16 or in the case of uncovering Work as provided in Paragraph 13.04.D.

10.03 Execution of Change Orders

- A. Owner and Contractor shall execute appropriate Change Orders recommended by Engineer covering:
 - 1. changes in the Work which are: (i) ordered by Owner pursuant to Paragraph 10.01.A, (ii) required because of acceptance of defective Work under Paragraph 13.08.A or Owner's correction of defective Work under Paragraph 13.09, or (iii) agreed to by the parties;
 - changes in the Contract Price or Contract Times which are agreed to by the parties, including any undisputed sum or amount of time for Work actually performed in accordance with a Work Change Directive; and
 - 3. changes in the Contract Price or Contract Times which embody the substance of any written decision rendered by Engineer pursuant to Paragraph 10.05; provided that, in lieu of executing any such Change Order, an appeal may be taken from any such decision in accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents and applicable Laws and Regulations, but during any such appeal, Contractor shall carry on the Work and adhere to the Progress Schedule as provided in Paragraph 6.18.A.

10.04 Notification to Surety

A. If the provisions of any bond require notice to be given to a surety of any change affecting the general scope of the Work or the provisions of the Contract Documents (including, but not limited to, Contract Price or Contract Times), the giving of any such notice will be Contractor's responsibility. The amount of each applicable bond will be adjusted to reflect the effect of any such change.

10.05 Claims

- A. Engineer's Decision Required: All Claims, except those waived pursuant to Paragraph 14.09, shall be referred to the Engineer for decision. A decision by Engineer shall be required as a condition precedent to any exercise by Owner or Contractor of any rights or remedies either may otherwise have under the Contract Documents or by Laws and Regulations in respect of such Claims.
- B. *Notice:* Written notice stating the general nature of each Claim shall be delivered by the claimant to Engineer and the other party to the Contract promptly (but in no event later than 30 days) after the start of the event giving rise thereto. The responsibility to substantiate a Claim shall rest with the party making the Claim. Notice of the amount or extent of the Claim, with supporting data

shall be delivered to the Engineer and the other party to the Contract within 60 days after the start of such event (unless Engineer allows additional time for claimant to submit additional or more accurate data in support of such Claim). A Claim for an adjustment in Contract Price shall be prepared in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 12.01.B. A Claim for an adjustment in Contract Times shall be prepared in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 12.02.B. Each Claim shall be accompanied by claimant's written statement that the adjustment claimed is the entire adjustment to which the claimant believes it is entitled as a result of said event. The opposing party shall submit any response to Engineer and the claimant within 30 days after receipt of the claimant's last submittal (unless Engineer allows additional time).

- C. *Engineer's Action*: Engineer will review each Claim and, within 30 days after receipt of the last submittal of the claimant or the last submittal of the opposing party, if any, take one of the following actions in writing:
 - 1. deny the Claim in whole or in part;
 - 2. approve the Claim; or
 - 3. notify the parties that the Engineer is unable to resolve the Claim if, in the Engineer's sole discretion, it would be inappropriate for the Engineer to do so. For purposes of further resolution of the Claim, such notice shall be deemed a denial.
- D. In the event that Engineer does not take action on a Claim within said 30 days, the Claim shall be deemed denied.
- E. Engineer's written action under Paragraph 10.05.C or denial pursuant to Paragraphs 10.05.C.3 or 10.05.D will be final and binding upon Owner and Contractor, unless Owner or Contractor invoke the dispute resolution procedure set forth in Article 16 within 30 days of such action or denial.
- F. No Claim for an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times will be valid if not submitted in accordance with this Paragraph 10.05.

ARTICLE 11 – COST OF THE WORK; ALLOWANCES; UNIT PRICE WORK

11.01 Cost of the Work

A. Costs Included: The term Cost of the Work means the sum of all costs, except those excluded in Paragraph 11.01.B, necessarily incurred and paid by Contractor in the proper performance of the Work. When the value of any Work covered by a Change Order or when a Claim for an adjustment in Contract Price is determined on the basis of Cost of the Work, the costs to be reimbursed to Contractor will be only those additional or incremental costs required because of the change in the Work or because of the event giving rise to the Claim. Except as otherwise may be agreed to in writing by Owner, such costs shall be in amounts no higher than those prevailing in the locality of the Project, and shall not include any of the costs itemized in Paragraph 11.01.B, and shall include only the following items:

- 1. Payroll costs for employees in the direct employ of Contractor in the performance of the Work under schedules of job classifications agreed upon by Owner and Contractor. Such employees shall include, without limitation, superintendents, foremen, and other personnel employed full time on the Work. Payroll costs for employees not employed full time on the Work shall be apportioned on the basis of their time spent on the Work. Payroll costs shall include, but not be limited to, salaries and wages plus the cost of fringe benefits, which shall include social security contributions, unemployment, excise, and payroll taxes, workers' compensation, health and retirement benefits, bonuses, sick leave, vacation and holiday pay applicable thereto. The expenses of performing Work outside of regular working hours, on Saturday, Sunday, or legal holidays, shall be included in the above to the extent authorized by Owner.
- 2. Cost of all materials and equipment furnished and incorporated in the Work, including costs of transportation and storage thereof, and Suppliers' field services required in connection therewith. All cash discounts shall accrue to Contractor unless Owner deposits funds with Contractor with which to make payments, in which case the cash discounts shall accrue to Owner. All trade discounts, rebates and refunds and returns from sale of surplus materials and equipment shall accrue to Owner, and Contractor shall make provisions so that they may be obtained.
- 3. Payments made by Contractor to Subcontractors for Work performed by Subcontractors. If required by Owner, Contractor shall obtain competitive bids from subcontractors acceptable to Owner and Contractor and shall deliver such bids to Owner, who will then determine, with the advice of Engineer, which bids, if any, will be acceptable. If any subcontract provides that the Subcontractor is to be paid on the basis of Cost of the Work plus a fee, the Subcontractor's Cost of the Work and fee shall be determined in the same manner as Contractor's Cost of the Work and fee as provided in this Paragraph 11.01.
- 4. Costs of special consultants (including but not limited to engineers, architects, testing laboratories, surveyors, attorneys, and accountants) employed for services specifically related to the Work.
- 5. Supplemental costs including the following:
 - a. The proportion of necessary transportation, travel, and subsistence expenses of Contractor's employees incurred in discharge of duties connected with the Work.
 - b. Cost, including transportation and maintenance, of all materials, supplies, equipment, machinery, appliances, office, and temporary facilities at the Site, and hand tools not owned by the workers, which are consumed in the performance of the Work, and cost, less market value, of such items used but not consumed which remain the property of Contractor.
 - c. Rentals of all construction equipment and machinery, and the parts thereof whether rented from Contractor or others in accordance with rental agreements approved by Owner with the advice of Engineer, and the costs of transportation, loading, unloading, assembly, dismantling, and removal thereof. All such costs shall be in accordance with the terms of

- said rental agreements. The rental of any such equipment, machinery, or parts shall cease when the use thereof is no longer necessary for the Work.
- d. Sales, consumer, use, and other similar taxes related to the Work, and for which Contractor is liable, as imposed by Laws and Regulations.
- e. Deposits lost for causes other than negligence of Contractor, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable, and royalty payments and fees for permits and licenses.
- f. Losses and damages (and related expenses) caused by damage to the Work, not compensated by insurance or otherwise, sustained by Contractor in connection with the performance of the Work (except losses and damages within the deductible amounts of property insurance established in accordance with Paragraph 5.06.D), provided such losses and damages have resulted from causes other than the negligence of Contractor, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable. Such losses shall include settlements made with the written consent and approval of Owner. No such losses, damages, and expenses shall be included in the Cost of the Work for the purpose of determining Contractor's fee.
- g. The cost of utilities, fuel, and sanitary facilities at the Site.
- h. Minor expenses such as telegrams, long distance telephone calls, telephone service at the Site, express and courier services, and similar petty cash items in connection with the Work.
- i. The costs of premiums for all bonds and insurance Contractor is required by the Contract Documents to purchase and maintain.
- B. Costs Excluded: The term Cost of the Work shall not include any of the following items:
 - 1. Payroll costs and other compensation of Contractor's officers, executives, principals (of partnerships and sole proprietorships), general managers, safety managers, engineers, architects, estimators, attorneys, auditors, accountants, purchasing and contracting agents, expediters, timekeepers, clerks, and other personnel employed by Contractor, whether at the Site or in Contractor's principal or branch office for general administration of the Work and not specifically included in the agreed upon schedule of job classifications referred to in Paragraph 11.01.A.1 or specifically covered by Paragraph 11.01.A.4, all of which are to be considered administrative costs covered by the Contractor's fee.
 - 2. Expenses of Contractor's principal and branch offices other than Contractor's office at the Site.
 - 3. Any part of Contractor's capital expenses, including interest on Contractor's capital employed for the Work and charges against Contractor for delinquent payments.
 - 4. Costs due to the negligence of Contractor, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable, including but not

limited to, the correction of defective Work, disposal of materials or equipment wrongly supplied, and making good any damage to property.

- 5. Other overhead or general expense costs of any kind and the costs of any item not specifically and expressly included in Paragraphs 11.01.A.
- C. Contractor's Fee: When all the Work is performed on the basis of cost-plus, Contractor's fee shall be determined as set forth in the Agreement. When the value of any Work covered by a Change Order or when a Claim for an adjustment in Contract Price is determined on the basis of Cost of the Work, Contractor's fee shall be determined as set forth in Paragraph 12.01.C.
- D. Documentation: Whenever the Cost of the Work for any purpose is to be determined pursuant to Paragraphs 11.01.A and 11.01.B, Contractor will establish and maintain records thereof in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and submit in a form acceptable to Engineer an itemized cost breakdown together with supporting data.

11.02 Allowances

A. It is understood that Contractor has included in the Contract Price all allowances so named in the Contract Documents and shall cause the Work so covered to be performed for such sums and by such persons or entities as may be acceptable to Owner and Engineer.

B. Cash Allowances:

- 1. Contractor agrees that:
 - a. the cash allowances include the cost to Contractor (less any applicable trade discounts) of materials and equipment required by the allowances to be delivered at the Site, and all applicable taxes; and
 - b. Contractor's costs for unloading and handling on the Site, labor, installation, overhead, profit, and other expenses contemplated for the cash allowances have been included in the Contract Price and not in the allowances, and no demand for additional payment on account of any of the foregoing will be valid.

C. Contingency Allowance:

- Contractor agrees that a contingency allowance, if any, is for the sole use of Owner to cover unanticipated costs.
- D. Prior to final payment, an appropriate Change Order will be issued as recommended by Engineer to reflect actual amounts due Contractor on account of Work covered by allowances, and the Contract Price shall be correspondingly adjusted.

11.03 Unit Price Work

A. Where the Contract Documents provide that all or part of the Work is to be Unit Price Work, initially the Contract Price will be deemed to include for all Unit Price Work an amount equal to

- the sum of the unit price for each separately identified item of Unit Price Work times the estimated quantity of each item as indicated in the Agreement.
- B. The estimated quantities of items of Unit Price Work are not guaranteed and are solely for the purpose of comparison of Bids and determining an initial Contract Price. Determinations of the actual quantities and classifications of Unit Price Work performed by Contractor will be made by Engineer subject to the provisions of Paragraph 9.07.
- C. Each unit price will be deemed to include an amount considered by Contractor to be adequate to cover Contractor's overhead and profit for each separately identified item.
- D. Owner or Contractor may make a Claim for an adjustment in the Contract Price in accordance with Paragraph 10.05 if:
 - 1. the quantity of any item of Unit Price Work performed by Contractor differs materially and significantly from the estimated quantity of such item indicated in the Agreement; and
 - 2. there is no corresponding adjustment with respect to any other item of Work; and
 - Contractor believes that Contractor is entitled to an increase in Contract Price as a result of
 having incurred additional expense or Owner believes that Owner is entitled to a decrease in
 Contract Price and the parties are unable to agree as to the amount of any such increase or
 decrease.

ARTICLE 12 - CHANGE OF CONTRACT PRICE; CHANGE OF CONTRACT TIMES

12.01 Change of Contract Price

- A. The Contract Price may only be changed by a Change Order. Any Claim for an adjustment in the Contract Price shall be based on written notice submitted by the party making the Claim to the Engineer and the other party to the Contract in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 10.05.
- B. The value of any Work covered by a Change Order or of any Claim for an adjustment in the Contract Price will be determined as follows:
 - 1. where the Work involved is covered by unit prices contained in the Contract Documents, by application of such unit prices to the quantities of the items involved (subject to the provisions of Paragraph 11.03); or
 - 2. where the Work involved is not covered by unit prices contained in the Contract Documents, by a mutually agreed lump sum (which may include an allowance for overhead and profit not necessarily in accordance with Paragraph 12.01.C.2); or
 - 3. where the Work involved is not covered by unit prices contained in the Contract Documents and agreement to a lump sum is not reached under Paragraph 12.01.B.2, on the basis of the Cost of the Work (determined as provided in Paragraph 11.01) plus a Contractor's fee for overhead and profit (determined as provided in Paragraph 12.01.C).

- C. Contractor's Fee: The Contractor's fee for overhead and profit shall be determined as follows:
 - 1. a mutually acceptable fixed fee; or
 - 2. if a fixed fee is not agreed upon, then a fee based on the following percentages of the various portions of the Cost of the Work:
 - a. for costs incurred under Paragraphs 11.01.A.1 and 11.01.A.2, the Contractor's fee shall be 15 percent;
 - b. for costs incurred under Paragraph 11.01.A.3, the Contractor's fee shall be five percent;
 - c. where one or more tiers of subcontracts are on the basis of Cost of the Work plus a fee and no fixed fee is agreed upon, the intent of Paragraphs 12.01.C.2.a and 12.01.C.2.b is that the Subcontractor who actually performs the Work, at whatever tier, will be paid a fee of 15 percent of the costs incurred by such Subcontractor under Paragraphs 11.01.A.1 and 11.01.A.2 and that any higher tier Subcontractor and Contractor will each be paid a fee of five percent of the amount paid to the next lower tier Subcontractor;
 - d. no fee shall be payable on the basis of costs itemized under Paragraphs 11.01.A.4, 11.01.A.5, and 11.01.B;
 - e. the amount of credit to be allowed by Contractor to Owner for any change which results in a net decrease in cost will be the amount of the actual net decrease in cost plus a deduction in Contractor's fee by an amount equal to five percent of such net decrease; and
 - f. when both additions and credits are involved in any one change, the adjustment in Contractor's fee shall be computed on the basis of the net change in accordance with Paragraphs 12.01.C.2.a through 12.01.C.2.e, inclusive.

12.02 Change of Contract Times

- A. The Contract Times may only be changed by a Change Order. Any Claim for an adjustment in the Contract Times shall be based on written notice submitted by the party making the Claim to the Engineer and the other party to the Contract in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 10.05.
- B. Any adjustment of the Contract Times covered by a Change Order or any Claim for an adjustment in the Contract Times will be determined in accordance with the provisions of this Article 12.

12.03 Delays

A. Where Contractor is prevented from completing any part of the Work within the Contract Times due to delay beyond the control of Contractor, the Contract Times will be extended in an amount equal to the time lost due to such delay if a Claim is made therefor as provided in Paragraph 12.02.A. Delays beyond the control of Contractor shall include, but not be limited to, acts or

- neglect by Owner, acts or neglect of utility owners or other contractors performing other work as contemplated by Article 7, fires, floods, epidemics, abnormal weather conditions, or acts of God.
- B. If Owner, Engineer, or other contractors or utility owners performing other work for Owner as contemplated by Article 7, or anyone for whom Owner is responsible, delays, disrupts, or interferes with the performance or progress of the Work, then Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Times, or both. Contractor's entitlement to an adjustment of the Contract Times is conditioned on such adjustment being essential to Contractor's ability to complete the Work within the Contract Times.
- C. If Contractor is delayed in the performance or progress of the Work by fire, flood, epidemic, abnormal weather conditions, acts of God, acts or failures to act of utility owners not under the control of Owner, or other causes not the fault of and beyond control of Owner and Contractor, then Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in Contract Times, if such adjustment is essential to Contractor's ability to complete the Work within the Contract Times. Such an adjustment shall be Contractor's sole and exclusive remedy for the delays described in this Paragraph 12.03.C.
- D. Owner, Engineer, and their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors shall not be liable to Contractor for any claims, costs, losses, or damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) sustained by Contractor on or in connection with any other project or anticipated project.
- E. Contractor shall not be entitled to an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times for delays within the control of Contractor. Delays attributable to and within the control of a Subcontractor or Supplier shall be deemed to be delays within the control of Contractor.

ARTICLE 13 – TESTS AND INSPECTIONS; CORRECTION, REMOVAL OR ACCEPTANCE OF DEFECTIVE WORK

13.01 Notice of Defects

A. Prompt notice of all defective Work of which Owner or Engineer has actual knowledge will be given to Contractor. Defective Work may be rejected, corrected, or accepted as provided in this Article 13.

13.02 Access to Work

A. Owner, Engineer, their consultants and other representatives and personnel of Owner, independent testing laboratories, and governmental agencies with jurisdictional interests will have access to the Site and the Work at reasonable times for their observation, inspection, and testing. Contractor shall provide them proper and safe conditions for such access and advise them of Contractor's safety procedures and programs so that they may comply therewith as applicable.

13.03 Tests and Inspections

- A. Contractor shall give Engineer timely notice of readiness of the Work for all required inspections, tests, or approvals and shall cooperate with inspection and testing personnel to facilitate required inspections or tests.
- B. Owner shall employ and pay for the services of an independent testing laboratory to perform all inspections, tests, or approvals required by the Contract Documents except:
 - 1. for inspections, tests, or approvals covered by Paragraphs 13.03.C and 13.03.D below;
 - 2. that costs incurred in connection with tests or inspections conducted pursuant to Paragraph 13.04.B shall be paid as provided in Paragraph 13.04.C; and
 - 3. as otherwise specifically provided in the Contract Documents.
- C. If Laws or Regulations of any public body having jurisdiction require any Work (or part thereof) specifically to be inspected, tested, or approved by an employee or other representative of such public body, Contractor shall assume full responsibility for arranging and obtaining such inspections, tests, or approvals, pay all costs in connection therewith, and furnish Engineer the required certificates of inspection or approval.
- D. Contractor shall be responsible for arranging and obtaining and shall pay all costs in connection with any inspections, tests, or approvals required for Owner's and Engineer's acceptance of materials or equipment to be incorporated in the Work; or acceptance of materials, mix designs, or equipment submitted for approval prior to Contractor's purchase thereof for incorporation in the Work. Such inspections, tests, or approvals shall be performed by organizations acceptable to Owner and Engineer.
- E. If any Work (or the work of others) that is to be inspected, tested, or approved is covered by Contractor without written concurrence of Engineer, Contractor shall, if requested by Engineer, uncover such Work for observation.
- F. Uncovering Work as provided in Paragraph 13.03.E shall be at Contractor's expense unless Contractor has given Engineer timely notice of Contractor's intention to cover the same and Engineer has not acted with reasonable promptness in response to such notice.

13.04 Uncovering Work

- A. If any Work is covered contrary to the written request of Engineer, it must, if requested by Engineer, be uncovered for Engineer's observation and replaced at Contractor's expense.
- B. If Engineer considers it necessary or advisable that covered Work be observed by Engineer or inspected or tested by others, Contractor, at Engineer's request, shall uncover, expose, or otherwise make available for observation, inspection, or testing as Engineer may require, that portion of the Work in question, furnishing all necessary labor, material, and equipment.

- C. If it is found that the uncovered Work is defective, Contractor shall pay all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, and testing, and of satisfactory replacement or reconstruction (including but not limited to all costs of repair or replacement of work of others); and Owner shall be entitled to an appropriate decrease in the Contract Price. If the parties are unable to agree as to the amount thereof, Owner may make a Claim therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05.
- D. If, the uncovered Work is not found to be defective, Contractor shall be allowed an increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Times, or both, directly attributable to such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, testing, replacement, and reconstruction. If the parties are unable to agree as to the amount or extent thereof, Contractor may make a Claim therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05.

13.05 Owner May Stop the Work

A. If the Work is defective, or Contractor fails to supply sufficient skilled workers or suitable materials or equipment, or fails to perform the Work in such a way that the completed Work will conform to the Contract Documents, Owner may order Contractor to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until the cause for such order has been eliminated; however, this right of Owner to stop the Work shall not give rise to any duty on the part of Owner to exercise this right for the benefit of Contractor, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, any other individual or entity, or any surety for, or employee or agent of any of them.

13.06 Correction or Removal of Defective Work

- A. Promptly after receipt of written notice, Contractor shall correct all defective Work, whether or not fabricated, installed, or completed, or, if the Work has been rejected by Engineer, remove it from the Project and replace it with Work that is not defective. Contractor shall pay all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to such correction or removal (including but not limited to all costs of repair or replacement of work of others).
- B. When correcting defective Work under the terms of this Paragraph 13.06 or Paragraph 13.07, Contractor shall take no action that would void or otherwise impair Owner's special warranty and guarantee, if any, on said Work.

13.07 Correction Period

A. If within one year after the date of Substantial Completion (or such longer period of time as may be prescribed by the terms of any applicable special guarantee required by the Contract Documents) or by any specific provision of the Contract Documents, any Work is found to be defective, or if the repair of any damages to the land or areas made available for Contractor's use by Owner or permitted by Laws and Regulations as contemplated in Paragraph 6.11.A is found to be defective, Contractor shall promptly, without cost to Owner and in accordance with Owner's written instructions:

- 1. repair such defective land or areas; or
- 2. correct such defective Work; or
- 3. if the defective Work has been rejected by Owner, remove it from the Project and replace it with Work that is not defective, and
- 4. satisfactorily correct or repair or remove and replace any damage to other Work, to the work of others or other land or areas resulting therefrom.
- B. If Contractor does not promptly comply with the terms of Owner's written instructions, or in an emergency where delay would cause serious risk of loss or damage, Owner may have the defective Work corrected or repaired or may have the rejected Work removed and replaced. All claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to such correction or repair or such removal and replacement (including but not limited to all costs of repair or replacement of work of others) will be paid by Contractor.
- C. In special circumstances where a particular item of equipment is placed in continuous service before Substantial Completion of all the Work, the correction period for that item may start to run from an earlier date if so provided in the Specifications.
- D. Where defective Work (and damage to other Work resulting therefrom) has been corrected or removed and replaced under this Paragraph 13.07, the correction period hereunder with respect to such Work will be extended for an additional period of one year after such correction or removal and replacement has been satisfactorily completed.
- E. Contractor's obligations under this Paragraph 13.07 are in addition to any other obligation or warranty. The provisions of this Paragraph 13.07 shall not be construed as a substitute for or a waiver of the provisions of any applicable statute of limitation or repose.

13.08 Acceptance of Defective Work

A. If, instead of requiring correction or removal and replacement of defective Work, Owner (and, prior to Engineer's recommendation of final payment, Engineer) prefers to accept it, Owner may do so. Contractor shall pay all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) attributable to Owner's evaluation of and determination to accept such defective Work (such costs to be approved by Engineer as to reasonableness) and for the diminished value of the Work to the extent not otherwise paid by Contractor pursuant to this sentence. If any such acceptance occurs prior to Engineer's recommendation of final payment, a Change Order will be issued incorporating the necessary revisions in the Contract Documents with respect to the Work, and Owner shall be entitled to an appropriate decrease in the Contract Price, reflecting the diminished value of Work so accepted. If the parties are unable to agree as to the amount thereof, Owner may make a Claim therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05. If the acceptance occurs after such recommendation, an appropriate amount will be paid by Contractor to Owner.

- A. If Contractor fails within a reasonable time after written notice from Engineer to correct defective Work, or to remove and replace rejected Work as required by Engineer in accordance with Paragraph 13.06.A, or if Contractor fails to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, or if Contractor fails to comply with any other provision of the Contract Documents, Owner may, after seven days written notice to Contractor, correct, or remedy any such deficiency.
- B. In exercising the rights and remedies under this Paragraph 13.09, Owner shall proceed expeditiously. In connection with such corrective or remedial action, Owner may exclude Contractor from all or part of the Site, take possession of all or part of the Work and suspend Contractor's services related thereto, take possession of Contractor's tools, appliances, construction equipment and machinery at the Site, and incorporate in the Work all materials and equipment stored at the Site or for which Owner has paid Contractor but which are stored elsewhere. Contractor shall allow Owner, Owner's representatives, agents and employees, Owner's other contractors, and Engineer and Engineer's consultants access to the Site to enable Owner to exercise the rights and remedies under this Paragraph.
- C. All claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) incurred or sustained by Owner in exercising the rights and remedies under this Paragraph 13.09 will be charged against Contractor, and a Change Order will be issued incorporating the necessary revisions in the Contract Documents with respect to the Work; and Owner shall be entitled to an appropriate decrease in the Contract Price. If the parties are unable to agree as to the amount of the adjustment, Owner may make a Claim therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05. Such claims, costs, losses and damages will include but not be limited to all costs of repair, or replacement of work of others destroyed or damaged by correction, removal, or replacement of Contractor's defective Work.
- D. Contractor shall not be allowed an extension of the Contract Times because of any delay in the performance of the Work attributable to the exercise by Owner of Owner's rights and remedies under this Paragraph 13.09.

ARTICLE 14 – PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR AND COMPLETION

14.01 Schedule of Values

A. The Schedule of Values established as provided in Paragraph 2.07.A will serve as the basis for progress payments and will be incorporated into a form of Application for Payment acceptable to Engineer. Progress payments on account of Unit Price Work will be based on the number of units completed.

14.02 Progress Payments

- A. Applications for Payments:
 - 1. At least 20 days before the date established in the Agreement for each progress payment (but not more often than once a month), Contractor shall submit to Engineer for review an

Application for Payment filled out and signed by Contractor covering the Work completed as of the date of the Application and accompanied by such supporting documentation as is required by the Contract Documents. If payment is requested on the basis of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work but delivered and suitably stored at the Site or at another location agreed to in writing, the Application for Payment shall also be accompanied by a bill of sale, invoice, or other documentation warranting that Owner has received the materials and equipment free and clear of all Liens and evidence that the materials and equipment are covered by appropriate property insurance or other arrangements to protect Owner's interest therein, all of which must be satisfactory to Owner.

- 2. Beginning with the second Application for Payment, each Application shall include an affidavit of Contractor stating that all previous progress payments received on account of the Work have been applied on account to discharge Contractor's legitimate obligations associated with prior Applications for Payment.
- 3. The amount of retainage with respect to progress payments will be as stipulated in the Agreement.

B. Review of Applications:

- 1. Engineer will, within 10 days after receipt of each Application for Payment, either indicate in writing a recommendation of payment and present the Application to Owner or return the Application to Contractor indicating in writing Engineer's reasons for refusing to recommend payment. In the latter case, Contractor may make the necessary corrections and resubmit the Application.
- 2. Engineer's recommendation of any payment requested in an Application for Payment will constitute a representation by Engineer to Owner, based on Engineer's observations of the executed Work as an experienced and qualified design professional, and on Engineer's review of the Application for Payment and the accompanying data and schedules, that to the best of Engineer's knowledge, information and belief:
 - a. the Work has progressed to the point indicated;
 - b. the quality of the Work is generally in accordance with the Contract Documents (subject to an evaluation of the Work as a functioning whole prior to or upon Substantial Completion, the results of any subsequent tests called for in the Contract Documents, a final determination of quantities and classifications for Unit Price Work under Paragraph 9.07, and any other qualifications stated in the recommendation); and
 - c. the conditions precedent to Contractor's being entitled to such payment appear to have been fulfilled in so far as it is Engineer's responsibility to observe the Work.
- 3. By recommending any such payment Engineer will not thereby be deemed to have represented that:
 - a. inspections made to check the quality or the quantity of the Work as it has been performed have been exhaustive, extended to every aspect of the Work in progress, or

- involved detailed inspections of the Work beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to Engineer in the Contract Documents; or
- b. there may not be other matters or issues between the parties that might entitle Contractor to be paid additionally by Owner or entitle Owner to withhold payment to Contractor.
- 4. Neither Engineer's review of Contractor's Work for the purposes of recommending payments nor Engineer's recommendation of any payment, including final payment, will impose responsibility on Engineer:
 - a. to supervise, direct, or control the Work, or
 - b. for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, or
 - c. for Contractor's failure to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to Contractor's performance of the Work, or
 - d. to make any examination to ascertain how or for what purposes Contractor has used the moneys paid on account of the Contract Price, or
 - e. to determine that title to any of the Work, materials, or equipment has passed to Owner free and clear of any Liens.
- 5. Engineer may refuse to recommend the whole or any part of any payment if, in Engineer's opinion, it would be incorrect to make the representations to Owner stated in Paragraph 14.02.B.2. Engineer may also refuse to recommend any such payment or, because of subsequently discovered evidence or the results of subsequent inspections or tests, revise or revoke any such payment recommendation previously made, to such extent as may be necessary in Engineer's opinion to protect Owner from loss because:
 - a. the Work is defective, or completed Work has been damaged, requiring correction or replacement;
 - b. the Contract Price has been reduced by Change Orders;
 - c. Owner has been required to correct defective Work or complete Work in accordance with Paragraph 13.09; or
 - d. Engineer has actual knowledge of the occurrence of any of the events enumerated in Paragraph 15.02.A.

C. Payment Becomes Due:

1. Ten days after presentation of the Application for Payment to Owner with Engineer's recommendation, the amount recommended will (subject to the provisions of Paragraph 14.02.D) become due, and when due will be paid by Owner to Contractor.

D. Reduction in Payment:

- 1. Owner may refuse to make payment of the full amount recommended by Engineer because:
 - a. claims have been made against Owner on account of Contractor's performance or furnishing of the Work;
 - b. Liens have been filed in connection with the Work, except where Contractor has delivered a specific bond satisfactory to Owner to secure the satisfaction and discharge of such Liens;
 - c. there are other items entitling Owner to a set-off against the amount recommended; or
 - d. Owner has actual knowledge of the occurrence of any of the events enumerated in Paragraphs 14.02.B.5.a through 14.02.B.5.c or Paragraph 15.02.A.
- 2. If Owner refuses to make payment of the full amount recommended by Engineer, Owner will give Contractor immediate written notice (with a copy to Engineer) stating the reasons for such action and promptly pay Contractor any amount remaining after deduction of the amount so withheld. Owner shall promptly pay Contractor the amount so withheld, or any adjustment thereto agreed to by Owner and Contractor, when Contractor remedies the reasons for such action.
- 3. Upon a subsequent determination that Owner's refusal of payment was not justified, the amount wrongfully withheld shall be treated as an amount due as determined by Paragraph 14.02.C.1 and subject to interest as provided in the Agreement.

14.03 Contractor's Warranty of Title

A. Contractor warrants and guarantees that title to all Work, materials, and equipment covered by any Application for Payment, whether incorporated in the Project or not, will pass to Owner no later than the time of payment free and clear of all Liens.

14.04 Substantial Completion

- A. When Contractor considers the entire Work ready for its intended use Contractor shall notify Owner and Engineer in writing that the entire Work is substantially complete (except for items specifically listed by Contractor as incomplete) and request that Engineer issue a certificate of Substantial Completion.
- B. Promptly after Contractor's notification, Owner, Contractor, and Engineer shall make an inspection of the Work to determine the status of completion. If Engineer does not consider the Work substantially complete, Engineer will notify Contractor in writing giving the reasons therefor.
- C. If Engineer considers the Work substantially complete, Engineer will deliver to Owner a tentative certificate of Substantial Completion which shall fix the date of Substantial Completion. There shall be attached to the certificate a tentative list of items to be completed or corrected before final payment. Owner shall have seven days after receipt of the tentative certificate during which to make written objection to Engineer as to any provisions of the certificate or attached list. If,

after considering such objections, Engineer concludes that the Work is not substantially complete, Engineer will within 14 days after submission of the tentative certificate to Owner notify Contractor in writing, stating the reasons therefor. If, after consideration of Owner's objections, Engineer considers the Work substantially complete, Engineer will, within said 14 days, execute and deliver to Owner and Contractor a definitive certificate of Substantial Completion (with a revised tentative list of items to be completed or corrected) reflecting such changes from the tentative certificate as Engineer believes justified after consideration of any objections from Owner.

- D. At the time of delivery of the tentative certificate of Substantial Completion, Engineer will deliver to Owner and Contractor a written recommendation as to division of responsibilities pending final payment between Owner and Contractor with respect to security, operation, safety, and protection of the Work, maintenance, heat, utilities, insurance, and warranties and guarantees. Unless Owner and Contractor agree otherwise in writing and so inform Engineer in writing prior to Engineer's issuing the definitive certificate of Substantial Completion, Engineer's aforesaid recommendation will be binding on Owner and Contractor until final payment.
- E. Owner shall have the right to exclude Contractor from the Site after the date of Substantial Completion subject to allowing Contractor reasonable access to remove its property and complete or correct items on the tentative list.

14.05 Partial Utilization

- A. Prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work, Owner may use or occupy any substantially completed part of the Work which has specifically been identified in the Contract Documents, or which Owner, Engineer, and Contractor agree constitutes a separately functioning and usable part of the Work that can be used by Owner for its intended purpose without significant interference with Contractor's performance of the remainder of the Work, subject to the following conditions:
 - Owner at any time may request Contractor in writing to permit Owner to use or occupy any such part of the Work which Owner believes to be ready for its intended use and substantially complete. If and when Contractor agrees that such part of the Work is substantially complete, Contractor, Owner, and Engineer will follow the procedures of Paragraph 14.04.A-D for that part of the Work.
 - 2. Contractor at any time may notify Owner and Engineer in writing that Contractor considers any such part of the Work ready for its intended use and substantially complete and request Engineer to issue a certificate of Substantial Completion for that part of the Work.
 - 3. Within a reasonable time after either such request, Owner, Contractor, and Engineer shall make an inspection of that part of the Work to determine its status of completion. If Engineer does not consider that part of the Work to be substantially complete, Engineer will notify Owner and Contractor in writing giving the reasons therefor. If Engineer considers that part of the Work to be substantially complete, the provisions of Paragraph 14.04 will apply with respect to certification of Substantial Completion of that part of the Work and the division of responsibility in respect thereof and access thereto.

4. No use or occupancy or separate operation of part of the Work may occur prior to compliance with the requirements of Paragraph 5.10 regarding property insurance.

14.06 Final Inspection

A. Upon written notice from Contractor that the entire Work or an agreed portion thereof is complete, Engineer will promptly make a final inspection with Owner and Contractor and will notify Contractor in writing of all particulars in which this inspection reveals that the Work is incomplete or defective. Contractor shall immediately take such measures as are necessary to complete such Work or remedy such deficiencies.

14.07 Final Payment

A. Application for Payment:

- 1. After Contractor has, in the opinion of Engineer, satisfactorily completed all corrections identified during the final inspection and has delivered, in accordance with the Contract Documents, all maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, guarantees, bonds, certificates or other evidence of insurance, certificates of inspection, marked-up record documents (as provided in Paragraph 6.12), and other documents, Contractor may make application for final payment following the procedure for progress payments.
- 2. The final Application for Payment shall be accompanied (except as previously delivered) by:
 - a. all documentation called for in the Contract Documents, including but not limited to the evidence of insurance required by Paragraph 5.04.B.6;
 - b. consent of the surety, if any, to final payment;
 - c. a list of all Claims against Owner that Contractor believes are unsettled; and
 - d. complete and legally effective releases or waivers (satisfactory to Owner) of all Lien rights arising out of or Liens filed in connection with the Work.
- 3. In lieu of the releases or waivers of Liens specified in Paragraph 14.07.A.2 and as approved by Owner, Contractor may furnish receipts or releases in full and an affidavit of Contractor that: (i) the releases and receipts include all labor, services, material, and equipment for which a Lien could be filed; and (ii) all payrolls, material and equipment bills, and other indebtedness connected with the Work for which Owner or Owner's property might in any way be responsible have been paid or otherwise satisfied. If any Subcontractor or Supplier fails to furnish such a release or receipt in full, Contractor may furnish a bond or other collateral satisfactory to Owner to indemnify Owner against any Lien.

B. Engineer's Review of Application and Acceptance:

1. If, on the basis of Engineer's observation of the Work during construction and final inspection, and Engineer's review of the final Application for Payment and accompanying documentation as required by the Contract Documents, Engineer is satisfied that the Work

has been completed and Contractor's other obligations under the Contract Documents have been fulfilled, Engineer will, within ten days after receipt of the final Application for Payment, indicate in writing Engineer's recommendation of payment and present the Application for Payment to Owner for payment. At the same time Engineer will also give written notice to Owner and Contractor that the Work is acceptable subject to the provisions of Paragraph 14.09. Otherwise, Engineer will return the Application for Payment to Contractor, indicating in writing the reasons for refusing to recommend final payment, in which case Contractor shall make the necessary corrections and resubmit the Application for Payment.

C. Payment Becomes Due:

1. Thirty days after the presentation to Owner of the Application for Payment and accompanying documentation, the amount recommended by Engineer, less any sum Owner is entitled to set off against Engineer's recommendation, including but not limited to liquidated damages, will become due and will be paid by Owner to Contractor.

14.08 Final Completion Delayed

A. If, through no fault of Contractor, final completion of the Work is significantly delayed, and if Engineer so confirms, Owner shall, upon receipt of Contractor's final Application for Payment (for Work fully completed and accepted) and recommendation of Engineer, and without terminating the Contract, make payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed and accepted. If the remaining balance to be held by Owner for Work not fully completed or corrected is less than the retainage stipulated in the Agreement, and if bonds have been furnished as required in Paragraph 5.0I, the written consent of the surety to the payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed and accepted shall be submitted by Contractor to Engineer with the Application for such payment. Such payment shall be made under the terms and conditions governing final payment, except that it shall not constitute a waiver of Claims.

14.09 Waiver of Claims

- A. The making and acceptance of final payment will constitute:
 - a waiver of all Claims by Owner against Contractor, except Claims arising from unsettled Liens, from defective Work appearing after final inspection pursuant to Paragraph 14.06, from failure to comply with the Contract Documents or the terms of any special guarantees specified therein, or from Contractor's continuing obligations under the Contract Documents; and
 - 2. a waiver of all Claims by Contractor against Owner other than those previously made in accordance with the requirements herein and expressly acknowledged by Owner in writing as still unsettled.

ARTICLE 15 - SUSPENSION OF WORK AND TERMINATION

15.01 Owner May Suspend Work

A. At any time and without cause, Owner may suspend the Work or any portion thereof for a period of not more than 90 consecutive days by notice in writing to Contractor and Engineer which will fix the date on which Work will be resumed. Contractor shall resume the Work on the date so fixed. Contractor shall be granted an adjustment in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Times, or both, directly attributable to any such suspension if Contractor makes a Claim therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05.

15.02 Owner May Terminate for Cause

- A. The occurrence of any one or more of the following events will justify termination for cause:
 - 1. Contractor's persistent failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents (including, but not limited to, failure to supply sufficient skilled workers or suitable materials or equipment or failure to adhere to the Progress Schedule established under Paragraph 2.07 as adjusted from time to time pursuant to Paragraph 6.04);
 - 2. Contractor's disregard of Laws or Regulations of any public body having jurisdiction;
 - 3. Contractor's repeated disregard of the authority of Engineer; or
 - 4. Contractor's violation in any substantial way of any provisions of the Contract Documents.
- B. If one or more of the events identified in Paragraph 15.02.A occur, Owner may, after giving Contractor (and surety) seven days written notice of its intent to terminate the services of Contractor:
 - exclude Contractor from the Site, and take possession of the Work and of all Contractor's tools, appliances, construction equipment, and machinery at the Site, and use the same to the full extent they could be used by Contractor (without liability to Contractor for trespass or conversion);
 - 2. incorporate in the Work all materials and equipment stored at the Site or for which Owner has paid Contractor but which are stored elsewhere; and
 - 3. complete the Work as Owner may deem expedient.
- C. If Owner proceeds as provided in Paragraph 15.02.B, Contractor shall not be entitled to receive any further payment until the Work is completed. If the unpaid balance of the Contract Price exceeds all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) sustained by Owner arising out of or relating to completing the Work, such excess will be paid to Contractor. If such claims, costs, losses, and damages exceed such unpaid balance, Contractor shall pay the difference to Owner. Such claims, costs, losses, and damages incurred by Owner will be reviewed by Engineer as to their reasonableness and, when

- so approved by Engineer, incorporated in a Change Order. When exercising any rights or remedies under this Paragraph, Owner shall not be required to obtain the lowest price for the Work performed.
- D. Notwithstanding Paragraphs 15.02.B and 15.02.C, Contractor's services will not be terminated if Contractor begins within seven days of receipt of notice of intent to terminate to correct its failure to perform and proceeds diligently to cure such failure within no more than 30 days of receipt of said notice.
- E. Where Contractor's services have been so terminated by Owner, the termination will not affect any rights or remedies of Owner against Contractor then existing or which may thereafter accrue. Any retention or payment of moneys due Contractor by Owner will not release Contractor from liability.
- F. If and to the extent that Contractor has provided a performance bond under the provisions of Paragraph 5.01.A, the termination procedures of that bond shall supersede the provisions of Paragraphs 15.02.B and 15.02.C.

15.03 Owner May Terminate For Convenience

- A. Upon seven days written notice to Contractor and Engineer, Owner may, without cause and without prejudice to any other right or remedy of Owner, terminate the Contract. In such case, Contractor shall be paid for (without duplication of any items):
 - completed and acceptable Work executed in accordance with the Contract Documents prior to the effective date of termination, including fair and reasonable sums for overhead and profit on such Work;
 - expenses sustained prior to the effective date of termination in performing services and furnishing labor, materials, or equipment as required by the Contract Documents in connection with uncompleted Work, plus fair and reasonable sums for overhead and profit on such expenses;
 - 3. all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) incurred in settlement of terminated contracts with Subcontractors, Suppliers, and others; and
 - 4. reasonable expenses directly attributable to termination.
- B. Contractor shall not be paid on account of loss of anticipated profits or revenue or other economic loss arising out of or resulting from such termination.

15.04 Contractor May Stop Work or Terminate

A. If, through no act or fault of Contractor, (i) the Work is suspended for more than 90 consecutive days by Owner or under an order of court or other public authority, or (ii) Engineer fails to act on any Application for Payment within 30 days after it is submitted, or (iii) Owner fails for 30 days

to pay Contractor any sum finally determined to be due, then Contractor may, upon seven days written notice to Owner and Engineer, and provided Owner or Engineer do not remedy such suspension or failure within that time, terminate the Contract and recover from Owner payment on the same terms as provided in Paragraph 15.03.

B. In lieu of terminating the Contract and without prejudice to any other right or remedy, if Engineer has failed to act on an Application for Payment within 30 days after it is submitted, or Owner has failed for 30 days to pay Contractor any sum finally determined to be due, Contractor may, seven days after written notice to Owner and Engineer, stop the Work until payment is made of all such amounts due Contractor, including interest thereon. The provisions of this Paragraph 15.04 are not intended to preclude Contractor from making a Claim under Paragraph 10.05 for an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times or otherwise for expenses or damage directly attributable to Contractor's stopping the Work as permitted by this Paragraph.

ARTICLE 16 - DISPUTE RESOLUTION

16.01 Methods and Procedures

- A. Either Owner or Contractor may request mediation of any Claim submitted to Engineer for a decision under Paragraph 10.05 before such decision becomes final and binding. The mediation will be governed by the Construction Industry Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration Association in effect as of the Effective Date of the Agreement. The request for mediation shall be submitted in writing to the American Arbitration Association and the other party to the Contract. Timely submission of the request shall stay the effect of Paragraph 10.05.E.
- B. Owner and Contractor shall participate in the mediation process in good faith. The process shall be concluded within 60 days of filing of the request. The date of termination of the mediation shall be determined by application of the mediation rules referenced above.
- C. If the Claim is not resolved by mediation, Engineer's action under Paragraph 10.05.C or a denial pursuant to Paragraphs 10.05.C.3 or 10.05.D shall become final and binding 30 days after termination of the mediation unless, within that time period, Owner or Contractor:
 - 1. elects in writing to invoke any dispute resolution process provided for in the Supplementary Conditions; or
 - 2. agrees with the other party to submit the Claim to another dispute resolution process; or
 - 3. gives written notice to the other party of the intent to submit the Claim to a court of competent jurisdiction.

ARTICLE 17 – MISCELLANEOUS

17.01 Giving Notice

A. Whenever any provision of the Contract Documents requires the giving of written notice, it will be deemed to have been validly given if:

- 1. delivered in person to the individual or to a member of the firm or to an officer of the corporation for whom it is intended; or
- 2. delivered at or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to the last business address known to the giver of the notice.

17.02 Computation of Times

A. When any period of time is referred to in the Contract Documents by days, it will be computed to exclude the first and include the last day of such period. If the last day of any such period falls on a Saturday or Sunday or on a day made a legal holiday by the law of the applicable jurisdiction, such day will be omitted from the computation.

17.03 Cumulative Remedies

A. The duties and obligations imposed by these General Conditions and the rights and remedies available hereunder to the parties hereto are in addition to, and are not to be construed in any way as a limitation of, any rights and remedies available to any or all of them which are otherwise imposed or available by Laws or Regulations, by special warranty or guarantee, or by other provisions of the Contract Documents. The provisions of this Paragraph will be as effective as if repeated specifically in the Contract Documents in connection with each particular duty, obligation, right, and remedy to which they apply.

17.04 Survival of Obligations

A. All representations, indemnifications, warranties, and guarantees made in, required by, or given in accordance with the Contract Documents, as well as all continuing obligations indicated in the Contract Documents, will survive final payment, completion, and acceptance of the Work or termination or completion of the Contract or termination of the services of Contractor.

17.05 Controlling Law

A. This Contract is to be governed by the law of the state in which the Project is located.

17.06 Headings

A. Article and paragraph headings are inserted for convenience only and do not constitute parts of these General Conditions.

WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM NORTH BAY VILLAGE

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

1.01 GENERAL:

These Supplementary Conditions amend or supplement the NSPE-ACEC Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract, EJCDC C-700 (2007 Edition) and other provisions of the Contract Documents as indicated below. All provisions that are not so amended or supplemented remain in full force and effect. If there is a conflict between the Contract, General Conditions (EJCDC C-700 (2007 Edition)) and these Supplementary Conditions, the terms of the Supplementary Conditions shall control.

The Contractor shall note physically by cross out or cross reference notations all changes in the General Conditions called for in the Supplementary Conditions before submitting his Bid.

<u>ARTICLE 1 - DEFINITIONS - Page 1</u>

SC-1.01.A

The terms used in these Supplementary Conditions which are defined in the Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract (EJCDC C-700 (2007) Edition) have the meanings assigned to them in the General Conditions, unless otherwise indicated.

Amend paragraph SC-1.01.A.28 by replacing the terminology Notice of Award with Notice of Intent to Award.

Amend paragraph SC-1.01.A.43 by replacing it with the following paragraph:

Subcontractor – An individual or entity having a direct contract with Contractor. Sub-Subcontractor is an individual or entity having a direct contract with any Subcontractor for the performance of a part of Work at the Project.

Amend paragraph SC-1.01.A.29 by replacing it with the following paragraph:

Village – The individual, entity, public body, Village Manager, or authority with whom Contractor has entered into the Contract and for whom the Work is to be performed.

Add SC-1.01.A.52 as the following paragraph:

Promptly – The period of time not exceeding five business days.

ARTICLE 2 - PRELIMINARY MATTERS - Page 6

SC-2.03

Amend paragraph 2.03.A by replacing the number of days from "30" to "90".

ARTICLE 4 - AVAILABILITY OF LANDS; SUBSURFACE AND PHYSICAL CONDITIONS; REFERENCE POINTS - Page 14

SC-4.04

Amend paragraph 4.04.B.2 by replacing the last sentence with the following:

If Village or Contractor are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any such adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times, a Claim may be made as provided in paragraph 10.05.

ARTICLE 5 - BONDS AND INSURANCE - Page 16

5.01

Amend paragraph 5.01.A by adding the following language at the end of the paragraph:

Any additional costs shall be borne by the Contractor.

5.04

Add the new paragraphs immediately after paragraph 5.04 of the General Conditions.

The limits of liability for the insurance required by paragraph 5.04 of the General Conditions shall provide coverage for not less than the following amounts or greater where required by law:

5.04.A.1 and 5.04.A.2 Workers' Compensation, etc. under paragraphs 5.04.A.1 and 5.04.A.2 of the General Conditions:

- 1. Comprehensive General Liability:
 - (a) Coverage to include Premise/Operations, Broad Form Property Damage, Contractual and Personal Injury, and XCU (where applicable).
- 2. Limits:
 - (a) General Aggregate \$1,000,000

(b) Each Occurrence \$1,000,000 (c) Personal Injury \$1,000,000

- 3. Coverage is to be written on an "occurrence" basis.
- 4. Village's and Contractors Protection:
 - (a) Bodily Injury:

Annual Aggregate \$1,000,000 Each Occurrence \$1,000,000

(b) Property Damage:

Annual Aggregate \$1,000,000 Each Occurrence \$1,000,000

- 5. Worker's Compensation shall be in accordance with the provisions of the laws of the State of Florida.
- 5.04.A.7 Comprehensive Automobile Liability:
 - (a) Coverage to include all owned, hired, non-owned vehicles, and/or trailers and other equipment required to be licensed.
 - (b) Limits:

Combined Single Limit \$1,000,000

- 5.04.B.8 Umbrella:
 - (a) Limits:

Aggregate \$1,000,000

- (b) Cover all claims arising out of the Contractor's operations or premises, anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Contractor or Subcontractor, and the Contractor's obligations under indemnification under this Contract.
- 5.04.B.9 North Bay Village, shall be included as a named insured party under the Contractors Liability Insurance. The following paragraph is required to appear unaltered on the Certificate of Insurance.

"North Bay Village, Florida is hereby named Additional Insured under the terms of this policy."

- 5.04.B.10 A thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation is required and must be stated on the Certificate of Insurance.
- 5.04.B.11 The Certificate of Insurance shall be issued to North Bay Village, Florida at the following address:

North Bay Village

1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300 North Bay Village, FL 33141

ARTICLE 6 - CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES - INDEMNIFICATION - Page 22

SC-6.01

Add the new paragraphs immediately after paragraph 6.01.B of the General Conditions.

The Contractor shall perform all work in compliance with all applicable safety codes. A competent English speaking superintendent will be on the job at all times during working hours, and will be subject to call during off-¬duty hours for emergency situations. The superintendent shall have overall charge of the work with complete authority regarding the Contractor's workmen, equipment and material purchases. The superintendent shall have complete authority to act on behalf of the Contractor. This person must be sufficiently qualified and have read and understood the Drawings, Specifications and all Contract Documents.

SC-6.02

Modify paragraph 6.02.B to allow work on Saturday per the following new paragraph added immediately after paragraph 6.02.B of the General Conditions.

The Project sites being located in a single-family residential area, there shall be no undue noise created, whether by workers arriving at the sites or by actual construction work, before 8:00 a.m. or after 4:00 p.m. Monday through Saturday. No work shall be performed on Sunday or legal holidays as defined by Village Code and Ordinance. There are no public sanitary facilities nearby the work sites, and the Contractor must therefore make arrangements for portable sanitary facilities as authorized by the Village.

SC-6.06

Amend paragraph 6.06.A by replacing the last sentence of the paragraph with the following sentence:

Contractor shall not be required to employ any Subcontractor, supplier, or other individual or entity to furnish or perform any of the Work against whom Contractor has reasonable objection, except as required by 6.06.B and the Instruction to Bidders.

Amend paragraph 6.06.B by adding the words "Instructions to Bidders" before Supplementary Conditions where ever it appears.

Amend paragraph 6.06.B by deleting the following sentence from the paragraph:

Contractor shall submit an acceptable replacement for the rejected Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity, and the Contract Price will be adjusted by the difference in the cost occasioned by such replacement, and an appropriate Change Order will be issued or Written Amendment signed.

Amend paragraph 6.06.B by adding the following language at the end of the last sentence of the paragraph:

nor does such acceptance create a contractual relationship between the Village and any subcontractor, supplier, individual or entity.

SC-6.09

Amend paragraph 6.09.C by replacing the first sentence of the paragraph with the following sentence:

Changes in Laws or Regulations which become effective after the time of opening of Bids (or, on the Effective Date of the Contract if there were no Bids) having an effect on the cost or time of performance of the Work may be the subject of an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times.

Add the new paragraphs immediately after paragraph 6.09.C. of the General Conditions:

All vehicles used in connection with the Contractor's operations will be required to have identification signs.

SC-6.11

Amend paragraph 6.11.A.2 by adding the following language at the end of the last sentence:

, as set forth on the Resident Complaint Resolution Protocol attached hereto and made a part of the Contract Documents.

Add the new paragraphs immediately after paragraph 6.11.B. of the General Conditions:

Adjacent residents must have access to their driveways at all times. All barricades and warning signs for any traffic lane closures will be provided and maintained by the Contractor. Cost of all barricades and signs shall be the responsibility of the Contractor. Any off-duty officers as may be required in the

maintenance of traffic shall be provided by the Contractor at the Contractor's expense.

SC-6.12

Amend paragraph 6.12.A by replacing the first sentence of the paragraph with the following sentence:

Contractor shall maintain in a safe place at the Project one record copy of all Drawings, Project Specifications, Addenda, Written Amendments, Change Orders, Work Change Directives, Field Orders, AsBuilts, and written interpretations and clarifications in good order and annotated to show changes made during construction.

SC-6.13

Amend paragraph 6.13.A.3 by replacing it with the following paragraph:

other property at the Project or adjacent thereto, including, but not limited, to trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, structures, utilities, and underground facilities not designated for removal, relocation, or replacement in course of construction.

SC-6.20

Amend the paragraphs 6.20.A.1 and 6.20.A.2 by replacing them with the following paragraph.

To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, the Parties agree that in consideration of the first \$1,000.00 dollars to be paid by Village to Contractor hereunder and other specific consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Village and Village Engineer and their consultants, agents, officers and employees, and the elected officials of the Village, from and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses, direct, indirect or consequential (including but not limited to fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys and other professional and court and arbitration costs) arising out of or resulting from the performance of the Work, provided that any such claim, damage, loss or expense (a) is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself) including the loss of use resulting therefrom and (b) is caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or omission of Contractor, any Subcontractor, any person or organization directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform or furnish any of the Work or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, regardless of whether or not it is caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder or arises by or is implied by Law and Regulations regardless of the negligence of any such party.

Amend paragraphs 6.20.B by replacing it with the following paragraph:

In any and all claims against Village and Village Engineer and their consultants, agents, officers and employees, and the elected officials of the Village by any Contractor, any Subcontractor, any person or organization directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform or furnish any of the Work or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation under paragraph 6.20 shall not be limited in any way, by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for Contractor or any such Subcontractor or other person or organization under workers' or workmen's compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts.

ARTICLE 8 - VILLAGE'S RESPONSIBILITIES - Page 36

SC-8.02

Amend paragraph 8.02.A by replacing it with the following paragraph:

In case of termination of the employment of Village Engineer, Village shall appoint an engineer whose status under the Contract Documents shall be that of the former Village Engineer.

<u>ARTICLE 9 - VILLAGE ENGINEER'S STATUS DURING CONSTRUCTION - Page</u> 37

SC-9.03

Amend paragraph 9.03.A by adding the following language at the end of the paragraph:

The Village Engineer will provide a Resident Project Representative for this Project with duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority as outlined in Exhibit "B" attached at the end of these Supplementary Conditions. The Resident Project Representative will not be a full time Representative, but will work such periods of time so as to cover the Project in accordance with Exhibit "B".

SC-9.04

Amend paragraph 9.04.A by deleting the following sentence from the end of the paragraph:

If Village and Contractor are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or

both, as a result of a Field Order, a Claim may be made therefore as provided in paragraph 10.05.

SC-9.07

Amend paragraph 9.07.A by replacing the word "decision" in the second sentence with the word "recommendation" and adding the words "recommendation will be submitted to the Village Manager whose" into the third sentence between the words "written" and "decision".

SC-9.08

Amend paragraph 9.08.D by replacing the word "decision" with "recommendation" in the second paragraph and deleting the words "Village or" from the last sentence.

ARTICLE 10 - CHANGES IN THE WORK; CLAIMS - Page 40

SC-10.01

Amend paragraph 10.01.A by replacing the first sentence of the paragraph with the following sentence:

Without invalidating the Contract and without notice to any Surety, Village may, at any time or from time to time, order additions, deletions, or revisions in the Work by a Written Amendment, a Change Order, a Work Change Directive, or a Field Directive.

Amend paragraph 10.05.D by adding the following sentence at the end of the paragraph:

Adherence to the terms of paragraph 10.05 is a condition precedent to bringing any further action in litigation.

SC-10.05

Amend paragraph 10.05. A by replacing it with the following paragraph:

B. Village Manager's Decision: Village Engineer will render a formal recommendation to the Village Manager for a binding decision in writing within 30 days after receipt of the last submittal of the claimant or the last submittal of the opposing party, if any. Village Managers decision on such Claim, dispute, or other matter will be final and binding upon Village and Contractor:

<u>ARTICLE 11 - COST OF THE WORK; CASH ALLOWANCE; UNIT PRICE WORK - Page 42</u>

SC-11.01

Amend paragraph 11.01.A.1 by deleting the word Saturday from the last sentence of the paragraph.

Delete paragraph 11.01.A.4 in its entirety.

SC-11.03.C

Amend paragraph 11.03.C by replacing it with the following paragraph:

C. A Claim may be made for an adjustment in the Contract Price in accordance with paragraph 10.05 if:

<u>ARTICLE 12 – CHANGE OF CONTRACT PRICE; CHANGE OF CONTRACT TIMES – Page 46</u>

SC-12.01.C

Amend paragraph 12.01.C.2.a. by replacing the entire sentence with the following sentence:

for costs incurred under paragraph 11.01.A.1 and 11.01.A.2, the CONTRACTOR's fee shall be 10 percent;

SC-12.01.C

Modify paragraph 12.01.C.2.c. to change the fee as follows in the first sentence:

Will be paid a fee of 10 percent of the costs incurred by such Subcontractor under paragraph 11.01.A.1 and 11.01.A.2 and that any higher tier Subcontractor and Contractor will each be paid a fee of five percent of the amount paid to the next lower tier Subcontractor;

SC-12.03

Amend paragraph 12.03 by replacing the entire paragraph with the following paragraph:

Contractor will not be entitled to any adjustment in the Contract Price for delays extended general conditions, extended overhead, loss of productivity, acceleration or any damages or other compensation whatsoever in the event of any delays in the progress of the Work on account of hindrances or delays from any cause whatsoever. Such causes of delay include but are not limited to differing site conditions, difficulty in acquiring building permits, limited access to the Project, failure to approve plans and shop drawings on time, delays caused by governmental action, inaction or regulation, subsurface conditions, material shortages or delay in delivery of materials. It is the specific intent hereunder that an extension of time will be the sole and exclusive remedy for delay of any type, description of category. However, if occasioned by an act of God, or by any act or omission on the part of the Village such act, hindrance or delay may entitle the Contractor to an extension of time in which to complete the Work which shall be determined by the Village Engineer, provided that the Contractor will give notice as provided herein.

The foregoing limitations on adjustments to Contract Price also apply to any causes of delay which affect any subcontractor, materialman, supplier or laborer on the Project. In no event, if any such events of delay occur, shall any subcontractor, materialman, supplier or laborer be entitled to additional compensation for delays including claims for extended general conditions, extended overhead and the like against the Village or Village Engineer.

<u>ARTICLE 13 - TESTS AND INSPECTIONS; CORRECTION, REMOVAL OR</u> ACCEPTANCE OF DEFECTIVE WORK - Page 48

SC-13.04

Amend paragraph 13.04.A by replacing it with the following paragraph:

If any Work is covered contrary to the Technical Specifications, Drawings or Contract Documents, it must, if requested by Village Engineer, be uncovered for Village Engineer's observation and replaced at Contractor's expense.

Amend paragraph 13.04.B by adding the following language at the end of the second sentence:

or direct payment if remaining Contract funds are not sufficient.

SC-13.09

Amend paragraph 13.09.C by adding the following language at the end of the first sentence:

, or direct payment if remaining Contract funds are not sufficient.

ARTICLE 14 - PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR AND COMPLETION - Page 52

SC-14.02.A.2

Amend paragraph 14.02.A.2 by deleting the existing paragraph and replacing it with the following paragraph:

With each Application for Payment, the Contractor shall include a Partial Waiver Upon Progress Payment or Statutory Waiver and Final Release, as appropriate from each and every materialman, supplier and or laborer ("Potential Lienor") who has provided labor, services or materials for the Project. Contractor shall submit its own Statutory Waiver and Partial Release of Lien or Statutory Waiver and Final Release of Lien, as appropriate, with each Application for Payment. Moreover, Contractor shall ensure that no construction liens, or any encumbrances in the nature thereof or any other encumbrances whatsoever (including equitable lien claims), shall be filed or maintained by the Contractor or by any Potential Lienor in connection with any Work for which Village has made payment or for which payment is not yet due. As a condition precedent to the receipt of each progress payment from the Village, Contractor must furnish the Partial Waiver Upon Progress Payment Statutory Waiver and Final Release from each Potential Lienor, in the form prescribed by Village and/or Village Engineer, together with a Contractor's Affidavit and Partial Release, in the form prescribed by the Village and/or Village Engineer. Further, as a condition precedent to the receipt of the final payment, the Contractor shall provide Village with a Statutory Waiver and Final Release from each Potential Lienor in the form prescribed by Village and/or the Village Engineer, together with a Contractor's Affidavit and Final Release. Each Release given to the Village shall waive and release any lien rights of the Potential Lienor to the extent payment is made with respect to any Work performed through the date of the Release. For any Potential Lienor who has served a Notice to Village and/or Notice to Contractor, but who has not provided labor, services or materials during the period of time covered by an Application for Payment, the Contractor shall provide a Zero Dollar Release in the form prescribed by Village and/or Village Engineer. Contractor shall comply with all requirements of Florida Statutes, Chapter 713. Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the Village harmless from and against any and all liens or other claims whatsoever filed against the Village or the Village's property by any Potential Lienor for worked performed or materials or services furnished in connection with the Work for which Contractor has been paid or for which payment is not yet due at the time the Lien is recorded. In the event a Claim of Lien is recorded against the Village's property, the Contractor shall cause the same to be satisfied within ten (10) days following the date of recordation of the Claim of Lien, or in the alternative, shall cause the Claim of Lien to be transferred to a Bond. In the event any Liens are not cleared of record within ten (10) days of recordation, Village shall have the right to settle, satisfy, or transfer such Lien to a Bond at Contractor's sole cost and expense and Village may offset any such cost against the next payment due to Contractor, or Contractor shall make a direct payment if remaining Contract funds are not sufficient.

Village shall not be limited to and is entitled to all other remedies available at law or in equity. The provisions of this paragraph shall be deemed an independent covenant of the Contractor and shall be effective with respect to all Work performed and materials and services furnished under the Contract Documents, Change Orders or any other agreement for work with respect to the Project.

SC-14.02.D.1.b

Amend paragraph 14.02.D.1.b by deleting the existing paragraph and replacing it with the following:

Liens have been recorded in connection with the Work or the Project.

SC-14.07

Amend paragraph 14.07.A.1 by replacing it with the following paragraph:

After Contractor has, in the opinion of Village Engineer, satisfactorily completed all corrections identified during the final inspection and has delivered, in accordance with the Contract Documents, all maintenance and operation instructions, schedules, guarantees, Bonds, certificates or other evidence of insurance, certificates of inspection, marked-up record documents (as provided in paragraph 6.12), final releases, final affidavits, Asbuilts, and other documents, Contractor may make application for final payment following the procedure for progress payments.

Amend paragraph 14.07.A.2 by adding the following language at the end of the first sentence:

or claims made against the Bonds provided by Contractor under the Contract Documents.

Delete paragraph 14.07.A.3 in its entirety.

SC-14.09

Amend paragraph 14.09.A.1 by replacing it with the following paragraph:

a waiver of all Claims by Village against Contractor, except Claims arising from unsettled Liens or Claims against the Bonds, from defective Work appearing after final inspection pursuant to paragraph 14.06, from failure to comply with the Contract Documents or the terms of any special guarantees specified therein, or from Contractor's continuing obligations under the Contract Documents; and

ARTICLE 15 - SUSPENSION OF WORK AND TERMINATION - Page 59

SC-15.03

Delete paragraph 15.03.A.3 in its entirety.

Delete paragraph 15.03.A.4 in its entirety.

SC-15.04

Amend paragraph 15.04.B. by deleting the last sentence of the paragraph.

EXHIBIT "B"

A LISTING OF THE DUTIES, RESPONSIBILITIES AND LIMITATIONS OF AUTHORITY OF THE RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE

Village Engineer shall furnish a Resident Project Representative (RPR), assistants and other field staff to assist Village Engineer in observing performance of the Work of the Contractor.

Through more extensive on-site observations of the Work in progress and field checks of materials and equipment by the RPR and assistants, Village Engineer shall endeavor to provide further protection for Village against defects and deficiencies in the Work; but, the furnishing of such services will not make Village Engineer responsible for or give Village Engineer control or supervisory control over construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures or for safety precautions or programs, or responsibility for Contractor's failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

The duties and responsibilities of the RPR are limited to those of Village Engineer in Village Engineer's agreement with the Village and in the construction Contract Documents, and are further limited and described as follows:

A. General

RPR is Village Engineer's agent at the site, will act as directed by and under the supervision of Village Engineer, and will confer with Village Engineer regarding RPR's actions. RPR's dealings in matters pertaining to the on-site work shall in general be with Village Engineer and Contractor keeping Village advised as necessary. RPR's dealings with subcontractors shall only be through or with the full knowledge and approval of Contractor. RPR shall generally communicate with Village with the knowledge of and under the direction of Village Engineer.

B. Duties and Responsibilities of RPR

- l. <u>Schedules</u>: Review the progress schedule, schedule of Shop Drawing submittals and schedule of values prepared by Contractor and consult with Village Engineer concerning acceptability.
- 2. <u>Conferences and Meetings</u>: Attend meetings with Contractor, such as pre-construction conferences, progress meetings, job conferences and other Project-related meetings, and prepare and circulate copies of minutes thereof.

3. Liaison:

- a. Serve as Village Engineer's liaison with Contractor, working principally through Contractor's superintendent and assist in understanding the intent of the Contract Documents; and assist Village Engineer in serving as Village's liaison with Contractor when Contractor's operation affect Village's on-site operations.
- b. Assist in obtaining from Village additional details or information, when required for proper execution of the Work.

4. Shop Drawings and Samples:

- a. Record date of receipt of Shop Drawings and samples.
- b. Receive samples that are furnished at the site by Contractor, and notify Village Engineer of availability of samples for examination.
- c. Advise Village Engineer and Contractor of the commencement of any Work requiring a Shop Drawing or sample if Village Engineer has not approved the submittal.

5. Review of Work, Rejection of Defective Work, Inspections and Tests:

a. Conduct on-site observations of the Work in progress to assist Village Engineer in determining if the Work is in general proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents.

- b. Report to Village Engineer whenever RPR believes that any Work is unsatisfactory, faulty or defective or does not conform to the Contract Documents, or has been damaged, or does not meet the requirements of any inspection, test or approval required to be made; and advise Village Engineer of Work that RPR believes should be corrected or rejected or should be uncovered for observation, or requires special testing, inspection or approval.
- c. Verify that tests, equipment and systems startups and operating and maintenance training are conducted in the presence of appropriate personnel, and that Contractor maintains adequate records thereof; and observe, record and report to Village Engineer appropriate details relative to the test procedures and startups.
- d. Accompany visiting inspectors representing public or other agencies having jurisdiction over the Project, record the results of these inspections and report to Village Engineer.
- 6. <u>Interpretation of Contract Documents</u>: Report to Village Engineer when clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents are needed and transmit to Contractor clarifications and interpretations as issued by Village Engineer.
- 7. <u>Modifications</u>: Consider and evaluate Contractor's suggestions for modifications in Drawings or Specifications and report with RPR's recommendations to Village Engineer. Transmit to Contractor decisions as issued by Village Engineer.

8. Records:

a. Maintain at the job site orderly files for correspondence, reports of job conferences, Shop Drawings and samples, reproductions of original Contract Documents including all Work Directive Changes, Addenda, Change Orders, Field Orders, additional Drawings issued subsequent to the execution of the Contract, Village Engineer's clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents, progress reports, and other Project related documents.

- b. Keep a diary or log book, recording Contractor hours on the job site, weather conditions, data relative to questions of Work Directive Changes, Change Orders or changed conditions, list of job site visitors, daily activities, decisions, observations in general, and specific observations in more detail as in the case of observing test procedures; and send copies to Village Engineer.
- c. Record names, addresses and telephone numbers of all Contractors, subcontractors and major suppliers of materials and equipment.

9. Reports:

- a. Furnish Village Engineer periodic reports as required of progress of the Work and of Contractor's compliance with the progress schedule and schedule of Shop Drawing and sample submittals.
- b. Consult with Village Engineer in advance of scheduled major tests, inspections or start of important phases of the Work.
- c. Draft proposed Change Orders and Work Directive Changes, obtaining backup material from Contractor and recommend to Village Engineer Change Orders, Work Directive Changes, and Field Orders.
- d. Report immediately to Village Engineer and Village upon the occurrence of any accident.
- 10. <u>Payment Requests</u>: Review applications for payment with Contractor for compliance with the established procedure for their submission and forward with recommendations to Village Engineer, noting particularly the relationship of the payment requested to the schedule of values. Work completed and materials and equipment delivered at the site but not incorporated in the Work.
- 11. <u>Certificates, Maintenance and Operation Manuals</u>: During the course of the Work, verify that certificates, maintenance and operation manuals and other data required to be assembled and furnished by Contractor are applicable to the items actually installed and in accordance with the Contract Documents, and have this material delivered to Village Engineer for review and forwarding to Village prior to final payment for the Work.

12. Completion:

- a. Before Village Engineer issues a Certificate of Substantial Completion, submit to Contractor a list of observed items requiring completion or correction.
- b. Conduct final inspection in the company of Village Engineer, Village and Contractor and prepare a final list of items to be completed or corrected.

c. Observe that all items on final list have been completed or corrected and make recommendations to Village Engineer concerning acceptance.

C. Limitations of Authority

Resident Project Representative:

- 1. Shall not authorize any deviation from the Contract Documents or substitution of materials or equipment, unless authorized by Village Engineer.
- 2. Shall not exceed limitations of Village Engineer's authority as set forth in the Contract Documents.
- 3. Shall not undertake any of the responsibilities of Contractor, subcontractors or Contractor's superintendent.
- 4. Shall not advise on, issue directions relative to or assume control over any aspect of the means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of construction unless such advice or directions are specifically required by the Contract Documents.
- 5. Shall not advise on, issue directions regarding or assume control over safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work.
- 6. Shall not accept Shop Drawings or sample submittals from anyone other than Contractor.
- 7. Shall not authorize Village to occupy the Project in whole or in part.
- 8. Shall not participate in specialized field or laboratory tests or inspections conducted by others except as specifically authorized by Village Engineer.

END OF SECTION

SWORN STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 287.133(3)(a), <u>FLORIDA STATUES</u>, ON PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES

THIS FORM MUST BE SIGNED AND SWORN TO IN THE PRESENCE OF A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICIAL AUTHORIZED TO ADMINISTER OATHS.

| by [print individual's name and title] | | | |
|--|--|--|--|
| | [print individual's name and title] | | |
| for | | | |
| | [print name of entity submitting sworn statement] | | |
| whose busine | ess address is | | |
| whose busing | ess address is | | |
| | ess address is eable) its Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) is | | |
| and (if applic | | | |

2. I understand that a "public entity crime" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(g), **Florida Statutes**, means a violation of any state or federal law by a person with respect to and directly related to the transaction of business with any public entity or with an agency or political subdivision of any other state or of the United States, including, but not limited to, any bid or contract for goods or services to be provided to any public entity or an agency or political subdivision of any other state or of the United States and involving antitrust, fraud, theft, bribery, collusion, racketeering, conspiracy, or material misrepresentation.

- 3. I understand that "convicted" or "conviction" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(b), **Florida Statutes**, means a finding or guilt or a conviction of a public entity crime, with or without an adjudication of guilt, in any federal or state trial court of record relating to charges brought by indictment or information after July 1, 1989, as a result of a jury verdict, nonjury trial, or entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere.
- 4. I understand that an "affiliate" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(a), **Florida Statutes**, means:
 - 1. A predecessor or successor of a person convicted of a public entity crime: or
 - 2. An entity under the control of any natural person who is active in the management of the entity and who has been convicted of a public entity crime. The term "affiliate" includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active in the management of an affiliate. The ownership by one person of shares constituting a controlling interest in another person, or a pooling of equipment or income among persons when not for fair market value under an arm's length agreement, shall be a prima facie case that one person controls another person. A person who knowingly enters into a joint venture with a person who has been convicted of a public entity crime in Florida during the preceding 36 months shall be considered an affiliate.
- 5. I understand that a "person" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(e), **Florida Statutes**, means any natural person or entity organized under the laws of any state or of the United States with the legal power to enter into a binding contract and which bids or applies to bid on contracts for the provision of goods or services let by a public entity, or which otherwise transacts or applies to transact business with a public entity. The term "person" includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active in management of an entity.
- 6. Based on information and belief, the statement which I have marked below is true in relation to the entity submitting this sworn statement. [indicate which statement applies.]

| Neither the | entity | submitting | this s | worn st | atement, | nor | any | officers, | direct | tors, |
|-------------------|-----------|--------------|-----------|-----------|------------|------|--------|------------|--------|-------|
| executives, partn | ers, sha | reholders, e | employe | es, mer | mbers, or | agen | its wh | no are act | ive in | the |
| management of | the ent | ity, nor any | y affilia | te of th | ne entity, | has | been | charged | with | and |
| convicted of a pu | ıblic ent | ity crime su | bseque | nt to Jul | y 1, 1989 | | | | | |

| The entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of its officers, directors |
|---|
| executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the |
| management of the entity, or an affiliate of the entity has been charged with and |
| convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989. |
| |
| The entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of its officers, directors |
| executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the |
| management of the entity, or an affiliate of the entity has been charged with and |
| convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989. However, there has been a |
| subsequent proceeding before a Hearing Officer of the State of Florida, Division of |
| Administrative Hearings and the Final Order entered by the Hearing Officer determined |
| that it was not in public interest to place the entity submitting this sworn statement on the |
| 1 1 0 |
| convicted vendor list. [attach a copy of the final order] |
| |
| DEDOMINED MILL MILL CLIDS FIGGE ON OF MILL DODGE MA MILL |

I UNDERSTAND THAT THE SUBMISSION OF THIS FORM TO THE CONTRACTING OFFICER FOR THE PUBLIC ENTITY IDENTIFIED IN PARAGRAPH 1 (ONE) ABOVE IS FOR THAT PUBLIC ENTITY ONLY AND, THAT THIS FORM IS VALID THROUGH DECEMBER 31 OF THE CALENDAR YEAR IN WHICH IT IS FILED, I ALSO UNDERSTAND THAT I AM REQUIRED TO INFORM THE PUBLIC ENTITY PRIOR TO ENTERING INTO A CONTRACT IN EXCESS OF THE THRESHOLD AMOUNT PROVIDED IN SECTION 287.017, FLORIDA STATUTES FOR CATEGORY TWO OF ANY CHANGE IN THE INFORMATION CONTAINED INT HIS FORM.

| | [signature] |
|--|--|
| Sworn to and subscribed before me this | day of, 20 |
| Personally known | |
| OR Produced identification | Notary Public - State of |
| (Type of identification) | My commission expires |
| Form PUR 7068 (Rev. 06/11/92) | (Printed typed or stamped commissioned name notary public) |

SECTION 01000

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION OF WORK

- A. Furnish all labor and materials to manage the design, equipment supply, replacement of existing water meters, field installation, system implementation, and optimization of a Mobile Based Advanced Metering Infrastructure and Water Loss Management system to read meters in an automated and cost effective manner as well as reduce the Village's unaccounted for and non-revenue water. The scope of work involves, but is not limited to, providing and installing software, hardware, as well as providing all necessary training and installation support. The project also includes repairing or replacing associated water service piping as needed from the new water meters to the water main, water meter box replacement, water system testing, removal of existing water meters and boxes, maintenance of traffic, trench/roadway restoration, site restoration, and all other appurtenances necessary for a complete project. Construction of this project will require close coordination with the Owner and Engineer. Maximum project duration for project completion is ten (10) months.
- B. Omission of a specific item or component part of a system obviously necessary for the proper functioning of the system shall not relieve the Contractor of the responsibility of furnishing the item as part of the work at no additional cost to Owner.
- C. The Specification Divisions and Drawings are an integrated part of the Contract Documents and as such will not stand alone if used independently as individual Sections, Divisions, or Drawing Sheets. The Drawings and Specifications establish minimum standards of quality for this Project. They do not purport to cover all details entering into the design and construction of materials or equipment.
- D. Where portions of the work traverse or cross federal, state, county or local highways, roads, streets, or waterways, and the agency in control of such property has established standard specifications governing items of work that differ from these specifications, the most stringent requirements shall apply.
- E. The Contractor shall become familiar with the existing operating conditions of the Owner's water distribution system and take such into consideration in planning and scheduling work. No extra claims shall be made for work required to achieve conditions beyond those obtainable under normal operation of the existing water distribution facilities necessary to accomplish the work.

1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Laws and Regulations: Contractor shall give all notices and comply with all laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations applicable to the work. If Contractor observes that the Specifications or Drawings are at variance therewith, Contractor shall give Engineer prompt written notice thereof, and any necessary changes shall be adjusted by an appropriate modification. If Contractor performs any work, knowing or having reason to know, that it is contrary to such laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations, and without such notice to Engineer, Contractor shall bear all costs arising therefrom. However, it shall not be Contractor's primary responsibility to make certain that the Specifications and Drawings are in accordance with such laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations.

1.03 PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS

- A. Automated Meter Reading System specifications are included in Appendix A.
- B. The Miami-Dade Standard Specifications and Details for Design and Construction of water and wastewater improvements, latest edition are hereby incorporated by reference and the Contractor shall comply with all requirements. Select Miami-Dade Water and Sewer specification and details are included in Appendix B for reference.
- C. Portions of the Florida Department of Transportation Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction and their Roadway and Traffic Design Standards, hereinafter referred to as the DOT Standard Specifications, are referred to herein and amended, in part, and the same are hereby made a part of this Contract to the extent of such references and shall be as binding upon the Contract as though reproduced herein. Such reference shall mean the current edition, including all supplements. In case of a conflict in the requirements of the DOT Specifications and the requirements stated herein, the requirements herein shall prevail.
- D. Contractor will be required to submit Maintenance of Traffic (MOT) plans for work on the Village streets and State highways. Contractor shall coordinate with MOTs for nearby or highway work and obtain approval for all traffic control as required by the permit jurisdiction having authority
- E. This project is funded through the Florida Department of Environmental Protection State Revolving Fund Program and subject to the Supplementary Conditions included as Appendix C.
- F. The applicable portions of North Bay Village Code and Florida Building Code shall apply to the project.

PART 2 SEQUENCE OF OPERATIONS

2.01 SCHEDULING

- A. General: Prepare and submit schedule in accordance with the provisions of Section 01300.
- B. Plan the Work and carry it out with minimum interference to the operation of the existing facilities. Prior to starting the work, confer with the Engineer and Owner's representative to develop an approved work schedule which will permit the facilities to function normally as practical. It may be necessary to do certain parts of the construction work outside normal working hours in order to avoid undesirable conditions. The Contractor shall do this work at such times, and at no additional cost to the Owner. Do not make connections between existing work and new work until necessary inspection and tests have been completed on the new work and it is found to conform in all respects to the requirements of the Contract Documents.
- C. No work shall be started until the Contractor has received approved shop drawings, established material/delivery dates for all equipment, and received approval of the construction schedule from the Engineer or Owner. The Contractor shall have sufficient manpower, equipment, and material to complete the project.
- D. No work shall commence without express consent of the Engineer or Owner.
- E. If a privately owned staging area is required, no work shall commence until approval of the facility is obtained in accordance with Village requirements.

2.02 MOBILIZATION AND DEMOBILIZATION

A. Contractor shall be responsible for mobilization and demobilization of labor, materials and equipment. Payment for mobilization and demobilization shall be included in the lump sum price for the Project.

2.03 COORDINATION

- A. Contractor shall cooperate in the coordination of separate activities in a manner that will provide the least interference with the Owner's operations and other contractors and utility companies working in the area, and in the interfacing and connection of the separate elements of the overall project work.
- B. If any difficulty or dispute should arise in the accomplishment of the above, the problem shall be brought immediately to the attention of the Project Manager or Owner.

2.04 SHUTDOWN OF EXISTING OPERATIONS OR UTILITIES

- A. Continuous operation of the Owner's service functions is of critical importance. The Contractor's work shall not result in the interruption of sewage, water, or solid waste service to any customers.
- B. Minimizing conflicts with the ongoing area-wide commercial activities is of critical importance. The Contractor's work shall minimize in the interruption of operations at any facility or business.
- C. Connections to existing services or utilities, or other work that requires the temporary shutdown of any existing operations or utilities shall be planned in detail with appropriate scheduling of the work and coordinated with the Owner or Project Manager. Two business days advanced notice shall be given in order that the Owner or Project Manager may witness the shutdown, tie-in, and startup. The temporary shutdown must be approved by the Owner. All tie-in and bypass operations shall be the responsibility of the Contractor and are considered incidental to the cost of construction and provided at no additional cost to the Owner.
- D. All materials and equipment (including emergency equipment) necessary to expedite the tie-in shall be on hand prior to the shutdown of existing services or utilities.

2.05 OPERATION OF EXISTING SYSTEM PROHIBITED

A. At no time undertake to close off any utility lines or open valves or take any other action which would affect the operation of existing systems. The Owner's forces will operate all valves. Provide at least one business day notice to Owner prior to any operations.

PART 3 SITE CONDITIONS

3.01 SITE INVESTIGATION AND REPRESENTATION

A. The Contractor acknowledges satisfaction as to the general nature and location of the work, the general and local conditions, particularly those bearing upon availability of transportation, availability of labor, water, electric power, roads, and uncertainties of weather, or similar physical conditions, the character of equipment and facilities needed preliminary to and during the prosecution of the work, and all other matters which can in any way affect the work or the cost thereof under this Contract.

B. Failure by the Contractor to become acquainted with the physical conditions and all the available information will not relieve the Contractor from responsibility for properly estimating the difficulty or cost of successfully performing the work.

3.02 UTILITIES

- A. The Contractor shall be responsible for determining and/or confirming, at his cost, the locations of all utilities within the project area, and shall be responsible for contacting each utility for location and notification prior to commencing work.
- B. The Contractor shall contact potentially affected utilities as needed.
- C. The Contractor shall contact Sunshine State One Call at 1-800-432-4770 at least 2 working days prior to any excavation and make arrangements for locating all utilities in the project area.

3.03 CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITY FOR UTILITY PROPERTIES AND SERVICE

- A. Where the Contractor's operations could cause damage or inconvenience to utilities, telephone, television, power, water, or sewer systems, the operations shall be suspended until all arrangements necessary for the protection of these utilities and services have been made by the Contractor with the owner of the utility affected.
- B. Notify all utility offices which are affected by the construction operation at least 2 working days in advance. Under no circumstances expose any utility without first obtaining permission from the appropriate agency. Once permission has been granted, locate, expose, and provide temporary support for all existing underground utilities.
- C. The Contractor shall be solely and directly responsible to the Owner and operators of such properties for any damage, injury, expense, loss, inconvenience, delay, suits, actions, or claims of any character brought because of any injuries or damage which may result from the construction operations under this Contract.
- D. Neither the Owner nor its officers or agents shall be responsible to the Contractor for damages as a result of the Contractor's failure to protect utilities encountered in the work.
- E. In the event of interruption to domestic water, sewer, storm drain, or other utility services as a result of accidental breakage due to construction operations, promptly notify the proper authority. Cooperate with said authority in restoration of service as promptly as possible and bear all costs of repair. In no case shall

interruption of any water or utility service be allowed to exist outside working hours unless prior approval is granted.

- F. In the event the Contractor encounters water service lines or sewer laterals that interfere with trenching, he may, by obtaining prior approval of the property owner, the Engineer and the Owner, cut the service, dig through, and restore the service with similar and equal materials at the Contractor's expense.
- G. The Contractor shall replace, at his own expense, all existing utilities or structures removed or damaged during construction, unless otherwise provided for in these Contract documents or ordered by the Engineer.

3.04 INTERFERING STRUCTURES

- A. Take necessary precautions to prevent damage to existing structures whether on the surface, aboveground, or underground.
- B. Protect underground and aboveground existing structures from damage. Where such existing fences, gates, sheds, buildings, or any other structure must be removed in order to properly carry out the construction, or are damaged during construction, restore to their original condition to the satisfaction of the property owner involved at the Contractor's own expense. Notify the Project Manager of any damaged underground structure, and make repairs or replacements before backfilling.
- C. Without additional compensation, the Contractor may remove and shall replace in a condition as good as or better than original, such small miscellaneous structures as fences, mailboxes, and signposts that interfere with the Contractor's operations.

PART 4 SAFETY AND CONVENIENCE

4.01 SAFETY AND ACCESS

- A. The Contractor shall do all work necessary to protect the general public from hazards, including, but not limited to, surface irregularities or unramped grade changes in pedestrian sidewalk or walkway, and trenches or excavations in roadway. Barricades, lanterns, and proper signs shall be furnished in sufficient amount to safeguard the public and the work. All barricades and signs shall be clean and serviceable, in the opinion of the Project Manager.
- B. The Contractor shall notify all residences and businesses of planned construction at least 5 working days prior to the start of work in the block where they are located. Such notices shall be brochures or door-hangers with sufficient

- information to describe the extent and duration of the planned work. Notification activities shall be coordinated with the Village Engineer.
- C. Homeowners and business owners shall be provided reasonable access. The Contractor shall provide temporary sidewalks, bridges or driveway access, including safe passage over open excavations as required.

4.02 ACCIDENT REPORTS

- A. In addition, the Contractor must promptly report in writing to the Engineer all accidents whatsoever arising out of, or in connection with, the performance of the work whether on, or adjacent to, the site, giving full details and statements of witnesses. If death or serious injuries or serious damages are caused, the accident shall be reported immediately by telephone or messenger to the Project Manager.
- B. If a claim is made by anyone against the contractor or any subcontractor on account of any accident, the Contractor shall promptly report the facts in writing to the Project Manager, giving full details of the claim.

4.03 PROTECTION OF PROPERTY

- A. Protect stored materials located adjacent to the proposed work. Notify property owners affected by the construction at least two business days in advance of the time construction begins. During construction operations, construct and maintain such facilities as may be required to provide access by all property owners to their property. No person shall be cut off from access to his residence or place of business for a period exceeding 2 hours, unless the Contractor has made special arrangements with the affected persons.
- B. The Contractor shall identify and isolate his active work zone in such a manner as to exclude all personnel not employed by him, the Project Manager, and the Owner.

4.04 FIRE PREVENTION AND PROTECTION

A. The Contractor shall perform all work in a fire-safe manner. He shall supply and maintain on the site adequate fire-fighting equipment capable of extinguishing incipient fires. The Contractor shall comply with applicable federal, state, and local fire-prevention regulations. Where these regulations do not apply, applicable parts of the National Fire Prevention Standard for Safeguarding Building Construction Operations (NFPA No. 241) shall be followed.

4.05 ACCESS FOR POLICE, FIRE, AND POSTAL SERVICE

A. Notify the fire department and police department before closing any street or portion thereof. No closing shall be made without the Owner's approval of MOT

plan. Notify said departments when the streets are again passable for emergency vehicles. Do not block off emergency vehicle access to consecutive arterial crossings or dead-end streets, in excess of 300 linear feet, without special written permission from the fire department. Conduct operations with the least interference to fire equipment access, and at no time prevent such access.

B. Maintain postal service facilities in accordance with the requirements of the U.S. Postal Service.

PART 5 PRESERVATION, RESTORATION, AND CLEANUP

5.01 SITE RESTORATION AND CLEANUP

- A. At all times during the work, keep the premises clean and orderly, and upon completion of the work, repair all damage caused by equipment and leave the project free of rubbish or excess materials of any kind.
- B. Stockpile excavated materials in a manner that will cause the least damage to adjacent lawns, grassed areas, gardens, shrubbery, or fences, regardless of whether these are on State or Village rights-of-way. Remove all excavated materials from grassed and planted areas, and leave these surfaces in a condition equivalent to their original condition.

5.02 FINISHING OF SITE, BORROW, AND STORAGE AREAS

A. Upon completion of the project, all areas used by the Contractor shall be properly cleared of all temporary structures, rubbish, and waste materials and properly graded to drain and blend in with the abutting property. Areas used for the deposit of waste materials shall be finished to properly drain and blend with the surrounding terrain. Grassed areas shall be restored as specified.

PART 6 PERMITS

6.01 GENERAL

- A. Permits to be Obtained by the Contractor may include, but are not limited to the following:
 - 1. Local Building permits.
 - 2. Local and State contracting licenses.
 - 3. State utility permit.
 - 4. State/County dewatering permit.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 01020

ALLOWANCE

PART 1 SCOPE OF WORK

1.01 DEFINITION

A. Included in the contract sum is an allowance account for unforeseen conditions, potential construction changes and adjustments, if ordered and authorized by the Village in accordance with the contract documents.

1.02 ALLOWANCE ACCOUNT

- A. Monies in the allocation account will be used only with pre-approval in writing by the Village and issuance of change order.
- B. At the closeout of contract, monies remaining in the allowance account will be credited to the Village by change order.

1.03 SELECTION OF PRODUCTS UNDER ALLOWANCES

- A. Engineer's Duties:
 - 1. Consult with the Contractor in consideration of products and supplier or installers or changes in quantities of Proposal items.
 - 2. Make selection in consultation with the Owner. Obtain Owner's written decision, designating:
 - a. Product, model and/or class of materials.
 - b. Accessories and attachments.
 - c. Supplier and installer as applicable.
 - d. Cost to Contractor, delivered to the site or installed, as applicable.
 - e. Warranties
 - f. Quantities
 - 3. Transmit Owner's decision to the Contractor.
 - 4. Prepare change orders.
- B. Contractor's Duties:

- 1. Assist Engineer and Owner in determining qualified suppliers, quantities or subcontractor.
- 2. Obtain proposals from a minimum of three (3) suppliers and/or subcontractors when requested by Engineer.
- 3. Make appropriate recommendations for consideration of the Engineer.
- 4. Notify Engineer promptly of:
 - a. Any reasonable objections Contractor may have against any supplier, or party under consideration for installation.
 - b. Any effect on the construction schedule anticipated by selection under consideration.

1.04 CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITY FOR PURCHASE, DELIVERY AND INSTALLATION

- A. On notification of selection, execute purchase agreement with designated suppliers and/or subcontractors.
- B. Arrange for and process shop drawings, product data and samples, as required.
- C. Make all arrangements for delivery.
- D. Upon delivery, promptly inspect products for damage or defects.
- E. Submit claims for transportation damage.
- F. Install and finish products in compliance with requirements of referenced specification sections, including restoration.

1.05 ADJUSTMENT OF COSTS

- A. Should the net cost be more or less than the specified amount of the allowance, the contract sum will be adjusted accordingly by change order. Should work be changed by change order:
 - 1. The amount of the change order will recognize any changes in handling costs at the site, equipment, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit, and other expenses caused by the change order.
 - 2. For products specified under a unit cost in the change order schedule of values, the unit cost shall apply to the additional quantities actually used.

- B. Submit any claims for anticipated additional costs at the site, or other expenses caused by the selection under the allowance, prior to execution of the work.
- C. Failure to submit claims within the designated time will constitute a waiver of claims for additional costs.
- D. At contract closeout, reflect all approved changes in contract amounts in the final statement of accounting.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

Not Used

PART 3 EXECUTION

Not Used

END OF SECTION

SECTION 01150

MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF THIS SECTION

A. The following explanation of the Measurement and Payment for the Bid Form items is provided; however, the omission of reference to any item shall not alter the intent of the Bid Form or relieve the Contractor of the necessity of constructing a complete project under this Contract.

1.02 METHOD OF MEASUREMENT

- A. **Measurement of Length:** Unless otherwise specified for the particular items involved, all measurements of distance for items to be paid for on the basis of length shall be taken horizontally or vertically.
- B. **Measurement of Area:** In the measurement of items paid for on the basis of area of finished work, the lengths and/or widths to be used in the calculations shall be the actual dimensions measured along the surface of the completed work within the neat lines shown or designated. At intersections, the measurement used for length of side area will be measured from the outside edge of the width allowed along the main trench.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

Not Used.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 BID ITEMS

A. BID ITEM NO. 1 - Mobilization, Bonds & Insurance

Measurement: Work as specified in this section shall consist of work preparatory to actual construction at the site. It shall include, but not be limited to, movement of personnel, equipment, supplies, and incidentals to the project site, and for the establishment of temporary offices, buildings, safety equipment and first aid supplies, sanitary and other facilities as required by these Specifications and state and local laws and regulations. This cost should include the construction of two (2) project signs that shall be displayed at approaches to the project area. The intent is that the signs will be freestanding. The sign shall display on both sides the project name, Village Logo, elected officials, and contact information. The

costs of permits, bonds and any required insurance, and any other preconstruction expense necessary for the start of the work, excluding the cost of construction materials, shall be included in this section. Also included in this section will be all costs associated with meetings and coordination with the Owner and Engineer for the purpose of discussing project progress.

Payment: Payment shall be made as a lump sum quantity in accordance with the following schedule and the contract documents:

| <u>Percentage</u> | <u>Allowable</u> |
|-------------------|-----------------------|
| Contract | Percentage of |
| Amount Earned | Lump Sum Price |
| 5% | 25% |
| 10% | 50% |
| 25% | 75% |
| 50% | 100% |

The standard retainage will be applied to these allowances.

B. **BID ITEM NO. 2 – Maintenance of Traffic**

Measurement: The cost shall include all work associated with Maintenance of Traffic throughout the duration of the project.

Payment: Payment for this work shall be made at the lump sum price and shall include all labor and equipment needed to maintain vehicular and pedestrian traffic during the replacement of all water meters, repair or replacement of water service lines, site impacts, and site restoration. All crosswalks and sidewalks shall remain open and free of obstructions. Temporary painting for roadways and crosswalks shall be maintained throughout the project. Costs shall include the use of flagmen.

C. BID ITEM NO. 3 – Mobile Based AMI System Implementation and Support

Measurement: The cost shall include all work associated with the design, material/equipment supply, system implementation, and optimization of a Mobile Based Advanced Metering Infrastructure as specified.

Payment: Payment for this work shall be made at the lump sum price and shall include all labor, materials, personnel, and equipment needed to provide and install the Mobile Based Advanced Metering Infrastructure system as well as all necessary set-up, start-up, training, and support for a period of one year after completion and acceptance of the project.

D. BID ITEM NO. 4 – Mobile AMI Analytics Software Implementation and Support

Measurement: The cost shall include all work associated with the design, material/equipment supply, system implementation, and optimization of the Mobile Based Advanced Metering Infrastructure analytics software as specified.

Payment: Payment for this work shall be made at the lump sum price and shall include all labor, materials, personnel, and equipment needed to provide and install the analytics software associated with the Mobile Based Advanced Metering Infrastructure system as well as all necessary set-up, start-up, training, and support for a period of one year after completion and acceptance of the project.

E. BID ITEM NO. 5 – Water Loss Management System Implementation and Support

Measurement: The cost shall include all work associated with the design, material/equipment supply, system implementation, and optimization of the Water Loss Management System as specified.

Payment: Payment for this work shall be made at the lump sum price and shall include all labor, materials, personnel, and equipment needed to provide and install a Water Loss Management System associated with the Mobile Based Advanced Metering Infrastructure system as well as all necessary set-up, start-up, training, and support for a period of one year after completion and acceptance of the project.

F. BID ITEM NO. 6 – Customer Engagement Program Implementation and Support

Measurement: The cost shall include all work associated with the design, material/equipment supply, system implementation, and optimization of the Customer Engagement program as specified.

Payment: Payment for this work shall be made at the lump sum price and shall include all labor, materials, personnel, and equipment needed to provide and install a Customer Engagement program associated with the Mobile Based Advanced Metering Infrastructure system as well as all necessary set-up, start-up, training, and support for a period of one year after completion and acceptance of the project.

G. BID ITEM NO. 7 through 13 – Furnish and Install 5/8", 3/4", 1", 1 ½", 2", 3" and 4" Solid State Water Meters

Measurement: The cost shall include material and work associated with installing new water meters in accordance with the unit prices contained in the proposal. Contractor shall receive payment for service connections, Bid Item 21, on a unit price basis per installed service connection as specified in accordance with the unit prices contained in this proposal.

Payment: Payment for this work shall be made at the unit cost basis and shall include all labor, equipment, material, location and coordination of all existing utilities prior to construction, water meter installation, existing water meter removal, installation of new locking curb stop, fittings, couplings, disposal of undesirable material, associated site restoration, safety, dust/erosion, disinfection and bacteriological testing, survey layout, asbuilt drawings, and repair or replacement of existing utilities impacted or damaged during construction for a complete water meter installations. Any item not specified shall be considered incidental to the work.

H. BID ITEM NO. 14 through 20 – Furnish and Install 5/8", 3/4", 1", 1 ½", 2", 3" and 4" Standard Water Meters

Measurement: The cost shall include material and work associated with rehabilitant/replacing existing mechanical water meters if needed and as directed by the Village in accordance with the unit prices contained in the proposal. Contractor shall receive payment for service connections if required, Bid Item 21, on a unit price basis per installed service connection as specified in accordance with the unit prices contained in this proposal.

Payment: Payment for this work shall be made at the unit cost basis and shall include all labor, equipment, material, location and coordination of all existing utilities prior to construction, water meter installation, existing water meter removal, installation of new locking curb stop, fittings, couplings, disposal of undesirable material, associated site restoration, safety, dust/erosion, disinfection and bacteriological testing, survey layout, asbuilt drawings, and repair or replacement of existing utilities impacted or damaged during construction for a complete water meter installations. Any item not specified shall be considered incidental to the work.

I. BID ITEM NO. 21 – HDPE Service Connections

Measurement: The cost shall include material and work associated with installing HDPE water service piping in accordance with the unit prices contained in the proposal. Assume 30' service connection length.

Payment: Payment for this work shall be made at the unit cost basis and shall include all labor, equipment, material, location and coordination of all existing utilities prior to construction, water service installation, existing service piping removal and disposal, water service corporation stops, service piping, fittings, couplings, and taps, connection to water main and water meter, clearing, grubbing, excavation and back fill, dewatering, compaction, disposal of undesirable material, new fill, grading, associated site restoration, safety, dust/erosion, disinfection and bacteriological testing, pressure testing, survey layout, asbuilt drawings, and repair or replacement of existing utilities impacted or damaged during construction for a complete water service installation. Any item not specified shall be considered incidental to the work.

J. BID ITEM NO. 22 – Meter Box and Lid Replacements

Measurement: The cost shall include material and work associated with replacing existing meter boxes with new meter boxes and lids as needed in accordance with the unit prices contained in the proposal.

Payment: Payment for this work shall be made at the unit cost basis and shall include all labor, equipment, material, location and coordination of all existing utilities prior to removal and installation of meter boxes with lids, clearing, grubbing, excavation and back fill, dewatering, compaction, disposal of undesirable material, new fill, grading, associated restoration, safety, dust/erosion, survey layout, asbuilt drawings, and repair or replacement of existing utilities impacted or damaged during construction for a complete installation. Any item not specified shall be considered incidental to the work.

K. BID ITEM NO. 23 – Site Restoration

Measurement: The cost shall include all general construction requirements for project restoration not included as part of a separate bid item so that all areas disturbed or damaged during construction shall be restored to conditions existing prior to the work.

Payment: Payment for the site work shall be made at the lump sum price and shall include all materials, labor and equipment necessary to perform site restoration work including grading, planting, sodding, landscape, irrigation, lighting, striping, signage, fencing, monuments, removal and replacement of asphalt, sidewalk, driveway, curb and gutter, limerock, base material, clean-up, and any other work required to restore the project area to its original condition. Any trench or site restoration costs referenced as part of other bid items should be included in those bid items accordingly.

Restoration other than or in addition to what is indicated by the plans, specifications, and defined herein will be considered incidental to the construction

and the costs of this incidental restoration should be included in the cost of project.

L. **BID ITEM NO. 24 – Allowance**

Measurement: The cost shall include a fixed amount per the Bid Form.

Payment: Use of the allowance account shall be for unforeseen conditions, for construction changes and for utility adjustments, if ordered and authorized by the Village. At the closeout of contract, monies remaining in the allowance account will be credited to the Owner by change order.

SUBMITTALS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 WORK INCLUDED

- A. This section covers the requirements for submittal procedures as they pertain to:
 - 1. Construction progress schedules
 - 2. Proposed Products list
 - 3. Shop drawings
 - 4. Product data

1.02 SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES

A. Submittals shall be addressed to:

North Bay Village 1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300 North Bay Village FL 33141

- B. Identify Project, Contractor, Subcontractor or supplier, pertinent Drawing sheet and detail number(s), and specification Section number, as appropriate.
- C. Drawings and schedules shall be checked and coordinated with the work of all trades involved, before they are submitted for review by the Engineer and shall bear the Contractor's stamp of approval as evidence of such checking and coordination. Drawings or schedules submitted without this stamp of approval shall be returned to the Contractor for resubmission.

1.03 CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS SCHEDULES

- A. Submit initial progress schedule in triplicate within 15 days after date established in the Notice to Proceed for Engineer review.
- B. Revise and resubmit as project conditions require. Revised schedules shall be submitted a minimum of two (2) weeks prior to commencement of Work covered by schedule.

C. An updated project schedule in accordance with this section will be provided with every application for payment.

1.04 SHOP DRAWINGS

- A. When used in the Contract Documents, the term "Shop Drawings" shall be considered to mean, Contractor's drawings plans for material and equipment which become an integral part of the Project. These drawings shall be complete and detailed. Shop Drawings shall consist of fabrication, erection and setting drawings and schedule drawings, manufacturer's scale drawings, and wiring and control diagrams. Cuts, catalogs, pamphlets, descriptive literature, and performance and test data, shall be considered only as supportive to required Shop Drawings as defined above.
- B. Data on materials and equipment include, without limitation, materials and equipment lists, catalog data sheets, cuts, performance curves, diagrams, materials of construction and similar descriptive material. Materials and equipment lists shall give, for each item thereon, the name and location of the supplier or manufacturer, trade name, catalog reference, size, finish and all other pertinent data.

1.05 MANUFACTURER'S CERTIFICATES

- A. When specified in individual specification Sections, submit manufacturers' certificate to Engineer for review, in quantities specified for Product Data.
- B. Indicate material or Product conforms to or exceeds specified requirements. Submit supporting reference date, affidavits, and certifications as appropriate.
- C. Certificates may be recent or previous test results on material or Product, but must be acceptable to Engineer.

1.06 RECORD DOCUMENTS

A. Engineer will review submitted record documents for compliance with specifications.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

Not Used.

PART 3 EXECUTION

Not Used.

QUALITY CONTROL

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 WORK INCLUDED

- A. This section covers the work as required to provide and/or coordinate:
 - 1. Quality assurance and control of installation
 - 2. References
 - 3. Inspection
 - 4. Manufacturers' field services and reports

1.02 REFERENCES

- A. Conform to reference standard by date of current issue on date for receiving bids.
- B. Should specified reference standards conflict with Contract Documents, request clarification from Owner or Engineer before proceeding.
- C. The contractual relationship of the parties to the Contract shall not be altered from the Contract Documents by mention or inference otherwise in any reference document.

1.03 OUALITY ASSURANCE/CONTROL OF INSTALLATION

- A. Monitor quality control over suppliers, manufacturers, products, services, site conditions, and workmanship, to produce Work of specified quality.
- B. Comply fully with manufacturers' instructions, including each step in sequence.
- C. Should manufacturers' instructions conflict with Contract Documents, request clarification from Owner or Engineer before proceeding.
- D. Comply with specified standards as a minimum quality for the Work except when more stringent tolerances, codes, or specified requirements indicate higher standards or more precise workmanship.
- E. Perform work by persons qualified to produce workmanship of specified quality.

F. Secure Products in place with positive anchorage devices designed and sized to withstand stresses, vibration, physical distortion or disfigurement.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

Not Used.

PART 3 EXECUTION

Not Used.

CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES AND TEMPORARY CONTROLS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 WORK INCLUDED

- A. Temporary Utilities: Electricity, lighting, heat, ventilation, telephone service, water, and sanitary facilities.
- B. Temporary Controls: Enclosures and fencing, protection of the Work, traffic control, temporary bypass sanitary pumping, and water control.
- C. Construction Facilities: Access roads, parking, progress cleaning, and temporary buildings.
- D. Some of the items specified herein are not specifically required for the project. However, these items shall be provided as required for the convenience of the Contractor or as required for proper completion of the Work.

1.02 TEMPORARY ELECTRICITY (AS APPLICABLE)

- A. Provide and pay for power service, as required, from Florida Power and Light source.
- B. Provide temporary electric feeder from electrical service. Power consumption shall not disrupt Owner's need for continuous service.
- C. Provide separate metering and pay Florida Power and Light for cost of energy used.
- D. Provide power outlets for construction operations, with branch wiring and distribution boxes located as required. Provide flexible power cords as required.
- E. Provide main service disconnect and overcurrent protection at a convenient location.
- F. Permanent convenience receptacles may not be utilized during construction.

1.03 TEMPORARY LIGHTING (AS APPLICABLE)

- A. Provide and maintain 1 watt/sq ft lighting to exterior staging and storage areas after dark for security purposes.
- B. Maintain lighting and provide routine repairs.

1.04 TEMPORARY VENTILATION

- **A.** Ventilate enclosed areas to assist cure of materials, to dissipate humidity, and to prevent accumulation of dust, fumes, vapors, or gases.
- B. Provide ventilation and other equipment and procedures as required to meet OSHA Confined Spaces Entry Requirements.

1.05 TEMPORARY WATER SERVICE (AS APPLICABLE)

- A. Provide and maintain suitable quality water service, as required, for construction operations.
- B. All water used must be metered by Owner, but Contractor will not be charged for the metered water use.
- C. Extend branch piping with outlets located so water is available by hoses with threaded connections.
- D. Make arrangements with Owner for obtaining meter. Owner will also direct contractor as to where water may be obtained.

1.06 TEMPORARY SANITARY FACILITIES

A. Provide and maintain required facilities and enclosures. Existing private facilities shall not be used.

1.07 FENCING

- A. Construction: Commercial grade chain link fence.
- B. Provide 6-foot high fence to secure material storage areas. Security fence shall be equipped with gates and locks.

1.08 PROTECTION OF INSTALLED WORK

- A. Protect installed Work and provide special protection where specified in individual specification Sections.
- B. Provide temporary and removable protection for installed Products. Control activity in immediate work area to minimize damage.

C. Prohibit traffic from landscaped areas.

1.09 SECURITY

A. Provide security and facilities to protect Work, and existing facilities, and Owner's operations from unauthorized entry, vandalism, or theft.

1.10 PROGRESS CLEANING

- A. Maintain areas free of waste materials, debris, and rubbish. Maintain site in a clean and orderly condition.
- B. Broom and vacuum clean interior areas prior to start of surface finishing and continue cleaning to eliminate dust.
- C. Remove waste materials, debris, and rubbish from sites weekly and dispose of at an approved site.

1.11 REMOVAL OF TEMPORARY UTILITIES, FACILITIES, AND CONTROLS

- A. Remove temporary equipment, facilities, materials, prior to Final Inspection.
- B. Clean and repair damage caused by installation or use of temporary work.
- C. Restore existing facilities used during construction to original condition. Restore permanent facilities used during construction to specified condition.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

Not Used.

PART 3 EXECUTION

Not Used.

CONTRACT CLOSE-OUT

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 WORK INCLUDED

- A. Contract Close-out Procedures.
- B. Final Inspection.
- C. Contract Close-out Submittals.
- D. Final Application for Payments.

1.02 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

- A. When Contractor considers the Work is substantially complete, he shall submit to the Owner or Engineer:
 - 1. A written notice that the Work, or designated portion thereof, is substantially complete.
 - 2. A list of items to be completed or corrected.
- B. Within a reasonable time after receipt of such notice, the Owner or Engineer will make an inspection to determine the status of completion.
- C. Should the Owner or Engineer determine that the Work is not substantially complete:
 - 1. The Owner or Engineer will promptly notify the Contractor in writing, giving the reasons therefor.
 - 2. Contractor shall remedy the deficiencies in the Work, and send a second written notice of substantial completion to the Owner or Engineer.
 - 3. The Owner or Engineer will reinspect the Work.
- D. When the Owner or Engineer finds that the Work is substantially complete, he will:
 - 1. Prepare and deliver to Owner a tentative Certificate of Substantial Completion with a tentative list of items to be completed or corrected before final payment.

2. After consideration of any objections made by the Owner as provided in the Contract Documents, and when the Owner or Engineer considers the Work substantially complete, he will execute and deliver to the Owner and the Contractor a definite Certificate of Substantial Completion with a revised tentative list of items to be completed or corrected.

1.03 FINAL INSPECTION

- A. When Contractor considers the Work is complete, he shall submit written certification that:
 - 1. Contract Documents have been reviewed.
 - 2. Work has been inspected for compliance with Contract Documents.
 - 3. Work has been completed in accordance with Contract Documents.
 - 4. Equipment and systems have been tested in the presence of the Owner's representative and are operational.
 - 5. Work is completed and ready for final inspection.
- B. The Owner or Engineer will make an inspection to verify the status of completion with reasonable promptness after receipt of such certification.
- C. Should the Owner or Engineer consider that the Work is incomplete or defective:
 - 1. The Owner or Engineer will promptly notify the Contractor in writing, listing the incomplete or defective work.
 - 2. Contractor shall take immediate steps to remedy the stated deficiencies, and send a second written certification to the Owner or Engineer that the Work is complete.
 - 3. The Owner or Engineer will reinspect the Work.
- D. When the Owner or Engineer finds that the Work is acceptable under the Contract Documents, he shall request the Contractor to make closet submittals

1.04 RE-INSPECTION FEES

- A. Should the Owner or Engineer perform re-inspections due to failure of the Work to comply with the claims of status of completion made by the Contractor:
 - 1. Owner will compensate the engineer for such additional services.

2. Owner will deduct the amount of such compensation from the final payment to the Contractor.

1.05 CONTRACTOR'S CLOSE-OUT SUBMITTALS TO OWNER OR ENGINEER

- A. Evidence of compliance with requirements of governing authorities.
- B. Shall be in accordance with Section 01720 Project Record Documents.
- C. Spare Parts and Maintenance Materials: To requirements of the individual Specification Sections, as applicable.
- D. Evidence of Payment and Release of Liens: To requirements of Contract Documents, Supplementary Conditions, and Supplementary Conditions (Construction) Exhibit WWFS-04Li.
- E. Certificate of Insurance for Products and Completed Operations, as applicable.
- F. Consent of Surety for final payment.
- G. Final building permit inspection documents and Certificate of Occupancy as applicable.

1.06 FINAL ADJUSTMENT OF ACCOUNTS

- A. Submit a final statement of accounting to the Owner or Engineer.
- B. Statement shall reflect all adjustments to the contract Sum:
 - 1. The original Contract Sum.
 - 2. Additions and deductions resulting from:
 - a. Previous Change Orders.
 - b. Allowances.
 - c. Unit Prices.
 - d. Deductions for uncorrected Work.
 - e. Penalties and Bonuses.
 - f. Deductions for liquidated damages.
 - g. Deductions for re-inspection payments.
 - h. As-Built Quantities.
 - i. Other adjustments.

- 3. Total Contract Sum, as adjusted.
- 4. Previous payments.
- 5. Sum remaining due.

1.07 FINAL APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT

A. Contractor shall submit the final Application for Payment in accordance with procedures and requirements stated in the Conditions of the Contract.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

Not Used.

PART 3 EXECUTION

Not Used.

PROJECT RECORD DRAWINGS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS

- A. Maintain at the site for the Owner one record copy of:
 - 1. Drawings.
 - 2. Specifications.
 - 3. Addenda.
 - 4. Change Orders and other Modifications to the Contract.
 - 5. Reviewed Shop Drawings.

1.02 RELATED SECTIONS

- A. Section 01300 Submittals
- B. Section 01700 Contact Closeout

1.03 MAINTENANCE OF DOCUMENTS

- A. Store documents in approved location apart from documents used for construction.
- B. Maintain documents in a clean, dry, legible condition and in good order. Do not use record documents for construction purposes.
- C. Make documents available at all times for inspection by Owner and Engineer.

1.04 MARKING DEVICES

A. Provide felt tip marking pens for recording information in a color code.

1.05 RECORDING

- A. Label each document "RECORD DRAWINGS" in neat large printed letters.
- B. Record information currently with construction progress.

- 1. Do not conceal any work until required information is recorded.
- C. Drawings; Legibly mark to record actual construction:
 - 1. Field changes of dimension and detail.
 - 2. Changes made by Field Order or by Change Order.
 - 3. Details not on original Contract Drawings.
- D. Specifications and Addenda; Legibly mark each Section to record:
 - 1. Manufacturer, trade name, catalog number, and supplier of each item actually installed.
 - 2. Changes made by Field Order or by Change Order.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

Not Used.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 SUBMITTAL

- A. During the entire construction operation, the Contractor shall maintain records of all deviations from the Drawings and Specifications and shall prepare there from "Record Drawings" showing correctly and accurately all changes and deviations from the work made during construction to reflect the work as it was actually constructed. Each month with the Contractor's Application for Payment, or as otherwise agreed, the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer a current listing and description of each change incorporated into the work since the preceding submittal. These drawings shall conform to recognized standards of drafting, shall be neat and legible, and signed and sealed by a Florida Registered Professional Land Surveyor.
- B. At Contract Close-out, the Contractor is required to provide one (1) set of reproducible "Record Drawings" to the Engineer for the Owner. These drawings shall conform to recognized standards of drafting, shall be neat and legible, and signed and sealed by a Florida Registered Professional Land Surveyor.
- C. Accompany "Record Drawing" submittal with transmittal letter in duplicate, containing:

- 1. Date.
- 2. Project title and number.
- 3. Contractor's name and address.
- 4. Title and number of each record document.
- 5. Signature of Contractor or his authorized representative.

MODIFICATIONS AND REPLACEMENT OF EXISTING STRUCTURES AND EQUIPMENT

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

- A. The Contractor shall furnish all supervised labor, materials, equipment, and incidentals required to modify, rehabilitate, alter and/or convert existing structures as required.
- B. Replacement includes but is not limited to the following:
 - 1. Removal of existing equipment and appurtenances as specified.
 - 2. Installation of proposed utilities and structures.

1.02 NOTICES

A. The Contractor shall inform the Owner and the Engineer of the date of commencement and anticipated completion of the work one week before actual work beings. Sewage service must be maintained during Replacement work. The Contractor shall coordinate all work and scheduling with the Owner.

1.03 SAFETY

A. The Contractor shall conform to all work safety requirements of pertinent regulatory agencies and shall secure the site for working condition in compliance with the same. The Contractor shall erect such signs and other devices as are necessary for the safety of the work site. The Contractor shall perform all work in accordance with the applicable OSHA standards. Emphasis is placed upon the requirements for entering confined spaces, scaffolding, and the handling and storage of chemicals.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

Not Used.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 GENERAL

- A. The Contractor shall dismantle and remove all existing equipment, piping, and other appurtenances required for the completion of the Work. Where called for or required, the Contractor shall cut existing pipelines for the purpose of making connections thereto.
- B. No existing structure, equipment, or appurtenances shall be shifted, cut, removed, or otherwise altered except as indicated in the Contract Documents or with the express approval of and to the extent approved by the Engineer.
- C. All cutting of existing concrete or other material which requires bonding to new work shall be done in a manner to meet the requirements of the respective section of these Specifications covering the new work. If the work is not covered, the cutting shall be carried on in the manner and to the extent directed by the Engineer.
- D. The surfaces of any seals which are visible in the completed work shall be made to match as nearly as possible the adjacent surfaces.
- E. Where necessary or required for the purpose of making connections, the Contractor shall cut existing pipelines in a manner to provide an approved, restrained, joint. Where required, the Contractor shall weld beads, flanges, or provide Dresser couplings, as required.
- F. The Contractor shall supply, install and maintain all flumes, hoses, piping, plugs, bulkheads and other related items used to divert or hold back the flow of wastewater, water, or other liquids, as required in the performance of the work under this Contract.

3.02 CONNECTING TO EXISTING PIPING AND EQUIPMENT

A. The Contractor shall verify exact location, material, alignment, joint, etc., of existing piping and equipment prior to making the connections called out in the Drawings. The verifications shall be performed with adequate time to correct any potential alignment or other problems prior to the actual time of connection.

3.03 REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT OF PIPING AND APPURTENANCES

A. Removal of piping, anchors and accessories shall be done in a manner that will cause as little damage to the structure as possible. Pipes and anchors shall be drilled or sawed out with as little hammering as possible. Care shall be made to preserve existing reinforcement as much as possible and not structurally damage the structure. Before grouting of new piping, anchors or appurtenances into place, the concrete surfaces shall be cleaned of all loose material curing compounds,

grease oil, standing water. The cleaned surface shall receive a coating of epoxy bonding/grouting adhesive before application of grout.

3.04 FINAL ACCEPTANCE

A. After the specified work has been completed, the structures shall be visually inspected and tested by the Contractor (as required and specified) in the presence of the Engineer and found to be acceptable.

RESTORATION OF SURFACE FEATURES

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION OF WORK

- A. The work includes restoration of driveways, lawn areas, trees and plants, and any other existing areas affected by the utility replacement, rehabilitation, or relocation work. This section includes furnishing equipment, labor and materials, and performing all necessary and incidental operations to perform the required work.
- B. All areas disturbed or damaged during construction shall be restored to conditions existing prior to the work.

1.02 RELATED SECTIONS

A. Section 01000 – General Requirements

1.04 SUBMITTALS

- A. Certification of quality by producer shall be delivered to Engineer ten days prior to use.
- B. Submit sod certification for grass species and location of sod source.
- C. Submit mix design for asphaltic concrete.
- D. Submit data on joint filter, concrete admixtures, and curing compound.
- E. Submit mix design for Portland cement concrete.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 SOD

- A. The sod used for restoration shall match the existing in the area. In areas without well-established sod, Argentine Bahia sod shall be used.
- B. The sod shall be sufficiently thick to secure a dense stand of live grass, with a minimum thickness of two inches. The sod shall be live, fresh, and uninjured at the time of planting. It shall be planted as soon as possible after being dug and

- shall be shaded and kept moist from the time it is dug until it is planted. The sod shall be approved by the Engineer before placing.
- C. The sod shall be a minimum age of 18 months, with root development that will support its own weight without tearing when suspended vertically by holding the upper two corners.

2.02 PLANTS

- A. Existing damaged plants shall be replaced by plants of equal type, quality and size whenever possible. All new plants shall be sound, healthy, vigorous, and free from defects, decay, disfigurement, bark abrasions, plant diseases, insects, and insect eggs/larvae. The new plants shall be approved by the Engineer before placing.
- B. Existing plants may be removed, preserved, and replaced at the Contractor's option. Plants shall be handled by an approved nursery.

2.03 COMMERCIAL FERTILIZER

- A. Commercial fertilizers shall comply with the state fertilizer laws.
- B. The numeral designations for fertilizer indicate the minimum percentages respectively of (1) total nitrogen, (2) available phosphoric acid, and (3) water soluble potash contained in the fertilizer.
- C. The chemical designation of the fertilizer shall be 12-8-8. At least 50 percent of the phosphoric acid shall be from normal super phosphate or an equivalent source that will provide a minimum of two units of sulfur. The amount of sulfur shall be indicated on the quantitative analysis card attached to each bag or other container.

2.04 WATER

A. The water used in the grassing operations may be obtained from any approved spring, pond, lake, stream, or municipal water system. The water shall be free of excess and harmful chemicals, acids, alkalies, or any substance that might be harmful to plant growth or disruptive to traffic. Salt water shall not be used.

2.05 ASPHALTIC CONCRETE PAVING

- A. Asphaltic concrete for surface and base course applications shall be as specified in Section 331 of the FDOT Standard Specifications.
- B. Primer: In accordance with FDOT Section 300, Prime and Tack Coats of Basis Courses.

- C. Tack Coat: In accordance with FDOT Section 300.
- D. Perform work in accordance with FDOT Section 300.
- E. Pavement markings shall be replaced in their original location, color, and material where disturbed.
- F. All equipment associated with the operations of pavement placement and related work shall be entirely suitable for the applicable operations performed and shall be maintained in good condition.

2.06 PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE PAVING AND SIDEWALKS

- A. Portland cement concrete used in the performance of this concrete shall be Type I or Type II with a minimum 28-day compressive strength of 3,000 psi and shall conform to the requirements of Section 345 of the FDOT Standard Specifications.
- B. Form materials shall conform to ACI 301.
- C. Joint filter material shall be per FDOT Section 932.
- D. Reinforcement shall be welded steel and wire fabric: Deformed type, A497.
- E. Concrete materials shall be in accordance with FDOT Section 345 and related sections referenced under Section 345.
- F. Curing compound shall be in accordance with FDOT Section 350.
- G. Pavement markings shall be replaced in their original location, color, and material where disturbed.
- H. All equipment associated with the operations of pavement placement and related work shall be entirely suitable for the applicable operations performed and shall be maintained in good condition.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 LANDSCAPING RESTORATION

- A. Any lawn area affected by the required work shall be restored to a condition equal to or better than the conditions existing before the work.
- B. Where required plants shall be adequately balled with firm natural balls of soil, sized as set forth in "Grades and Standards." Balls shall be firmly wrapped with

burlap or equally approved strong cloth. No balled plant will be planted if the ball is cracked or broken before or during the process of planting.

3.02 SOD PLACEMENT

- A. The areas over which the sod is to be placed shall be scarified or loosened to suitable depth. On areas where the soil is sufficiently loose, particularly on shoulders and fill slopes, the Engineer may, at his discretion, authorize the elimination of the ground preparation.
- B. Contractor shall, at his expense, maintain the planted areas in a satisfactory condition until final acceptance of the project. Such maintenance shall include watering, filling, leveling, and repairing of any washed or eroded areas as necessary.

3.03 PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT

- A. Asphalt pavement shall be removed by saw cutting on a straight line with edges as vertical as possible. Concrete pavement or asphalt surfaced concrete shall be removed by cutting with a concrete saw in as straight a line and as vertically as possible.
- B. When placing the aggregate base course:
 - 1. Correct irregularities in substrate gradient and elevation by scarifying, reshaping, and recompacting.
 - 2. Place aggregate in maximum six inch layers and compact to 98% AASHTO T180.
 - 3. Add small quantities of fine aggregate as appropriate to assist compaction.
 - 4. Add water to assist compaction. If excess water is apparent, remove aggregate and aerate to reduce moisture content.
 - 5. Use mechanical tamping equipment in areas inaccessible to compaction equipment.
 - 6. The following tolerances for the aggregate base course shall be maintained.
 - a. Flatness: maximum variation of 1/4 inch measured with 10 foot (3m) straight edge.
 - b. Scheduled compacted thickness: within 1/4 inch.

- C. When placing asphaltic concrete paving:
 - 1. Verify that compacted granular base is dry and ready to support paving and imposed loads.
 - 2. Verify gradients and elevations of base are correct.
 - 3. Apply primer in accordance with FDOT Section 300.
 - 4. Apply tack coat in accordance with FDOT Section 300.
 - 5. Install Work in accordance with FDOT standards.
 - 6. Place asphalt within 24 hours of applying primer or tack coat.
 - 7. Compact pavement by rolling to specified density. Do not displace or extrude pavement from position. Hand compact in areas inaccessible to rolling equipment.
 - 8. Perform rolling with consecutive passes to achieve even and smooth finish without roller marks.
 - 9. All existing pavement edges shall be saw cut prior to placing new abutting asphalt pavement.
 - 10. The following tolerances for the asphaltic concrete paving shall be maintained.
 - a) Flatness: maximum variation of 1/4 inch measured with 10 foot (3m) straight edge.
 - b) Scheduled compacted thickness: within 1/4 inch.
 - c) Variation from true elevation: within 1/4 inch.
- D. When placing Portland cement concrete paving and sidewalks:
 - 1. Verify compacted subgrade is acceptable and ready to support paving and imposed loads.
 - 2. Verify gradients and elevations of base are correct.
 - 3. Prepare subbase in accordance with FDOT Section 350 Compact Subgrade to 100% maximum density AASHTO T-99.
 - 4. Moisten subgrade to minimize absorption of water from fresh concrete.

- 5. Notify Engineer at least 24 hours prior to commencement of concrete operations.
- 6. Place and secure forms to correct locations, dimension, profile, and gradient.
- 7. Place joint filler vertical in position, in straight lines. Secure to formwork during concrete placement.
- 8. Place reinforcement at bottom of slabs-on-grade, 2" clear.
- 9. Place concrete in accordance with FDOT Section 350.
- 10. Place joint filler between paving components and building or other appurtenances.
- 12. Sidewalk paving: Broom finished with even, dustless surface.
- 13. Immediately after placement, protect pavement from premature drying, excessive hot or cold temperatures, and mechanical injury.

3.04 CURB REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT

A. Curb removal and replacement required in the construction of this work shall be done by the Contractor. Reasonable care shall be exercised in removing the curb, and the Contractor shall either stockpile or dispose of this material as directed by the Engineer. Curb shall be replaced of like material in a manner and condition equal to or better than that existing at the time of removal. Materials and methods of replacing state highway sidewalks or curbs shall conform to the FDOT Standard Specifications.

3.05 CONCRETE SIDEWALK

- A. Concrete sidewalk shall be removed by saw cutting on a straight line with edges as vertical as possible. The new sidewalk segments shall match the existing sidewalk as to width, thickness, and elevation and have a medium broom finish.
- B. Expansion joints between the sidewalk and the curb or driveway or at fixed objects and sidewalk intersections shall be 1/2-inch joints formed with a preformed joint filler.

 Not Used.

WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM NORTH BAY VILLAGE

BID NO. NBV 2016-XXX

Appendix A

Mobile Based AMI System Specifications:

| | INTRODUCTION | 105 |
|------|--|--|
| 1.1 | OVERVIEW | 105 |
| 1.2 | GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS | 106 |
| | TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS | 107 |
| 2.1 | WATER ENDPOINTS | 107 |
| 2.2 | RADIO FREQUENCIES | 108 |
| 2.3 | METER COMPATIBILITY | 108 |
| 2.4 | RETROFIT HARDWARE REQUIREMENTS | 108 |
| 2.5 | APPLICATION SOFTWARE FOR ROUTE PROCESSING | 109 |
| 2.6 | HANDHELD COMPUTER AND RELATED HARDWARE | 110 |
| 2.7 | DRIVE-BY MOBILE COLLECTION SYSTEM | 112 |
| 2.8 | ANALYTICS SOFTWARE | 113 |
| 2.9 | CONSUMER ENGAGEMENT | 113 |
| 2.10 | WATER LOSS MANAGEMENT SYSTEM | 114 |
| | SCOPE OF WORK | 114 |
| 3.1 | EXPERIENCED PROJECT MANAGEMENT | 114 |
| 3.2 | SYSTEM CONFIGURATION | 115 |
| 3.3 | SYSTEM DESIGN | 115 |
| 3.4 | CONFIGURATION AND SET UP | 115 |
| | 1.2 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.8 2.9 2.10 3.1 3.2 3.3 | 1.2 GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS 2.1 WATER ENDPOINTS 2.2 RADIO FREQUENCIES 2.3 METER COMPATIBILITY 2.4 RETROFIT HARDWARE REQUIREMENTS 2.5 APPLICATION SOFTWARE FOR ROUTE PROCESSING 2.6 HANDHELD COMPUTER AND RELATED HARDWARE 2.7 DRIVE-BY MOBILE COLLECTION SYSTEM 2.8 ANALYTICS SOFTWARE 2.9 CONSUMER ENGAGEMENT 2.10 WATER LOSS MANAGEMENT SYSTEM SCOPE OF WORK 3.1 EXPERIENCED PROJECT MANAGEMENT 3.2 SYSTEM CONFIGURATION 3.3 SYSTEM DESIGN |

| 3. | 5 INSTALLATION | 115 |
|----|--------------------------------------|-----|
| 3. | 6 TRAINING | 117 |
| 4 | MADE IN AMERICA | 118 |
| 5 | WATER METERS | 118 |
| 6 | SOLID STATE RESIDENTIAL WATER METERS | 119 |
| 7 | SOLID STATE COMMERCIAL WATER METERS | 121 |

1 Introduction

1.1 Overview

North Bay Village is hereby requesting proposals for a Mobile Based Advanced Metering Infrastructure and Water Loss Management system to read meters in an automated and cost effective manner as well as reduce the Village's unaccounted for and non-revenue water. The Village also seeks to conduct advanced data analysis through this system based upon the data it provides.

This invitation to bid (ITB) requests a response for purchase of the following:

- Radio endpoints to encode, store, and transmit register data, interval data, leak data and tamper data.
- A Mobile Based AMI reading system (Flexible collection of data, using handhelds, mobile and fixed collection systems in tandem or migrating from one system to another without costly equipment change-outs) to collect register data, interval data, tamper data and reliably process this data, and pass this data to the customer information system (CIS) or Analytics software.
- A Water Loss Management system that values a solution that supports water conservation programs for both the utility and its customers.
- Replacement of residential water meters that support either standard mechanical measuring elements or non-moving part "solid state meters" that can give added benefit and support to the Mobile AMI system.
- An endpoint programming system with the capability to initialize endpoints upon installation and pass pertinent installation data to the system.
- A solution that supports conservation through meter right-sizing without complicated IT support.
- A user interface for all value-added functionality which is simple to use, ubiquitous in nature, and allows access from all appropriate departments.
- Customer support services, including: assistance with software operation; troubleshooting and reconciling failed devices; network growth and the addition of new devices; training needs; recurrent software upgrades; and other activities to sustain proper operation of the system.
- A system with flexible customer engagement options, data presentment through PC and smart phones.
- A system with user-friendly data display so that customer service representatives can
 provide clear and accurate information to customer who call with usage questions or
 billing concerns.
- A system that provides multiple, flexible reading options for all endpoints.
- Application software and licenses

- Experienced and Local professional services for installation and training
- Ongoing hardware and software maintenance and support

Any systems and services proposed must cover the meters in use at North Bay Village and must be compatible with standard communication protocols to cover other meters and/or service types, as well as other applications in the future.

North Bay Village seeks to acquire a meter reading system that meets the following objectives:

- Meter reading and meter data collection in the most safe and cost-effective manner possible
- Data collection using mobile based reading processes.
- The System must be capable functioning as a "Hybrid System" for both mobile base and fixed based reading. This ITB does not include the installation of a fixed based network at this time.
- Manual entry of meter readings and other meter data using the computer keyboard
- Collection of meter readings, tamper data and up to 40 days of daily and hourly interval data from water meters via handheld, drive-by radio or fixed base.
- Ability to perform remote disconnect and reconnect of water service via handheld, driveby, or fixed based radio incorporated into meter reading routes
- Ability to collect acoustic water leak sensor data via handheld, drive-by or fixed based radio incorporated into meter reading routes
- Ability to collect data from endpoints where the data is in an encrypted format
- Ability to migrate from walk-by or drive-by data collection to advanced meter capabilities using a networked system using the same meters and modules
- Ability to integrate readings from a network with the mobile system allowing for: mobile to fixed network migration, contingency reading of meters under the network, and a single interface to the billing system for all meter readings
- Provide in-home leak detection flags by monitoring minimum usage to reduce lost water and avoid high water bills for improved customer service.
- Enhance service to our customers with ability to conduct timelier bill complaint investigation and resolution using detailed data collected by the mobile AMI system that can be used by the customer support team as well as shared directly with the customer.

1.2 General Instructions

- 1.2.1 This ITB outlines the requirements for a Mobile Based AMI system to be purchased and owned by North Bay Village.
- 1.2.2 The system shall be comprised of all new equipment. Components shall be produced by established manufacturers. Bidder supplying proposal must provide local service and provide documentation that bidder has been in business for more10 years.

- 1.2.3 Bidder will provide 3 references of projects in Southeast Florida. References shall include the name and phone number of the Utility contact.
- 1.2.4 Bidder to document as part of their bid any areas of non-compliance with the system specifications. Areas of non-compliance may result in rejection of a bid.

2 Technical Requirements

The bidder's system shall meet the following technical requirements:

2.1 Water Endpoints

- 2.1.1 The endpoint must be capable of operating in harsh environments. As a minimum, the endpoint must function accurately and not be damaged over an operating temperature range of -40 to +70 degrees Celsius.
- 2.1.2 The endpoint must withstand submersion in one (1) meter of water for a minimum of 30 minutes in accordance with IPx7 testing, per IEC 529 (EN 60529).
- 2.1.3 The endpoint must be designed to last in the field without need for servicing for a minimum of 20 years.
- 2.1.4 Battery operated endpoints must have a battery design life of 20 years with engineering data to support the claim.
- 2.1.5 The bidder's solution must provide the same functionality for both indoor water meters and those located in pit settings. Endpoints proposed for pit settings must be able to withstand the harsh pit environment and have no exposed electrical connections.
- 2.1.6 The endpoint must be factory installable at the meter manufacturer.
- 2.1.7 The endpoint in pit setting must offer an in-line connector that enables removal of the meter for periodic testing while allowing the endpoint to stay in the field. Connector must be a proven device with three 3 or more years of use in the field.
- 2.1.8 The endpoint must utilize an accurate and reliable encoding technology to capture readings.
- 2.1.9 The endpoint must be capable of detecting and reporting potential theft. At a minimum, the endpoint must report cut cable tampers, register communication errors, and reprogramming attempts.
- 2.1.10 The system must be capable of detecting and reporting reverse flow events.
- 2.1.11 The endpoint must be capable of detecting and reporting metered leak events.
- 2.1.12 The system shall allow the addition of meter modules at any time without the need for system reconfiguration.
- 2.1.13 The endpoint shall have the option of having a remote antenna for exceptionally unfriendly RF environments where standard mobile read mode is not sufficient for satisfactory reading performance.

- 2.1.14 The endpoint should have a second port to connect an acoustic leak sensor, telemetry device or automatic shut off valve
- 2.1.15 Bidder must have sold a minimum of ten million radio-frequency based endpoints to the water utility market to assure familiarity with the water market.
- 2.1.16 The endpoint must be able to connect to pulse accumulating or absolute encoder-type registers.
- 2.1.17 Endpoints capable of auto-configuring themselves when connected to encoded registers are preferable over endpoints that require programming after being connected to an encoded register.
- 2.1.18 Endpoints shall be capable of reading the water meter on top of the hour every hour and storing a minimum of 40 days of readings. The endpoint shall be capable of transmitting any or all of the readings via radio commands to avoid having to physically visit the endpoint site.
- 2.1.19 The endpoint shall be capable of being read by a Mobile Reading System as well as by a Fixed Network System. If different operating modes are required, the endpoint shall be capable of switching from one mode to the other without the need of replacing any equipment or visiting each meter box. When in Fixed Network mode (future application) the endpoint shall still be capable of being read by a Mobile System for contingency readings.
- 2.1.20 The endpoint should support remote shut-off.
- 2.1.21 As part of North Bay Village's commitment to system integrity and conservation, North Bay Village requires the ability to meter right-size. One-minute resolution is preferred.
- 2.1.22 Endpoint should have secure data communications.

2.2 Radio Frequencies

- 2.2.1 North Bay Village is seeking a solution with low power and high-throughput data handling characteristics.
- 2.2.2 The endpoint can operate in the licensed or non-licensed ISM band according to the rules and regulations of the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) and Industry Canada (IC).

2.3 Meter Compatibility

2.3.1 Bidder must be compatible with multiple meter bidders to allow for complete freedom of meter choice.

2.4 Retrofit Hardware Requirements

2.4.1 Bidder must be capable of performing retrofit installations of endpoints in the field as needed.

2.5 Application Software for Route Processing

2.5.1 Application Architecture

- 2.5.1.1 The application software must be a multi-tier client-server application based on the Microsoft's .NET development environment.
- 2.5.1.2 The application software database management system must support Microsoft® SQL Server 2012 or Oracle® 11g.
- 2.5.1.3 The application software server operating system must support Windows Server 2012.
- 2.5.1.4 The application software client operating system must support Windows 7 and Windows 8.
- 2.5.1.5 The application software must support the ability to horizontally scale to support potential utility growth without installing multiple instances of the software.
- 2.5.1.6 The application software must support the ability to operate in a virtual environment using the VMWare platform.
- 2.5.1.7 The application software must support wired and wireless communications to handhelds and mobile collectors.

2.5.2 System Configuration

- 2.5.2.1 The application software must provide the ability to configure lists of codes and translations for the various meter reading and route processing functions.
- 2.5.2.2 The application software must provide the ability to configure various business process rules.
- 2.5.2.3 The application software must provide the ability to integrate user defined scripts, batch files and programs that can then be accessed and executed by application users.
- 2.5.2.4 The application software must provide the ability to configure the main display of the handheld device using drag and drop mechanisms.
- 2.5.2.5 The application software must provide the ability to install and manage multiple versions of handheld software components.
- 2.5.2.6 The application software must automatically update software on handheld devices based on software components assigned to specific handhelds or groups of handhelds by a system administrator.

2.5.3 **Security**

- 2.5.3.1 The application software must provide the ability to configure organizational hierarchy of the utility and assign routes, employees and collection devices to groups in the hierarchy
- 2.5.3.2 The application software must provide the ability to control access to groups of the organizational hierarchy and the routes, employees and collection devices within those groups for each employee on the system.

- 2.5.3.3 The application software must provide the ability to integrate users and authentication with LDAP compliant systems including Windows Active Directory.
- 2.5.3.4 The application software must provide the ability to store and manage user names and passwords for application users and handheld users
- 2.5.3.5 The application software must provide the ability to allow the system administrator to define the minimum length of user passwords.
- 2.5.3.6 The application software must provide the ability to allow the system administrator to define the duration of time before passwords expire.
- 2.5.3.7 The application software must provide the ability to allow the system administrator to define the maximum amount of failed log in attempts by a user before the user is locked out.
- 2.5.3.8 The application software must provide the ability to view a history of successful logins and failed login attempts.

2.5.4 Drive-by Computer Interface

- 2.5.4.1. The proposed system must provide for complete interface to the drive-by data collection device. Route unloading and loading must be provided either by manual operation or by automatic loading with pre-assigned reading activity.
- 2.5.4.2. Transfer of route data shall be allowed through the use of external compact flash media including USB drives or via a direct transfer over wired or wireless network connection.
- 2.5.4.3. The application server software must have the ability to automatically post uploaded route files from the mobile computer.

2.6 Handheld Computer and Related Hardware

2.6.1 Collection Characteristics and Memory

- 2.6.1.1 Memory for application and data used in the data capture devices must be secure data technology, a non-volatile memory that improves data integrity and security.
- 2.6.1.2 The handheld computer must have the capability to store all meter reading data collection information—including routes—on a removable, user accessible Secure Data (SD) Compact Flash (CF) card. This removable media should be able to be copied to an alternate handheld in the event of a handheld failure to retain and restore the meter reading data.
- 2.6.1.3 The device must have persistent memory storage of system configuration and user setting to prevent having to reload them after a system reset or the main battery gets completely discharged.

2.6.2 Keyboard

- 2.6.2.1 The device must have an easy-to-use data input system. The keyboard must provide the following:
 - Environmental protection without the need for special covers or cases.

- Alphanumeric data entry without need for a Shift key.
- Dedicated New Service and/or Meter keys.
- A dedicated Change Meter Information key.
- A keyboard legend that facilitates the use of the application indicating software shortcuts or speed keys.
- Large numeric and Enter keys to support use with gloved hands.
- Keyboard and key legends that are backlit for use in low-light settings.
- Keyboard keys must give the user a tactile feedback.

2.6.3 Display and Physical Characteristics

- 2.6.3.1 The devices must use color liquid crystal display (LCD) technology with a minimum of 16 bits of resolution for applications that require a graphical user interface (GUI).
- 2.6.3.2 The display must be backlit and be readable in outdoor applications.
- 2.6.3.3 A touch-screen display shall be standard with every system. It needs to be pressure-sensitive and activated by the finger or a passive stylus.
- 2.6.3.4 The display must support the use of a protective transparent film without negatively affecting its usability or readability.
- 2.6.3.5 All handheld devices must be equipped with:
 - Hot swappable, field replaceable and rechargeable batteries
 - Battery capacity indicator with at least 4 levels
 - A battery charging system that completely charges the battery pack within 4 hours
 - The handheld computer must provide data security in the event of loss of power from the main battery supply. This protection is required even if the main battery supply is removed while the handheld computer is turned on for a minimum of 24 hours.
 - Battery must utilize smart lithium-ion technology with a minimum capacity of 2500 mAH.
 - The device must be chargeable outside of the communications cradle, including in a utility vehicle.

2.6.4 Processing

- 2.6.4.1 The system shall support a minimum processor running at least 800 MHz
- 2.6.4.2 The system must be able to run at a minimum Microsoft® Windows CE® 5.0 Professional.

2.6.5 *Communications*

- 2.6.5.1 The handheld must have the capability to perform its functions via radio with no wire connections required to the meter or meter module.
- 2.6.5.2 All radio components must be fully integrated into the handheld computer.

- 2.6.5.3 Should North Bay Village choose to purchase a non-radio version of the handheld; it must be feasible to upgrade these units in the future to support wirelessly reading meters.
- 2.6.5.4 The handheld must be IP-addressable and must communicate via Ethernet, USB, and serial port connections.
- 2.6.5.5 The system shall have, as an option, an internal GPS radio to capture latitude and longitude coordinates.

2.7 Drive-by Mobile Collection System

- 2.7.1. The drive-by system must be capable of operating inside of any utility vehicle in harsh environments.
- 2.7.2. The drive-by system must be easily installed into new or existing utility vehicles.
- 2.7.3. The drive-by system must provide the ability collect meter readings, tamper data and up to 40 days of daily and hourly interval data from water meters via handheld or drive-by radio.
- 2.7.4. The drive-by system must provide the ability to perform remote disconnect and reconnect of water service via handheld or drive-by radio incorporated into meter reading routes. The commands must be secured using industry standard encryption and authentication protocols.
- 2.7.5. The drive-by system must provide the ability to collect acoustic water leak sensor data via handheld or drive-by radio incorporated into meter reading routes.
- 2.7.6. The drive-by system must provide diagnostics capability to allow troubleshooting in the field.
- 2.7.7. The drive-by system must distinguish endpoints to be read based on priority via colored symbology on the mapping application.
- 2.7.8. The drive-by system must provide a mapping application, including GPS, that allows the meter reader to visually determine which meters have been read and those that remain to be read via colored symbology.
- 2.7.9. The drive-by system mapping application must provide the meter reader the flexibility to see only those meters that have not been read.
- 2.7.10. The drive-by system mapping application must provide the meter reader the ability to view geographically where the vehicle is in relation to the end points being read.
- 2.7.11. The drive-by system application must include functionality to calculate latitude and longitude GPS data for mapping purposes from address locations provided by the utility.
- 2.7.12. The drive-by system must provide the ability to filter out interference that may be interpreted as meter reads.
- 2.7.13. The drive-by system must have 80 channels of read capability.

2.7.14. The drive-by system must be able to migrate from handheld to drive-by and to fixed network without changing the endpoint.

2.8 Analytics Software

- 2.8.1. North Bay Village requires that our existing Tyler Technologies billing and customer information software be usable with the Mobile Based AMI system. As a minimum, a utility employee will see the mobile AMI data and be able to accomplish daily activities such as:
 - Reconciling bill complaints
 - Recognizing possible leaks
 - Creating new bills for move-out
 - Identifying usage in unoccupied locations
- 2.8.2. North Bay Village billing department employees and customer service representative need accurate, up-to-date data about individual customers. North Bay Village Manager needs accurate, complete information about routes, groups of customers, and the system as a whole.
- 2.8.3. North Bay Village requires proof of system performance with software that tracks system performance and reports it to North Bay Village employees.
- 2.8.4. As part of our commitment to system integrity and accuracy, North Bay Village requires the ability to identify tampers such as usage on an inactive meter or no usage on an active meter.
- 2.8.5. As part of our commitment to system integrity and conservation, North Bay Village requires the ability to conduct district metering analysis.
- 2.8.6. North Bay Village requires that Interval data be accessible in multiple views such as: Hourly, Daily, Weekly, as well as current billing period, any of the above compared to a previous period, filtered by week, weekend, holidays, etc.
- 2.8.7. North Bay Village requires the ability to schedule reports to be run and e-mailed to customers.
- 2.8.8. North Bay Village requires that the software have the ability to check for reading anomalies (high/low) and report them.
- 2.8.9. North Bay Village requires leak detection capabilities.

2.9 Consumer Engagement

- 2.9.1. North Bay Village requires that vendor's consumer engagement interface provide near real-time data for end-customer use.
- 2.9.2. North Bay Village require that the consumer engagement data be readable by end-customers on a variety of platforms such as a PC and smartphone.
- 2.9.3. North Bay Village requires interactive budgeting capabilities for end-use customers.

2.9.4. North Bay Village requires that CIS customers have available multi-site, multi-resource usage data that provide the opportunity to analyze, date limit, and email reports.

2.10 Water Loss Management System

- 2.10.1. North Bay Village requires a permanent monitoring and proprietary (non-third party) integrated distribution level leak detection system.
- 2.10.2. North Bay Village requires leak detection system software that prioritizes leaks by severity.
- 2.10.3. North Bay Village requires that the leak detection system be hosted and accessible in the field.
- 2.10.4. North Bay Village requires a leak management system that can record history of previous leaks/ repairs at sensor locations.
- 2.10.5. North Bay Village requires the leak detection sensors to have a minimum of 10-year battery life and must be completely submersible without impacting sensor integrity or performance.
- 2.10.6. North Bay Village requires a web-based user interface (UI) that displays a digital map of the service territory with each sensor location properly identified with GPS coordinates. UI must also display leak status for each sensor with an appropriate legend, such as: red for probably leak, yellow for possible leak and green for no leak likely.
- 2.10.7. North Bay Village requires that the leak sensor be readable with a two-way radio controller. Digital leak sensors must: employ a two-way, multi-band radio protocol, use advanced direct sequence techniques to increase range; and be approved by the FCC for unlicensed or licensed operation under FCC rules in the U.S. or equivalent applicable rules in other territories.
- 2.10.8. North Bay Village requires that the leak sensors have a self-calibrating, real-time calendar clock for implementation of nighttime recording and power management.
- 2.10.9. North Bay Village requires that the leak sensors record vibrations during the night a minimum of 256 times over a 4-hour period in order to characterize nighttime vibrations in the environment of the sensor.
- 2.10.10. North Bay Village requires that the analysis software include computation of a leak status for every acoustic leak detection sensor. The leak status is derived from a leak index, which is a number between 0 and 99 that represents the relative likelihood of there being a leak in the vicinity of the acoustic leak detection sensor.
- 2.10.11. North Bay Village requires that bidders must offer 24 hours per day customer support, 7 days a week.

3 Scope of Work

3.1 Experienced Project Management

The bidder, and its representatives, shall have a proven program of professional project management to ensure detailed follow-through for successful execution of system installations. Project managers shall be experienced in managing the design, installation and optimization of systems. Project management experience shall include system integration capabilities and any necessary training support.

- 3.1.1 Selected vendor's authorized distributor is to provide local technical support and project management for 1 year after initial system implementation.
- 3.1.2 Project Management will be responsible for working with Utilities and Customer Service to develop Standard Operating Procedures (SOP's) for post implementation maintenance.

3.2 System Configuration

The bidder selected shall provide a preliminary study team that works with North Bay Village to determine exact requirements and recommends a configuration solution. This team will deal with the entire project, including an agreed-upon phased approach to implementation, if required.

3.3 System Design

The Bidder selected shall provide a project team to determine what system configuration, installation options, performance criteria and redundancy will work best. This includes interface requirements with the Village's Tyler Technology billing software, application requirements, platforms supported, and program management responsibilities.

3.4 Configuration and Set Up

Include as part of your pricing proposal (Bid Items #3 through #6) all costs associated with the expected hardware configuration setup, operating system and software installation, parameter setups, definition of required reports, and development of input and output files. If your software must be customized include all costs to customize in your system pricing.

3.5 Installation

3.5.1. Include as part of your pricing proposal all aspects of the installation and construction of the systems used to provide the proposed Mobile Based AMI meter reading services.

3.5.2. Electronic Data Collection

3.5.2.1. Contractor shall utilize a Field Computer or electronic device for the specific purpose of collecting new meter information. The field computer shall be equipped with a barcode code scanner, camera and integrated GPS, at a minimum, to ensure data collection accuracy and integrity. It is acceptable to utilize a hardcopy form in the field for the purpose of production planning and supervision, but at no time should the hardcopy be used to solely collect the new meter information to be later hand keyed into a database for data processing, this is specifically to prevent human error in the field and in the office.

- 3.5.2.2. It is required that a job Forman, or crew leader, perform the data collection at each location, to include a final quality control review of the installation upon completion. A picture shall be taken of old meter read and new meter set.
- 3.5.2.3. Contractor shall have the means to automate and perform a thorough quality control review on a daily basis. The specifics are noted below, at a minimum, and must be able to demonstrate their process in detail if required.
 - Endpoint Verify there are no duplicates in the system.
 - Endpoint Utilize Certification File from manufacture and / or supplier to ensure data accuracy.
 - New Meter Verify there are no duplicates in the system.
 - New Meter Utilize Certification File from manufacture and / or supplier to ensure data accuracy.
 - Final Read Compare final read to a threshold, including an upper and lower limit, to prevent erroneous reads from inadvertently entering billing.
 - Meter Attributes Utilize Certification File from manufacture and / or supplier to ensure data accuracy.
- 3.5.2.4. Contractor shall prepare nightly reports to reflect the day's production.
- 3.5.2.5. Contractor shall prepare weekly project progress reports to communicate inventory levels as well as project progress.
- 3.5.2.6. Contractor shall prepare weekly and / or monthly system integrity reports to include route/book saturation levels as well as read rates.
- 3.5.2.7. Contractor shall have the in-house expertise to work with the client's billing provider to develop and implement an interface that will facilitate the electronic exchange of data.
- 3.5.2.8. Typical interface specification:
 - Download:
 - Account Number
 - Account Status
 - Service Type
 - Meter Number
 - Meter Type
 - Meter Size
 - Previous Read
 - Service Address
 - Occupant
 - Occupant Contact
 - Location Notes

- Upload:
- Account Number
- Meter Number
- Final Read
- New Read
- New Meter Number
- New MIU / MXU Number
- Meter Brand
- Meter Type
- Meter Size
- Install Date
- Latitude
- Longitude
- 3.5.3. Contractor will be responsible for any site or utility damage resulting from the installation of meters, meter boxes, and/or new water services. See Bit Item #23 for additional criteria.
- 3.5.4. Contractor shall include a current Safety Program.
- 3.5.5. Contractor is responsible for obtaining all applicable permits from the Village's Public Works and Building Departments and for arranging for all required inspections associated with this project.
- 3.5.6. Contractor shall put out door hangers 24 to 48 hours prior to meter installation.
- 3.5.7. All employees will wear a uniform marked with a visible company logo.
- 3.5.8. All vehicles will be marked with appropriate company logos.
- 3.5.9. Contractor shall schedule appointments for all commercial accounts.
- 3.5.10. Contractor shall report any unauthorized use of water.
- 3.5.11. It is the Contractor's responsibility to return all old meters back into the Village.
- 3.5.12. Experience:
- 3.5.12.1. Contractor shall have a minimum of 8 years of experience performing meter installations with AMR and AMI type systems.
- 3.5.12.2. Contractor shall have a verifiable experience record of having installed 25,000 meters per year, during the previous 4 consecutive years, of this ITB.

3.6 Training

3.6.1. North Bay Village requires training on all facets of the Mobile Based AMI System.

- 3.6.2. North Bay Village requires training on the Hand held meter reading system.
- 3.6.3. North Bay Village requires training on the Mobile meter reading system.
- 3.6.4. North Bay Village requires training on Hand held and Mobile meter reading Software.
- 3.6.5. North Bay Village requires training on the Reporting and Analysis Processes.
- 3.6.6. North Bay Village requires training on the Endpoint Installation and Maintenance.
- 3.6.7. North Bay Village requires training on Field Maintenance Procedures for Meter boxes, endpoints and Network hardware.

4 Made in America

In Accordance with Appendix D of the FDEP Supplemental Conditions, North Bay Village requires that all major components of the Mobile Based AMI System be manufactured and supported in the United States of America.

5 Standard Water Meters (Rehabilitation/Replacement of Existing Meters Only)

- 5.1. All meters offered must comply with the latest NSF 372 standards. These specifications include the rehabilitation or replacement of existing water meters if needed and as directed by the Village. The specifications cover cold water meters and the materials and workmanship employed in their fabrication. The displacement meters covered are known as nutating disc meters and are positive in action in that the discs displaces or carries over a fixed quantity of water for each nutation of the disc when operated under positive pressure. Only nutating disc meters offering bronze bodies conforming to NSF 372 standards are acceptable. Displacement meters with coatings applied on their housing bodies to meet NSF 372 standards are not acceptable.
- 5.2. An affidavit from the manufacturer that the meters furnished under the purchaser's order comply with all applicable requirements of AWWA specifications and these detailed specifications.
- 5.3. All meters shall have a bronze outer case with a separate removable bottom plate made of bronze or polymer material for meter sizes 5/8" x 3/4" and bronze for 1" meters. A bronze removable top plate shall be supplied for larger size meters. The size, model, and direction of flow shall be molded in the upper casing of the meter housing. Meters shall meet AWWA standards as it applies to working pressure and shall be in conformance to NSF 61 standards.
- 5.4. The outer case shall be so designed to accept either a totally sealed straight reading or digital absolute encoder register as described in these specifications.
- 5.5. 1 ½" and 2" meters shall be equipped with female threads or oval flanges. Oval flanged meters shall have casted in place a 1" NPT threaded test plug, for inline field testing, or pressure checks and shall accept the register configurations stated above.

- 5.6. All external closures shall be designed for easy removal after long service. Special torx tamper style seal screws shall be available and provided. Plastic push through pins are not acceptable. Bolts to secure the top and bottom plates to the meter body shall be made of non-corrosive stainless steel.
- 5.7. All meters shall have an absolute encoder register that is permanently sealed using a glass reading dome and brass or stainless steel housing, reading in US gallons. The encoder register shall incorporate a sweep hand and leak indicator on the dial face. The encoder register shall have a plastic lid with the meter serial number stamped on it. The encoder register shall be designed with a resolution encoder which includes eight-digit resolution to AMR/AMI Endpoints and the option of four, five, six, seven or eight-dial resolution. The Encoder register shall be mechanical; LCD or LED will not be accepted.
- 5.8. The measuring chambers shall be self-contained units smoothly finished, firmly seated, easily removed from the main cases, and shall not be a part of the main case. The measuring chamber, 5/8" through 2", shall be made of a dimensionally stable reinforced thermoplastic. They shall be of two-piece snap joint design and shall be secured in the main casing so that the accuracy of the meter will not be affected by any distortion of the cases that may occur when operating under pressures to 150 psi.
- 5.9. The measuring device shall be made of a suitable synthetic polymer as near the specific gravity of water as possible. It shall be smoothly finished and shall be fitted accurately into the measuring chamber. The disc style shall be equipped with a thrust roller and disc spindle. The disc nutations shall not exceed those listed below.
- 5.10. All meters shall be provided with strainer screens of rigid non-ferrous material which fit snugly, are easy to remove, and have an effective straining area at least double that of the main-case inlet.
- 5.11. All meters offered shall meet or exceed the latest AWWA accuracy standards for new water meters.
- 5.12. Meters supplied under these specifications shall operate without leakage or damage to any part at a working pressure of 150 psi.
- 5.13. All bids shall include the manufacturers nationally published warranty.

6 Solid State Residential Water Meters (New Meters)

- 6.1. These specifications include the installation of new Solid State meters throughout the Village's system. This specification covers Cold Water Ultrasonic Meter in sizes 5/8", 5/8" x 3/4", 1", and the material and workmanship employed in their fabrication. The meter must utilize ultrasonic measurement technology and have no moving parts within the meter.
- 6.2. The basis for measurement is the use of ultrasonic signals sent consecutively in forward and reverse directions of flow. Velocity is determined by measuring the time difference between the measurement in the forward and reverse direction. Flow totalization can then be calculated from the measure flow velocity using water temperature and pipe diameter.

- The meter is all electronic with totally potted circuitry, display and battery. There are no moving parts to wear or replace and no part of the meter is removable or serviceable.
- 6.3. The purchaser may require, in their supplemental specifications, an affidavit from the manufacturer or vendor that the meters furnished under the purchaser's order comply with all applicable requirements of this specification. Failure to meet any part of the specification shall be sufficient cause for rejection.
- 6.4. Meters supplied under this specification shall operate without leakage or damage at a working pressure of 175 psi.
- 6.5. The housing shall be lead-free, made of stainless steel or engineered polymer, and shall be designed so that at a working pressure of 175 psi, any distortion will not affect the accuracy of the meter. Metering tube shall not be repaired in any manner. The flow direction and meter size shall also be cast in the meter tube and the inlet and outlet shall have a common axis.
- 6.6. The ultrasonic metering insert shall be self-contained within the meter flow tube, seated, and not removable. The insert shall be secured to the main case, providing a method of minimizing turbulence and cleaning the reflectors, so that the accuracy of the meter will not be affected by any distortions of the case when operating at a pressure of 175 psi. The metering insert shall be made of engineered polymer and stainless steel and the ultrasonic transducers shall be wetted components that extend through the meter tube and shall have a surface of stainless steel.
- 6.7. The electronic circuit shall be micro-processor based and include a non-replaceable battery, and non-volatile memory capable of storing all programmable data and accumulated data. The circuit shall control the ultrasonic transducers. No field programming or calibration shall be necessary. The entire meter circuit and related components shall be fully potted and sealed from water intrusion. No components shall require service or replacement over the life of the meter. For reliability, the use of inductive coil technology shall not be permitted with an electronic residential meter.
- 6.8. The name of the manufacturer shall be permanently molded and the serial number shall be imprinted on the lid of the register box. The lid and shroud components shall overlap to protect the lens. Register box enclosures and lids shall be made of engineered polymer.
- 6.9. The Register shall be encased in an integral non-corrosive polymer housing, with the electronics, display, and battery completely potted within. It must be permanently epoxy sealed to provide moisture resistance to flooded pit or submerged conditions. The permanent seal between the lens and non-corrosive plastic housing shall utilize an adhesive seal.
- 6.10. The Register shall be an integral part of the meter assembly. The register must be available as factory pre-wired to an endpoint, or factory pre-wired to an inline connector that can be used to connect to an endpoint.
- 6.11. The Register shall consist of an electronic local display combined with electronic circuitry to provide either a high resolution absolute encoder output. This electronic

- register assembly shall transmit a signal through properly shielded (grounded) transmission wire for electronic reading connectivity.
- 6.12. The High Resolution Absolute Encoder Register option, available for the engineered polymer and stainless steel meters, shall use an industry ASCII protocol. Capable of sending a 9-digit encoder output to the endpoint as well as extended status messages. Resolution being sent to the reading software is based on the output of the endpoint.
- 6.13. The display shall be a straight reading, permanently sealed electronic LCD with digits 0.25 inches high. The display will contain 9 digits plus a decimal point and display consumption, units of measure, rate of flow and alarm information. The digital display shall provide a totalized consumption resolution to 0.01 gallons.
- 6.14. The size, model, and direction of flow through the meters shall be permanently visible on the topside of all meter displays. The units of registration, U.S. gallons, cubic feet, or meters cubed shall also be designated on the Register display. The enhanced resolution of the totalized flow display can be utilized as a flow indicator for leak detection.
- 6.15. The Register shall have a lid that covers the display face for added protection and optional identification of serial number.
- 6.16. The meter shall register not less than 98.5% and not more than 101.5% of the water actually passed through the meter. At the extended low test flow rate, the meter shall register not less than 97.0% and not more than 103.0% of the water actually passed through the meter.
- 6.17. All bids shall include the manufacturers nationally published warranty.

7 Solid State Commercial Water Meters (New Meters)

- 7.1. These specifications include the installation of new Solid State meters throughout the Village's system. This specification covers Commercial Water Meters sizes 1 ½"- 4" meters under this specification shall be a microprocessor- based electronic water meter capable of displaying total net consumption and flow rate in both forward and reverse flow direction.
- 7.2. The water meter shall have no moving parts to ensure that there is no damage from particulate matter, e.g. stones, sticks, weeds, etc.
- 7.3. The meter shall be suitable for operation from internal batteries that provide an operating life of 10 years for sizes 1 ½" up to 4". The meter shall provide an alarm at least 3 months prior to end of life to alert user of battery status. The alarm shall be visible on the meter display. Once the battery is dead the display should still function, showing the final registered volume, and provide another alarm stating the meter is no longer measuring flow.
- 7.4. As an optional feature, meters 2" and larger may include a replaceable battery pack as the means of powering. The battery pack shall be interchangeable among all of these sizes of

- meter and shall be labeled with the anticipated battery life for each size of meter to which it may be attached.
- 7.5. The battery pack shall include Torx head screws to secure the battery to the meter. The meter will have further features to indicate or prevent removal of the battery by unauthorized personnel. The battery pack connection port shall be double O-ring sealed and include material to indicate contact with moisture. The battery cells shall be encased in an engineering polymer or epoxy resin to protect them from physical or water damage.
- 7.6. Accuracy in the normal flow range shall be comparable to AWWA C701, AWWA C702, AWWA C703 and AWWA C712 in both forward and reverse flow direction. The meter shall have a turndown ratio of 350:1. The lowest measured flow should be 350th of the max flow and the accuracy shall be >95%.
- 7.7. An accuracy of $\pm 1.50\%$ shall be achieved for normal flows starting at 1% of max flow and up to the stated maximum flow (for 1.5" meters or larger). This performance is required for water management and/or billing purposes.
- 7.8. The battery powered electromagnetic meter shall have a sampling rate of at least 500ms and maintain a 10-year battery life (with sealed battery supply) at this sampling rate. Any slower sampling rate will not be accepted.
- 7.9. The 500ms sampling rate is required to ensure that the meter maintains its accuracy during variable flow rates and will provide an accurate reading in commercial billing applications.
- 7.10. The meter must contain internal grounding rings to ensure that any electro-static charge that could affect the meter's performance is dissipated before entering the flow tube. External groundings rings will not be accepted.
- 7.11. The meter performance shall have been verified on a fully traceable test facility that is internationally accepted (such as NAMA, NIMJ, NIST or equivalent). Laboratory traceability packs shall be available on request.
- 7.12. Meters sizes 1 ½" to 4" shall have laying lengths no more than specified by AWWA C701 Turbine Type Meter Standard, most recent revision.
- 7.13. Flanged ends for meters 1 ½" to 4" shall conform to ANSI B16.5 Class 125.
- 7.14. The wetted materials shall be compatible with, and suitable for, potable water. An internationally recognized body such as AWWA, NSF, WRC or equal shall certify the liner. Acceptable electrode material is 316 Stainless Steel. All other electrode material is not accepted.
- 7.15. The meter body and display enclosure must be constructed of a durable 304 stainless steel. The flow tube shall be constructed of 316 stainless steel.
- 7.16. The flow tube liner must be of a high density polyethylene to ensure that it is not susceptible to mineral build up.
- 7.17. The meter and register display shall be rated to IP68 (NEMA 6P) and be suitable for indefinite submergence to a depth of up to 33 feet (10 m). The meter should be fully

- IP68 sealed at the factory and not require additional potting material at installation. The sensor shall also be suitable for installation in underground pipes without the need for a meter vault or pit. The manufacturer shall, on request, provide evidence of satisfactory operation of similar sensors for a minimum period of 5 years in buried installations.
- 7.18. A remote-mounted display suitable for installation up to 200 feet from the sensor must be available and easily retrofitted in the field for pit applications.
- 7.19. The remote mounted display must be able to provide a pulse output capable of interfacing with external data loggers, AMR/AMI devices and 4-20mA Frequency to Analog converters.
- 7.20. The Remote display unit shall be protected to IP63 (NEMA 4P) resistant to water spray at a 60° angle. An IP68 (NEMA 6P) protective box may also be required.
- 7.21. There shall be independent totalizer displays to give net total and flow rate.
- 7.22. The meter shall be compatible with electronic meter reading systems, including handheld scan reading and Walk-by, Drive-by and Fixed Network radio frequency systems.
- 7.23. The meter shall provide two pulse outputs. The pulse outputs must be capable of interfacing with external data loggers, AMR/AMI devices and 4-20mA Frequency to Analog converters. The meter shall also have the ability to provide an absolute encoded output for interfacing with AMR/AMI devices.
- 7.24. The output of the meter shall be easily changed out in the field without removal of the register, without compromising the IP68 rating, without the need to remove and replace potting material and without programming.
- 7.25. Manufacturers shall, on request, provide a reference list of battery-powered electromagnetic flow meters that have been supplied to users on major international leakage detection and water supply projects and which have been in operation for at least 5 years.
- 7.26. All bids shall include the manufacturers nationally published warranty.

WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM NORTH BAY VILLAGE

BID NO. NBV 2016-003

Appendix B

- 1. Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department (WASD) Specifications for reference:
 - Section UC-075 Water Service Installations
 - Section UC-080 Meter Boxes, Sectional Plates and Vaults for Water Service
 - Section UC-085 Water Meter Valves
 - Section UC-170 Cleaning and Testing of Main
 - Section UC-175 Disinfection of Water Main
 - Section 15060 Piping and Fittings
 - Section 15100 Valves, General
- 2. WASD Details for reference:
 - GS 0.5, 1 of 2 Standard Requirements Water and Sewer Construction
 - GS 0.5, 2 of 2 Standard Requirements Water and Sewer Construction
 - GS 2.0, 1 of 5 Standard Requirements Mechanical Thrust Restraint
 - GS 2.0, 2 of 5 Standard Requirements Mechanical Thrust Restraint
 - GS 2.0, 3 of 5 Standard Requirements Mechanical Thrust Restraint
 - GS 2.0, 4 of 5 Standard Requirements Mechanical Thrust Restraint
 - GS 2.0, 5 of 5 Standard Requirements Mechanical Thrust Restraint
 - WS 2.05, 1 of 1 Casting Standards
 - WS 2.10, 1 of 3 Single Meter Box Installation
 - WS 2.10, 2 of 3 Single Meter Box Installation

Dual Meter Box Installation WS 2.12, 1 of 2 WS 2.12, 2 of 2 Dual 5/8" Meter Installation WS 2.16, 1 of 4 Typical 2" Service Installation with 2" Meter WS 2.16, 2 of 4 Typical 2" Service Installation with 1 1/2" Meter WS 2.16, 3 of 4 Typical 1" Service Connection (Copper or HDPE) WS 2.16, 4 of 4 Typical 2" Service Connection (HDPE) WS 2.21, 1 of 3 Easement Requirements for Service and Fire Hydrant WS 4.10, 1 of 1 Typical Service Plan WS 4.16, 1 of 2 Meter Bank − 2" Supply WS 4.16, 2 of 2 Meter Bank – 4" Supply WS 4.20, 1 of 4 Typical Fire & Domestic Water Service Connections Dual 2" Meter Installation for Typical 4" Domestic Service WS 4.21, 1 of 2 Lines WS 4.21, 2 of 2 Dual 2" Meter Installation for Typical 2" Domestic Service

Lines

WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM NORTH BAY VILLAGE

BID NO. NBV 2016-003

Appendix C

- 1. Florida Department of Environmental Protection State Revolving Fund Program Supplementary Conditions. The Contactor is required to comply with these Supplementary Conditions and include all costs associated with complying with these Supplemental Conditions in the overall cost of the Total Bid Amount.
- 2. Wage Rates, FL168 Heavy Construction Projects

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS (CONSTRUCTION)

Florida Department of Environmental Protection

State Revolving Fund Program

Supplementary Conditions

for

Formally Advertised

Construction Procurement

TABLE OF CONTENTS FOR THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

| Article Number | Article Title | Page |
|-------------------|--|---------|
| 1 | DEFINITIONS | FDEP-1 |
| 2 | PRIVITY OF AGREEMENT/CONTRACT | FDEP-2 |
| 3 | PROCUREMENT REQUIREMENTS | FDEP-2 |
| 4 | RESOLUTION OF PROTESTS AND CLAIMS/DISPUTES | FDEP-2 |
| 5 | CHANGES TO THE BIDDING AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS | FDEP-3 |
| 6 | BONDS AND INSURANCE | FDEP-3 |
| 7 | AWARD OF AGREEMENT/CONTRACT | FDEP-4 |
| 8 | ITEMIZED CONSTRUCTION COST BREAKDOWN; CONSTRUCTION AND PAYMENT SCHEDULES | FDEP-4 |
| 9 | FDEP/USEPA ACCESS TO RECORDS AND PROJECT SITE | FDEP-4 |
| 10 | DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES | FDEP-4 |
| 11 | DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (EXECUTIVE ORDER 12549) | FDEP-5 |
| 12 | EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY (EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246) | FDEP-6 |
| 13 | IMMIGRATION REFORM AND CONTROL ACT OF 1986 STATE OF FLORIDA EXECUTIVE ORDER 11-116) | FDEP-12 |
| 14 | ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE | FDEP-12 |
| 15 | FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS PROVISION | FDEP-12 |
| 16 | AMERICAN IRON AND STEEL PROVISION | FDEP-12 |
| 17 | PROHIBITED LOCAL GOVERNMENT CONSTRUCTION PREFERENCES | FDEP-12 |
| Append | lix Title | Page |
| A | CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS | FDEP-13 |
| В | GOALS AND TIMETABLES FOR MINORITIES AND FEMALES | FDEP-14 |
| C | FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS PROVISION | FDEP-15 |
| D | AMERICAN IRON AND STEEL PROVISION | FDEP-23 |

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

The intent of the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) Supplementary Conditions is to complement and supplement other provisions of the Bidding Documents. However, if there is any conflict between the FDEP Supplementary Conditions and other provisions of the Bidding Documents, the FDEP Supplementary Conditions shall take precedence over the other provisions except when the other provisions are similar to, but more stringent than, the FDEP Supplementary Conditions. When other provisions of the Bidding Documents are similar to, but more stringent than, the FDEP Supplementary Conditions, the more stringent provisions shall apply.

ARTICLE 1 - DEFINITIONS

Wherever used in these Supplementary Conditions (except in the appendices to these Supplementary Conditions), the following terms have the meanings indicated, which are applicable to both the singular and plural thereof.

- 1.1 Addendum -A written or graphic instrument that is issued prior to the opening of bids and that clarifies, corrects, or changes the Bidding Documents.
- 1.2 Agreement or Contract The written agreement between the Owner and the Contractor covering the Work to be performed and furnished; these Supplementary Conditions and other Contract Documents are attached to the Agreement/Contract and made a part thereof as provided therein.
- 1.3 Bid The offer or proposal of a bidder submitted on the prescribed form and setting forth the price(s) for the Work to be performed and furnished.
- 1.4 Bidder Any person, firm, or corporation that submits a bid directly to the Owner.
- 1.5 Bidding Documents The Advertisement for Bids or the Invitation to Bid, the Instructions to Bidders or the Information for Bidders, the Bid Form, the proposed Contract Documents, and all addenda.
- 1.6 Bond An instrument of security.
- 1.7 Change Order A document that is recommended by the Engineer and signed by the Contractor and the Owner; that authorizes an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work or an adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Time; and that is issued on or after the Effective Date of the Agreement/Contract.
- 1.8 Contract Documents The Agreement/Contract; the Contractor's Bid when attached as an exhibit to the Agreement/Contract; the Performance and Payment Bond(s); the General Conditions; the Supplementary Conditions (including these Supplementary Conditions); the Specifications (written technical descriptions of material, equipment, construction systems, standards, and workmanship as applied to the Work and certain administrative details applicable thereto); the Drawings (drawings that show the character and scope of the Work to be performed and furnished); all addenda that pertain to the Contract Documents; and all change orders.
- 1.9 Contract Time The number of days or the date stated in the Contract Documents for completion of the Work.
- 1.10 Contractor The person, firm, or corporation with whom or which the Owner enters into the Agreement/Contract.
- 1.11 Effective Date of the Agreement/Contract The date indicated in the Agreement/Contract on which the Agreement/Contract becomes effective, or if no such date is indicated in the Agreement/Contract, the date on which the Agreement/Contract is signed and delivered by the last of the two parties to sign and deliver the Agreement/Contract.
- 1.12 Engineer The person, firm, or corporation named as such in the Contract Documents.
- 1.13 Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) A historically Black college or university or a business that is (a) certified as socially and economically disadvantaged by the Small Business Administration, (b) certified as an MBE by a state or federal agency, or (c) an independent business concern which is at least 51-percent owned and controlled by minority group members. (A minority group member is an individual who is a citizen of the United States and one of the following: [i] Black American; [ii] Hispanic American [with origins from Puerto Rico, Mexico, Cuba, or South or Central America]; [iii] Native American [American Indian, Eskimo, Aleut, or native Hawaiian]; or [iv] Asian-Pacific American

[with origins from Japan, China, the Philippines, Vietnam, Korea, Samoa, Guam, the U.S. Trust Territories of the Pacific, Northern Marianas, Laos, Cambodia, Taiwan, or the Indian Subcontinent].)

- 1.14 Notice to Proceed -The written notice given by the Owner to the Contractor fixing the date on which the Contract Time will commence to run and on which the Contractor shall start to perform its obligations under the Contract Documents.
- 1.15 Owner The local government (municipality, county, district, or authority; or any agency thereof; or a combination of two or more of the foregoing acting jointly) with which the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) may execute, or has executed, a State Revolving Fund loan agreement and for which the Work is to be provided.
- 1.16 Project The total construction or facilities described in a State Revolving Fund loan agreement between the FDEP and the Owner, of which the Work to be provided under the Contract Documents may be the whole or a part.
- 1.17 Sponsor The recipient of the State Revolving Fund loan agreement that provides funds for the project.
- 1.18 Subcontract A direct contract between a subcontractor and the Contractor, or any other subcontractor at any tier, for the furnishing of goods (material and equipment) or the performance of services (including construction) necessary to complete the Work.
- 1.19 Subcontractor A person, firm, or corporation having a direct contract with the Contractor, or any other subcontractor at any tier, for the furnishing of goods (material and equipment) or the performance of services (including construction) necessary to complete the Work.
- 1.20 Successful Bidder The lowest responsive, responsible bidder to whom or which the Owner intends to award the Agreement/Contract.
- 1.21 Women's Business Enterprise (WBE) A business that is (a) certified as a WBE by a state or federal agency or (b) an independent business concern which is at least 51-percent owned and controlled/operated by women. (Determination of whether a business is at least 51-percent owned by women shall be made without regard to community property laws [e.g., an otherwise qualified WBE that is 51-percent owned by a married woman in a community property state will not be disqualified because the married woman's husband has a 50-percent interest in the married woman's share of the business; similarly, a business that is 51-percent owned by a married man and 49-percent owned by women will not become a qualified WBE by virtue of the married man's wife having a 50-percent interest in the married man's share of the business].)
- 1.22 Work The entire completed construction or the various separately identifiable parts thereof required to be performed and furnished under the Contract Documents; Work is the result of performing services, furnishing labor, furnishing material and equipment, and incorporating material and equipment into the construction as required by the Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 2 - PRIVITY OF AGREEMENT/CONTRACT

2.1. The Owner expects to finance this Agreement/Contract with assistance from the FDEP, which administers a State Revolving Fund loan program supported in part with funds directly made available by grants from the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA). Neither the State of Florida nor the United States (nor any of their departments, agencies, or employees) will be a party to this Agreement/Contract or any lower-tier subcontract.

ARTICLE 3 - PROCUREMENT REQUIREMENTS

3.1. This Agreement/Contract and the Owner's solicitation and award of this Agreement/Contract are subject to requirements contained in Chapter 62-503 (Revolving Loan Program) and/or Chapter 62-552, Florida Administrative Code as applicable.

ARTICLE 4 - RESOLUTION OF PROTESTS AND CLAIMS/DISPUTES

Resolution of Protests Concerning the Owner's Solicitation and/or Award of this Agreement/Contract:

- 4.1. Protests concerning the Owner's solicitation and/or award of this Agreement/Contract must be filed in writing with the Owner to be considered.
- 4.2. All timely written protests concerning the Owner's solicitation and/or award of this Agreement/Contract are to be resolved in accordance with the Owner's dispute resolution process. A copy of the ordinance(s), resolution(s), or written policy (policies) that set forth the Owner's dispute resolution process is included elsewhere in the Bidding Documents or is to be made available by the Owner upon request.
- 4.3. Neither the (FDEP) nor the USEPA will become a party to, or have any role in resolving, protests concerning the Owner's solicitation and/or award of this Agreement/Contract. Protest decisions made by the Owner cannot be appealed to the FDEP or the USEPA.

Resolution of Claims and Disputes Between the Owner and the Contractor:

- 4.4. Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, all claims and disputes between the Owner and the Contractor arising out of, or relating to, the Contract Documents or the breach thereof are to be decided by arbitration (if the Owner and the Contractor mutually agree) or in a court of competent jurisdiction within the State of Florida.
- 4.5. Neither the FDEP nor the USEPA will become a party to, or have any role in resolving, claims and disputes between the Owner and the Contractor.

ARTICLE 5 - CHANGES TO THE BIDDING AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

5.1. All changes to the Bidding Documents made subsequent to the FDEP's acceptance of the Bidding Documents and prior to the opening of bids are to be documented via addendum (addenda) to the Bidding Documents; all changes to the Contract Documents made after the opening of bids are to be documented by change order(s) to the Contract Documents. The Owner shall submit all addenda and change orders to the FDEP.

ARTICLE 6 - BONDS AND INSURANCE

Bid Guarantees:

6.1. Each bidder's bid is to be accompanied by a bid guarantee made payable to the Owner in an amount at least equal to five percent of the bidder's maximum bid price and in the form of a certified check or bid bond.

Performance and Payment Bond(s):

6.2. The Contractor shall furnish a combined performance and payment bond in an amount at least equal to 100 percent of the Contract Price (or, if required elsewhere in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall furnish separate performance and payment bonds, each in an amount at least equal to 100 percent of the Contract Price) as security for the faithful performance and payment of all the Contractor's obligations under the Contract Documents. This(these) bond(s) are to be delivered to the Owner by the Contractor along with the executed Agreement/Contract. The Owner shall forward a copy of this (these) bond(s) to the FDEP.

Insurance:

6.3. The Owner and/or the Contractor (as required elsewhere in the Contract Documents) shall purchase and maintain, during the period of construction, such liability insurance as is appropriate for the Work being performed and furnished and as will provide protection from claims that may arise out of, or result from, the Contractor's performance and furnishing of the Work (whether the Work is to be performed or furnished by the Contractor or any subcontractor at the Work site) and the Contractor's other obligations under the Contract Documents. This insurance is to include workers' compensation insurance, comprehensive general liability insurance, comprehensive automobile liability insurance, and contractual liability insurance applicable to the Contractor's indemnification obligations and is to be written for not less than the limits of liability and coverages determined by the Owner or required by law, whichever is greater.

- 6.4. The Owner and/or the Contractor (as required elsewhere in the Contract Documents) shall purchase and maintain, during the period of construction, property insurance upon the Work at the Work site in an amount equal to the full replacement cost of the Work or the full insurable value of the Work. This insurance is to include the interests of the Owner, the Contractor, and all subcontractors at the Work site (all of whom are to be listed as insured or additional insured parties); is to insure against the perils of fire and extended coverage; and is to include "all-risk" insurance for physical loss or damage due to theft, vandalism and malicious mischief, collapse, water damage, and/or all other risks against which coverage is obtainable.
- 6.5. Before any Work at the Work site is started, the Contractor shall deliver to the Owner certificates of insurance that the Contractor is required to purchase and maintain in accordance with Paragraphs 6.3 and 6.4 of this Article and other provisions of the Contract Documents, and the Owner shall deliver to the Contractor certificates of insurance that the Owner is required to purchase and maintain in accordance with Paragraphs 6.3 and 6.4 of this Article and other provisions of the Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 7 - AWARD OF AGREEMENT/CONTRACT

7.1. If this Agreement/Contract is awarded, it is to be awarded to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder. A fixed price (lump sum or unit price or both) agreement/contract is to be used. A clear explanation of the method of evaluating bids and the basis for awarding this Agreement/Contract are included elsewhere in the Bidding Documents. All bids may be rejected when in the best interest of the Owner. After the contract has been awarded, the Owner shall give the Contractor a notice to proceed fixing the date on which the Contract Time will commence to run. The Owner shall forward a copy of this notice to proceed to the FDEP.

ARTICLE 8 - ITEMIZED CONSTRUCTION COST BREAKDOWN; CONSTRUCTION AND PAYMENT SCHEDULES

- 8.1. The Contractor shall submit to the Owner, within ten calendar days after the Effective Date of this Agreement/Contract, an itemized construction cost breakdown and construction and payment schedules.
 - 8.1.1. The itemized construction cost breakdown, or schedule of values, is to include quantities and prices of items aggregating the Contract Price and is to subdivide the Work into component parts in sufficient detail to serve as the basis for progress payments during construction. Such prices are to include an appropriate amount of overhead and profit applicable to each item of Work.
 - 8.1.2. The construction, or progress, schedule is to indicate the Contractor's estimated starting and completion dates for the various stages of the Work and is to show both the projected cost of Work completed and the projected percentage of Work completed versus Contract Time.
 - 8.1.3. The payment schedule is to show the Contractor's projected payments cumulatively by month.

ARTICLE 9 - FDEP/USEPA ACCESS TO RECORDS AND PROJECT SITE

9.1. Authorized representatives of the Owner, the FDEP, and the USEPA shall have access to, for the purpose of inspection, the Work site(s), any books, documents, papers, and records of the Contractor that are pertinent to this Agreement/Contract at any reasonable time. The Contractor shall retain all books, documents, papers, and records pertinent to this Agreement/Contract for a period of five years after receiving and accepting final payment under this Agreement/Contract.

NOTE: ARTICLE 10 ONLY APPLIES TO FEDERAL CAP GRANT PROJECTS

ARTICLE 10 - DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES

10.1 A goal of five percent of the Contract Price is established for Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) participation in the Work, and a goal of five percent of the Contract Price is established for Women's Business Enterprise (WBE) participation in the Work. If bidders or prospective contractors (including the Contractor) intend to let any lower-tier goods

or services (including construction) subcontracts for any portion of the Work, they shall physically include these percentage goals for MBE and WBE participation in all solicitations for subcontracts and shall take good faith efforts to assure that MBEs and WBEs are utilized, when possible, as sources of goods and services. Good faith efforts are to include the following:

- 10.1.1. Require Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs) are made aware of contracting opportunities to the fullest extent practicable through outreach and recruitment activities. For Indian Tribal, State and Local and Government recipients, this will include placing DBEs on solicitation lists and soliciting them whenever they are potential sources.
- 10.1.2. Make information on forthcoming opportunities available to DBEs and arrange time frames for contracts and establish delivery schedules, where the requirements permit, in a way that encourages and facilitates participation by DBEs in the competitive process. This includes, whenever possible, posting solicitations for bids or proposals for a minimum of 30 calendar days before the bid or proposal closing date.
- 10.1.3. Consider in the contracting process whether firms competing for large contracts could subcontract with DBEs. For Indian Tribal, State and local Government recipients, this will include dividing total requirements when economically feasible into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by DBEs in the competitive process.
- 10.1.4. Encourage contracting with a consortium of DBEs when a contract is too large for one of these firms to handle individually.
- 10.1.5. Use the services and assistance of the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce.
- 10.1.6. If the prime contractor awards subcontracts, require the prime contractor to take the steps in paragraphs 10.1.1 through 10.1.5 of this section.
- 10.2. Within ten calendar days after being notified of being the apparent Successful Bidder, the apparent Successful Bidder shall submit to the Owner documentation of the affirmative steps it has taken to utilize Minority and Women's Business Enterprises (MBEs and WBEs) in the Work and documentation of its intended use of MBEs and WBEs in the Work. The Owner shall keep this documentation on file and shall forward to the FDEP a copy of the apparent Successful Bidder's documentation concerning its intended use of MBEs and WBEs in the Work.

ARTICLE 11 - DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (EXECUTIVE ORDER 12549)

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions

- 11.1. The bidder certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
- 11.2. Where the bidder is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.
- 11.3. The bidder also certifies that it and its principals:
 - 11.3.1. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of federal or state anti-trust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
 - 11.3.2. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph 11.3.1 of this certification; and
 - 11.3.3. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal had one or more public transactions (federal, state or local) terminated for cause or default. Where the bidder is unable to certify to any of the above, such owner shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

- 11.3.4. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the federal government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.
- 11.3.5. The bidder shall incorporate the foregoing requirements 11.1 through 11.3 in all subcontracts.

ARTICLE 12 - EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY (EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246)

- 12.1. Notice of Requirement for Affirmative Action to Ensure Equal Employment Opportunity (Executive Order 11246). (Applicable to contracts/subcontracts exceeding \$10,000)
 - 12.1.1. The Offeror's or Bidder's attention is called to the "Equal Opportunity Clause" and the "Standard Federal Equal Employment Specifications" set forth herein.
 - 12.1.2. The goals and timetables for minority and female participation, expressed in percentage terms for the Contractor's aggregate workforce in each trade on all construction work in Florida, are as follows:

Goal for female participation: 6.9 percent statewide

Goal for minority participation: (See Appendix B at FDEP-20 for goals for each county)

These goals are applicable to all the Contractor's construction work (whether or not it is federal or federally assisted) performed in the covered area. If the contractor performs construction work in a geographical area located outside of the covered area, it shall apply the goals established for such geographical area where the work is actually performed. With regard to this second area, the contractor also is subject to the goals for both its federally involved and non-federally involved construction.

The Contractor's compliance with the Executive Order and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4 shall be based on its implementation of the Equal Opportunity Clause, specific affirmative action obligations required by the specifications set forth in 41 CFR 60-4.3(a), and its efforts to meet the goals. The hours of minority and female employment and training must be substantially uniform throughout the length of the contract, and in each trade, and the contractor shall make a good faith effort to employ minorities and women evenly on each of its projects. The transfer of minority or female employees or trainees from Contractor to Contractor or from project to project for the sole purpose of meeting the Contractor's goals shall be a violation of the contract, the Executive Order and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4. Compliance with the goals will be measured against the total work hours performed.

- 12.1.3. The Contractor shall provide written notification to the Director of the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs within 10 working days of award of any construction subcontract in excess of \$10,000 at any tier for construction work under the contract resulting from this solicitation. The notification shall list the name, address and telephone number of the subcontractor; employer identification number of the subcontractor; estimated dollar amount of the subcontract; estimated starting and completion dates of the subcontract; and the geographical area in which the subcontract is to be performed.
- 12.1.4. As used in this Notice, and in the contract resulting from this solicitation, the "covered area" is the State of Florida.
- 12.1.5. Contractors shall incorporate the foregoing requirements in all subcontracts.
- 12.2. **Equal Opportunity Clause** (Applicable to contracts/subcontracts exceeding \$10,000)

During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows:

12.2.1. The Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The Contractor shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants for employment are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship.

- 12.2.2. The Contractor shall post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. The notice can be obtained online at http://www.eeoc.gov/employers/upload/eeoc_self_print_poster.pdf. The Contractor shall state that all qualified applicants be considered without regard to race, color, religion, sex or national origin.
- 12.2.3. The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive considerations for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
- 12.2.4. The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the contractor's commitments under this section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.
- 12.2.5. The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.
- 12.2.6. The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.
- 12.2.7. In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.
- 12.2.8. The contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the provisions of paragraphs 12.2.1 through 12.2.8 in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering agency, the contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.
- 12.3. The Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications (Executive Order 11246)
 - 12.3.1. As used in these specifications:
 - a. "Covered area" means the geographical area described in the solicitation from which this contract resulted;
 - b. "Director" means Director, Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, United States Department of Labor, or any person to whom the Director delegates authority;
 - c. "Employer identification number" means the Federal Social Security number used on the Employer's Quarterly Federal Tax Return, U.S. Treasury Department Form 941.
 - d. "Minority" includes:
 - (i) Black (all persons having origins in any of the Black African racial groups not of Hispanic origin);
 - (ii) Hispanic (all persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American or other Spanish Culture or origin, regardless of race);
 - (iii) Asian and Pacific Islander (all persons having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands); and

- (iv) American Indian or Alaskan Native (all persons having origins in any of the original peoples of North America and maintaining identifiable tribal affiliations through membership and participation or community identification).
- 12.3.2. Whenever the Contractor, or any Subcontractor at any tier, subcontracts a portion of the work involving any construction trade, it shall physically include in each subcontract in excess of \$10,000 the provisions of these specifications and the Notice which contains the applicable goals for minority and female participation and which is set forth in the solicitations from which this contract resulted.
- 12.3.3. If the Contractor is participating (pursuant to 41 CFR 60-4.5) in a Hometown Plan approved by the U.S. Department of Labor in the covered area either individually or through an association, its affirmative action obligations on all work in the Plan area (including goals and timetables) shall be in accordance with that Plan for those trades which have unions participating in the Plan. Contractors must be able to demonstrate their participation in and compliance with the provisions of any such Hometown Plan. Each Contractor or Subcontractor participating in an approved Plan is individually required to comply with its obligations under the EEO clause, and to make a good faith effort to achieve each goal under the Plan in each trade in which it has employees. The overall good faith performance by other Contractors or Subcontractors toward a goal in an approved Plan does not excuse any covered Contractor's or Subcontractor's failure to take good faith efforts to achieve the Plan goals and timetables.
- 12.3.4. The Contractor shall implement the specific affirmative action standards provided in paragraphs 7a through p of these specifications. The goals set forth in the solicitation from which this contract resulted are expressed as percentages of the total hours of employment and training of minority and female utilization the Contractor should reasonably be able to achieve in each construction trade in which it has employees in the covered area. Covered construction Contractors performing construction work in geographical areas where they do not have a federal or federally assisted construction contract shall apply the minority and female goals established for the geographical area where the work is being performed. Goals are published periodically in the FEDERAL REGISTER in notice form, and such notices may be obtained from any Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs office or from federal procurement contracting officers. The Contractor is expected to make substantially uniform progress in meeting its goals in each craft during the period specified.
- 12.3.5. Neither the provisions of any collective bargaining agreement, nor the failure by a union with whom the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement, to refer either minorities or women shall excuse the Contractor's obligations under these specifications, Executive Order 11246, or the regulations promulgated pursuant thereto.
- 12.3.6. In order for the nonworking training hours of apprentices and trainees to be counted in meeting the goals, such apprentices and trainees must be employed by the Contractor during the training period, and the Contractor must have made a commitment to employ the apprentices and trainees at the completion of their training, subject to the availability of employment opportunities. Trainees must be trained pursuant to training programs approved by the U.S. Department of Labor.
- 12.3.7. The Contractor shall take specific affirmative actions to ensure equal employment opportunity. The evaluation of the Contractor's compliance with these specifications shall be based upon its effort to achieve maximum results from its actions. The Contractor shall document these efforts fully, and shall implement affirmative action steps at least as extensive as the following:
 - a. Ensure and maintain a working environment free of harassment, intimidation, and coercion at all sites, and in all facilities at which the Contractor's employees are assigned to work. The Contractor, where possible, will assign two or more women to each construction project. The Contractor shall specifically ensure that all foremen, superintendents, and other on-site supervisory personnel are aware of and carry out the Contractor's obligation to maintain such a working environment, with specific attention to minority or female individuals working at such sites or in such facilities.
 - b. Establish and maintain a current list of minority and female recruitment sources, provide written notification to minority and female recruitment sources and to community organizations when the Contractor or its unions have employment opportunities available, and maintain a record of the organizations' responses.

- c. Maintain a current file of the names, addresses and telephone numbers of each minority and female off-the-street applicant and minority or female referral from a union, a recruitment source or community organization and of what action was taken with respect to each such individual. If such individual was sent to the union hiring hall for referral and was not referred back to the Contractor by the union or, if referred, not employed by the Contractor, this shall be documented in the file with the reason therefore, along with whatever additional actions the Contractor may have taken.
- d. Provide immediate written notification to the Director when the union or unions with which the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement has not referred to the Contractor a minority person or woman sent by the Contractor, or when the Contractor has other information that the union referral process has impeded the Contractor's efforts to meet its obligations.
- e. Develop on-the-job training opportunities and/or participate in training programs for the area which expressly include minorities and women, including upgrading programs and apprenticeship and trainee programs relevant to the Contractor's employment needs, especially those programs funded or approved by the Department of Labor. The Contractor shall provide notice of these programs to the sources compiled under 12.3.7b above.
- f. Disseminate the Contractor's EEO policy by providing notice of the policy to unions and training programs and requesting their cooperation in assisting the Contractor in meeting its EEO obligations; by including it in any policy manual and collective bargaining agreement; by publicizing it in the company newspaper, annual report, etc.; by specific review of the policy with all management personnel and with all minority and female employees at least once a year; and by posting the company EEO policy on bulletin boards accessible to all employees at each location where construction work is performed.
- g. Review, at least annually, the company's EEO policy and affirmative action obligations under these specifications with all employees having any responsibility for hiring, assignment, layoff, termination or other employment decisions including specific review of these items with onsite supervisory personnel such as Superintendents, General Foremen, etc., prior to the initiation of construction work at any job site. A written record shall be made and maintained identifying the time and place of these meetings, persons attending, subject matter discussed, and disposition of the subject matter.
- h. Disseminate the Contractor's EEO policy externally by including it in any advertising in the news media, specifically including minority and female news media, and providing written notification to and discussing the Contractor's EEO policy with other Contractors and Subcontractors with whom the Contractor does or anticipates doing business.
- i. Direct its recruitment efforts, both oral and written, to minority, female and community organizations, to schools with minority and female students and to minority and female recruitment and training organizations serving the Contractor's recruitment area and employment needs. Not later than one month prior to the date for the acceptance of applications for apprenticeship or other training by any recruitment source, the Contractor shall send written notification to organizations such as the above, describing the openings, screening procedures, and tests to be used in the selection process.
- j. Encourage present minority and female employees to recruit other minority persons and women and, where reasonable, provide after school, summer and vacation employment to minority and female youth both on the site and in other areas of a Contractor's work force.
- k. Validate all tests and other selection requirements where there is an obligation to do so under 41 CFR Part 60-3.
- l. Conduct, at least annually, an inventory and evaluation at least of all minority and female personnel for promotional opportunities and encourage these employees to seek or to prepare for, through appropriate training, etc., such opportunities.
- m. Ensure that seniority practices, job classifications, work assignments and other personnel practices, do not have a discriminatory effect by continually monitoring all personnel and employment related activities to ensure that the EEO policy and the Contractor's obligations under these specifications are being carried out.

- n. Ensure that all facilities and company activities are nonsegregated except that separate or single-user toilet and necessary changing facilities shall be provided to assure privacy between the sexes.
- o. Document and maintain a record of all solicitations of offers for subcontracts from minority and female construction contractors and suppliers, including circulation of solicitations to minority and female contractor associations and other business associations.
- p. Conduct a review, at least annually, of all supervisors' adherence to and performance under the Contractor's EEO policies and affirmative action obligations.
- 12.3.8. Contractors are encouraged to participate in voluntary associations which assist in fulfilling one or more of their affirmative action obligations (12.3.7a through 12.3.7p). The efforts of a contractor association, joint contractor-union, contractor-community, or other similar group of which the contractor is a member and participant, may be asserted as fulfilling any one or more of its obligations under 7a through p of these specifications provided that the contractor actively participates in the group, makes every effort to assure that the group has a positive impact on the employment of minorities and women in the industry, ensures that the concrete benefits of the program are reflected in the Contractor's minority and female workforce participation, makes a good faith effort to meet its individual goals and timetables, and can provide access to documentation which demonstrates the effectiveness of actions taken on behalf of the Contractor. The obligation to comply, however, is the Contractor's and failure of such a group to fulfill an obligation shall not be a defense for the Contractor's noncompliance.
- 12.3.9. A single goal for minorities and a separate single goal for women have been established. The Contractor, however, is required to provide equal employment opportunity and to take affirmative action for all minority groups, both male and female, and all women, both minority and non-minority. Consequently, the Contractor may be in violation of the Executive Order if a particular group is employed in a substantially disparate manner (for example, even though the Contractor has achieved its goals for women generally, the Contractor may be in violation of the Executive Order if a specific minority group of women is underutilized).
- 12.3.10. The Contractor shall not use the goals and timetables or affirmative action standards to discriminate against any person because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
- 12.3.11. The Contractor shall not enter into any Subcontract with any person or firm debarred from Government contracts pursuant to Executive Order 11246.
- 12.3.12. The Contractor shall carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of these specifications and of the Equal Opportunity Clause, including suspension, termination and cancellation of existing subcontracts as may be imposed or ordered pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as amended, and its implementing regulations, by the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs. Any Contractor who fails to carry out such sanctions and penalties shall be in violation of these specifications and Executive Order 11246, as amended.
- 12.3.13. The Contractor, in fulfilling its obligation under these specifications, shall implement specific affirmative action steps, at least as extensive as those standards prescribed in paragraph 7 of these specifications, so as to achieve maximum results from its efforts to ensure equal employment opportunity. If the Contractor fails to comply with the requirements of the Executive Order, the implementing regulations, or these specifications, the Director shall proceed in accordance with 41 CFR 60-4.8.
- 12.3.14. The Contractor shall designate a responsible official to monitor all employment related activity to ensure that the company EEO policy is being carried out, to submit reports relating to the provisions hereof as may be required by the Government and to keep records. Records shall at least include for each employee the name, address, telephone numbers, construction trade, union affiliation if any, employee identification number when assigned, social security number, race, sex, status (e.g., mechanic, apprentice trainee, helper, or laborer), dates of changes in status, hours worked per week in the indicated trade, rate of pay, and locations at which the work was performed. Records shall be maintained in an easily understandable and retrievable form; however, to the degree that existing records satisfy this requirement, contractors shall not be required to maintain separate records.

- 12.3.15. Nothing herein provided shall be construed as a limitation upon the application of other laws which establish different standards of compliance or upon the application of requirements for the hiring of local or other area residents (e.g., those under the Public Works Employment Act of 1977 and the Community Development Block Grant Program).
- 12.4. Pursuant to 41 CFR 60-1.7, if the price of this bid exceeds \$10,000, the bidder, by signing and submitting this proposal, certifies the following:
 - 12.4.1. Affirmative action programs pursuant to 41 CFR 60-2 have been developed and are on file;
 - 12.4.2. Documentation of a previous contract or subcontract subject to the equal opportunity clause is available;
 - 12.4.3. All reports due under the applicable filing requirements have been filed with the Joint Reporting Committee, the Deputy Assistant Secretary or the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission; and
 - 12.4.4. Each prospective <u>construction</u> subcontractor that may be awarded a lower-tier <u>construction</u> subcontract with a price exceeding \$10,000 shall meet the above requirements 12.4.1 through 12.4.3.
- 12.5. Pursuant to 41 CFR 60-1.8, if the price of this bid exceeds \$10,000, the bidder, by signing and submitting this proposal, certifies the following:
 - 12.5.1. That he/she does not maintain or provide for his/her employees any segregated facility at any of his/her establishments;
 - 12.5.2. That he/she does not permit employees to perform their services at any location, under his/her control, where segregated facilities are maintained;
 - 12.5.3. That he/she will not maintain or provide for employees any segregated facilities at any of his/her establishments;
 - 12.5.4. That he/she will not permit employees to perform their services at any location under his/her control where segregated facilities are maintained;
 - 12.5.5. That a breach of this certification is violation of the Equal Opportunity Clause of this contract; and
 - 12.5.6. That he/she will obtain identical certifications from proposed Subcontractors prior to the award of Subcontracts exceeding \$10,000 which are not exempt from the provisions of the Equal Opportunity clause, and that he will retain such certifications in his/her files.

As used in this certification, the term "segregated facilities" means any waiting rooms, work eating areas, time clocks, locker rooms, and other storage or dressing areas, transportation and housing facilities provided for employees which are in fact segregated on the basis of race, color, religion, or otherwise.

- 12.6. If the price of this Agreement/Contract exceeds \$10,000, the Owner shall give written notice to the Director of the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs within ten working days of award of this Agreement/Contract. The notice is to include the name, address, and telephone number of the Contractor; the employer identification number of the Contractor; the dollar amount of this Agreement/Contract; the estimated starting and completion dates of this Agreement/Contract; the number of this Agreement/Contract; and the geographical area in which the Work is to be performed.
- 12.7. If the price of this Agreement/Contract equals or exceeds \$50,000 and if the Contractor has 50 or more employees, the Contractor shall electronically file Standard Form 100 (EEO-1) online at https://egov.eeoc.gov/eeo1/eeo1.jsp within 30 calendar days after the award of this Agreement/Contract, unless the Contractor has submitted such a report within 12 months preceding the date of award of this Agreement/Contract. In addition, the Contractor shall ensure that each construction subcontract with a price equaling or exceeding \$50,000 also electronically files this form within 30 calendar days after the award to it of the lower-tier construction subcontract, unless the construction subcontract within 12 months preceding the date of award of the lower-tier construction subcontract.

ARTICLE 13 - IMMIGRATION REFORM AND CONTROL ACT OF 1986 (STATE OF FLORIDA EXECUTIVE ORDER 11-116)

The Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 prohibits employers from knowingly hiring illegal workers. The Contractor shall only employ individuals who may legally work in the United States – either U.S. citizens or foreign citizens who are authorized to work in the U.S. The Contractor shall use the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify Employment Eligibility Verification system (http://www.uscis.gov/portal/site/uscis) to verify the employment eligibility of:

- all new employees, during the term of this Agreement, to perform employment duties within Florida; and,
- all new employees (including subcontractors and subrecipients) assigned by the Contractor to perform work pursuant to this Agreement.

The Contractor shall include this provision in all subcontracts/subgrants it enters into for the performance of work under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 14 - ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE

The Contractor, and all subcontractors at any tier, shall comply with all applicable standards, orders, or requirements issued under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857[h]), Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368), Executive Order 11738 (Administration of the Clean Air Act and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act with Respect to Federal Contracts, Grants, or Loans), and 40 CFR Part 15.

ARTICLE 15 - FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS PROVISION

Contracts being constructed with assistance from the State Revolving Fund Program are currently required to comply with the Federal Labor Standards Provisions as provided in Appendix C. Signing Appendix A certifies compliance with these provisions.

ARTICLE 16 - AMERICAN IRON AND STEEL PROVISION

Contracts being constructed with assistance from the State Revolving Fund Program are currently required to comply with The American Iron and Steel Provision as provided in Appendix D. Signing Appendix A certifies compliance with these provisions.

ARTICLE 17 - PROHIBITED LOCAL GOVERNMENT CONSTRUCTION PREFERENCES

- A. Pursuant to Section 255.0991, F.S., for a competitive solicitation for construction services in which 50 percent or more of the cost will be paid from state-appropriated funds which have been appropriated at the time of the competitive solicitation, a state, college, county, municipality, school district, or other political subdivision of the state may not use a local ordinance or regulation that provides a preference based upon:
 - 1. The contractor's maintaining an office or place of business within a particular local jurisdiction;
 - 2. The contractor's hiring employees or subcontractors from within a particular local jurisdiction; or
 - 3. The contractor's prior payment of local taxes, assessments, or duties within a particular local jurisdiction.
- B. For any competitive solicitation that meets the criteria in Paragraph A., a state college, county, municipality, school district, or other political subdivision of the state shall disclose in the solicitation document that any applicable local ordinance or regulation does not include any preference that is prohibited by Paragraph A.

APPENDIX A TO THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

| This certification relates to a construction contract proposed | | | | | | |
|---|---|--|--|--|--|--|
| | (insert the name of the Owner) | | | | | |
| which expects to finance the proposed construction contract with assistance from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (which administers a State Revolving Fund loan program supported in part with funds directly made available by grants from the United States Environmental Protection Agency). I am the undersigned prospective construction contractor or subcontractor. | | | | | | |
| I certify that I have read the Florida Department of Environment following articles into the bid and/or contract: | mental Supplementary Conditions and agree to incorporate the | | | | | |
| ARTICLE 11 DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (E ARTICLE 12 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUN ARTICLE 13 IMMIGRATION REFORM AND CON 11-116) ARTICLE 14 ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE ARTICLE 15 FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS PRO ARTICLE 16 AMERICAN IRON AND STEEL PRO | OVISION | | | | | |
| | ctive lower-tier <u>construction</u> subcontractors prior to the award of ling \$10,000. I also agree that I will retain such certifications in | | | | | |
| (Signature of Authorized Official) | (Date) | | | | | |
| (Name and Title of Author | orized Official [Print or Type]) | | | | | |
| (Name of Prospective Construction Contractor or S | ubcontractor [Print or Type]) | | | | | |
| (Address and Telephone Number of Prospective Construction | on Contractor or Subcontractor [Print or Type]) | | | | | |
| (Employer Identification Number of Prospective Const. | ruction Contractor or Subcontractor) | | | | | |

APPENDIX B TO THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

GOALS AND TIMETABLES FOR MINORITIES AND FEMALES

[Note: These goals and timetables are the goals and timetables referred to in Paragraph 2 of the "Notice of Requirement for Affirmative Action to Ensure Equal Employment Opportunity (Executive Order 11246)"; these goals and timetables are to be included in all FDEP assisted <u>construction</u> contracts and subcontracts with a price exceeding \$10,000 and in all solicitations for such contracts and subcontracts.]

The following goals and timetables for female utilization shall be included in all federal and federally assisted construction contracts and subcontracts in excess of \$10,000. The goals are applicable to the contractor's aggregate on-site construction workforce whether or not part of that workforce is performing work on a federal or federally assisted construction contract or subcontract.

Goals and Timetables

Timetable Goals (percent)

Indefinite 6.9

Area covered: Goals for Women apply nationwide.

Goals for minority utilization can be found in the Department of Labor's Technical Assistance Guide for Federal Construction Contractors (May 2009), available on the internet at

http://www.dol.gov/ofccp/TAguides/consttag.pdf. These goals shall be included for each craft and trade in all federal or federally assisted construction contracts and subcontracts in excess of \$10,000 to be performed in the respective geographical areas. The goals are applicable to each nonexempt contractor's total onsite construction workforce, regardless of whether or not part of that workforce is performing work on a federal, federally assisted or non-federally related project, contract or subcontract.

Construction contractors which are participating in an approved Hometown Plan (see 41 CFR 60-4.5) are required to comply with the goals of the Hometown Plan with regard to construction work they perform in the area covered by the Hometown Plan. With regard to all their other covered construction work, such contractors are required to comply with the applicable SMSA or EA goal contained in this Appendix.

APPENDIX C TO THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

Davis-Bacon Requirements

FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS PROVISIONS

(Davis-Bacon Act, Copeland Act, and Contract Works Hours & Safety Standards Act)

The Project to which the construction work covered by this contract pertains is being assisted by the United States of America and the following Federal Labor Standards Provisions are included in this Contract pursuant to the provisions applicable to such federal assistance.

1 Minimum Wages.

(i) All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act, 29 CFR Part 3, the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and mechanics. Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under Section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv); also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs, which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period.

Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein; provided, that the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional classification and wage rates conformed under 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(1)(ii) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the workers.

- (ii) (a) The sponsor, on behalf of EPA, shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The FDEP shall approve a request for an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits; therefore, only when the following criteria have been met:
 - (1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and
 - (2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and
 - (3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.
- (b) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the sponsor(s) agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the sponsor to the FDEP. The FDEP will transmit the request to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, employment Standards Administration, U. S. Department of Labor. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional

classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the FDEP or will notify FEDP within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB control number 1215-0140.)

- (c) In the event that the Contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the Classification or their representatives, and the sponsor do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designed for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the FDEP shall refer the request and the local wage determination, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of FDEP, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt of the request and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0140.)
- (d) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to subparagraphs (1)(b) or (c) of this paragraph, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.
- (iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.
- (iv) If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program. Provided, that the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set aside in a separate account, assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0140.)

2. Withholding.

The sponsor shall, upon written request of the EPA or an authorized representative of the Department of Labor, withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor under this contract or any other federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees and helpers employed by the contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee or helper, employed or working on the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), all or part of the wages required by the contract, EPA may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owners, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased.

3. Payrolls and Basic Records.

(i) Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937, or under the Housing Act of 1949, in the construction or development of the project). Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in Section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in Section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Numbers 1215-0140 and 1215-0017).

- (ii) (a) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed, a copy of all payrolls to the sponsor. Such documentation shall be available upon request by FDEP. As to each payroll copy received, the sponsor shall provide a certification that the project is in compliance with the requirements of 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1) with each disbursement request. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(3)(I), except that full social security numbers and home addresses shall not be included on the weekly payrolls. Instead, the payrolls shall only need to include an individually identifying number for each employee (e.g., the last four digits of the employee's social security number). The required weekly payroll information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division Web site http://www.dol.gov/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm or its successor site. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors. Contractors and subcontractors shall maintain the full social security number and current addresses of each covered worker, and shall provide them upon request to the sponsor for transmission to the FDEP or EPA if requested by EPA, the FDEP, the contractor, or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage requirements. It is not a violation of this section for a prime contractor to require a subcontractor to provide addresses and social security numbers to the prime contractor for its own records, without weekly submission to the sponsor. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0149).
- (b) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a Statement of Compliance, signed by the contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following:
- (1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(3)(ii), the appropriate information is being maintained under 29 CFR Part 5.5 (a)(3)(I), and that such information is correct and complete;
- (2) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in 29 CFR Part 3:
- (3) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.
- (c) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Option Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the Statement of Compliance required by paragraph A. 3(ii)(b) of this section.
- (d) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under Section 1001 of Title 18 and Section 231 of Title 31 of the United States Code.
- (iii) The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph A.3(I) of this section available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the FDEP or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, the FDEP may, after written notice to the contractor, or sponsor, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR Part 5.12.

4. Apprentices and Trainees.

(i) Apprentices. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U. S. Department of Labor, the Employment and Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio

of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the contractor's or subcontractor's registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with the determination. In the event the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

- (ii) Trainees. Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U. S. Department of Labor, the Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program the contract will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.
- (iii) Equal Employment Opportunity. The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under this part shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR Part 30.

5. Compliance with Copeland Act Requirements.

The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3 which are incorporated by reference in this contract.

6. Subcontracts.

The contractor or subcontractor will insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1) through (10) and such other clauses as EPA determines may be appropriate, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR Part 5.5.

7. Contract Termination, Debarment.

A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the contract and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.

8. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act Requirements.

All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR Parts 1, 3 and 5 are herein incorporated by referenced in this contract.

9. Disputes Concerning Labor Standards.

Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5, 6 and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the sponsor, FDEP, EPA, the U. S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.

10. Certification of Eligibility.

- (i) By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded government contracts by virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or to be awarded EPA contracts or participate in EPA programs pursuant to Executive Order 12549.
- (ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a government contract by virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or to be awarded EPA contracts or participate in EPA programs pursuant to Executive Order 12549.
- (iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U. S. Criminal Code, 18 U. S. C. 1001. Additionally, U. S. Criminal Code, Section 1010, Title 18, U. S. C., Federal Housing Administration transactions, provides in part "Whoever, for the purpose of . . . influencing in any way the action of such Administration . . . makes, utters or publishes any statement, knowing the same to be false . . . shall be fined not more than \$5,000 or imprisoned not more than two years, or both".

11. Complaints, Proceedings, or Testimony by Employees.

- **A.** No laborer or mechanic to whom the wage, salary, or other labor standards provisions of this contract are applicable shall be discharged or in any other manner discriminated against by the contractor or any subcontractor because such employee has filed any complaint or instituted or caused to be instituted any proceeding or has testified or is about to testify in any proceeding under or relating to the labor standards applicable under this contract to his employer.
- **B.** Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. The sponsor shall insert the following clauses set forth in paragraphs B.(1), (2), (3), and (4) of this section in full in any contract in an amount in excess of \$100,000 and subject to the overtime provisions of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. These clauses shall be inserted in addition to the clauses required by item 3 above or 29 CFR 4.6. As used in the paragraph, the terms laborers and mechanics include watchmen and guards.
- (1) Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.
- (2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in subparagraph (1) of this paragraph, the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefore shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in subparagraph (1) of this paragraph, in the sum of \$10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in subparagraph (1) of this paragraph.
- (3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The sponsor, upon written request of the FDEP or an authorized representative of the Department of Labor, may withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on

account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other federal contract with the same prime contract, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in subparagraph (2) of this paragraph.

(4) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in subparagraph (1) through (4) of this paragraph and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in subparagraphs (1) through (4) of this paragraph.

C. Health and Safety

- (1) No laborer or mechanic shall be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to his health and safety as determined under construction safety and health standards promulgated by the Secretary of Labor by regulation.
- (2) The contractor shall comply with all regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Title 29 Part 1926 (formerly part 1518) and failure to comply may result in imposition of sanctions pursuant to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (Public Law 91-54.83 State 96).
- (3) The contractor shall include the provisions of this Article in every subcontract so that such provisions will be binding on each subcontractor. The contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontract as the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development or the Secretary of Labor shall direct as a means of enforcing such provisions.

12. Guidance to Contractor for Compliance with Labor Standards Provisions

a) Contracts with Two Wage Decisions

If the contract includes two wage decisions, the contractor, and each subcontractor who works on the site, must submit either two separate payrolls (one for each wage decision) or one payroll which identifies each worker twice and the hours worked under each wage decision. One single payroll, reflecting each worker once, may be submitted provided the Contractor uses the higher rate in the wage decisions for each identical job classification. However, where a job classification is not listed in a wage decision and is needed for that portion of the work, the classification **must** be added to the wage decision. A worker may not be paid at the rate for a classification using the hourly rate for that same classification in another wage decision. After the additional classification is approved, the contractor may pay the higher of the two rates and submit one payroll, if desired.

b) Complying with Minimum Hourly Amounts

- 1) The minimum hourly amount due to a worker in each classification is the total of the amounts in the Rates and Fringe Benefits (if any) columns of the applicable wage decision.
- 2) The contractor may satisfy this minimum hourly amount by any combination of cash and bona fide fringe benefits, regardless of the individual amounts reflected in the Rates and Fringe Benefits columns.
- 3) A contractor payment for a worker which is required by law is not a fringe benefit in meeting the minimum hourly amount due under the applicable wage decision. For example, contractor payments for FICA or unemployment insurance are not a fringe benefit; however, contractor payments for health insurance or retirement are a fringe benefit. Generally, a fringe benefit is bona fide if (a) it is available to most workers and (b) involves payments to a third party.
- 4) The hourly value of the fringe benefit is calculated by dividing the contractor's annual cost (excluding any amount contributed by the worker) for the fringe benefit by 2080. Therefore, for workers with overtime, an additional payment may be required to meet the minimum hourly wages since generally fringe benefits have no value for any time worked over 40 hours weekly. (If a worker is paid more than the minimum rates required by the wage decision, this should not be a problem. As long as the total wages received by a worker for straight time equals the hours worked times the minimum hourly rate in the wage decision, the requirement of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts has been satisfied.)

c) Overtime

For any project work over 40 hours weekly, a worker generally must be paid 150% of the actual hourly cash rate received, not the minimum required by the wage decision. (The Davis-Bacon and Related Acts only establishes minimum rates and does not address overtime. The Contract Work Hours Act contains the overtime requirement and uses basic rate of pay as the base for calculation, not the minimum rates established by the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts.)

d) Deductions

Workers who have deductions, not required by law, from their pay must authorize these deductions in writing. The authorization must identify the purpose of each deduction and the amount, which may be a specific dollar amount or a percentage. A copy of the authorization must be submitted with the first payroll containing the deduction. If deducted amounts increase, another authorization must be submitted. If deducted amounts decrease, no revision to the original authorization is needed. Court-ordered deductions, such as child support, may be identified by the responsible payroll person in a separate document. This document should identify the worker, the amount deducted and the purpose. A copy of the court order should be submitted.

e) Classifications Not Included in the Wage Decision

If a classification not in the wage decision is required, please advise the owner's representative in writing and identify the job classification(s) required. In some instances, the state agency may allow the use of a similar classification in the wage decision.

Otherwise, the contractor and affected workers must agree on a minimum rate, which cannot be lower than the lowest rate for any trade in the wage decision. Laborers (including any subcategory of the laborer classification) and truck drivers are not considered a trade for this purpose. If the classification involves a power equipment operator, the minimum cannot be lower than the lowest rate for any power equipment operator in the wage decision. The owner will provide forms to document agreement on the minimum rate by the affected workers and contractor.

The U.S. Department of Labor (USDOL) must approve the proposed classification and rate. The contractor may pay the proposed rate until the USDOL makes a determination. Should the USDOL require a higher rate, the contractor must make wage restitution to the affected worker(s) for all hours worked under the proposed rate.

f) Supervisory Personnel

Foremen and other supervisory personnel who spend at least 80% of their time supervising workers are not covered by the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts. Therefore, a wage decision will not include such supervisory classifications and their wages are not subject to any minimums under the Davis-Bacon and Related Act or overtime payments under the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. However, foremen and other supervisory personnel who spend less than 80% of their time engaged in supervisory activities are considered workers/mechanics for the time spent engaged in manual labor and must be paid at least the minimum in the wage decision for the appropriate classification(s) based on the work performed.

g) Sole Proprietorships / Independent Contractors / Leased Workers

The nature of the relationship between a prime contractor and a worker does not affect the requirement to comply with the labor standards provisions of this contract. The applicability of the labor standards provisions is based on the nature of the work performed.

If the work performed is primarily manual in nature, the worker is subject to the labor standards provisions in this contract. For example, if John Smith is the owner of ABC Plumbing and performs all plumbing work himself, then Mr. Smith is subject to the labor standards provisions, including minimum wages and overtime. His status as owner is irrelevant for labor standards purposes.

If a worker meets the IRS standards for being an independent contractor, and is employed as such, this means that the worker must submit a separate payroll as a subcontractor rather than be included on some other payroll. The worker is still subject to the labor standards provisions in this contract, including minimum wages and overtime.

If a contractor or subcontractor leases its workers, they are subject to the labor standards provisions in this contract, including minimum wages and overtime. The leasing firm must submit payrolls and these payrolls must reflect information required to determine compliance with the labor standards provisions of this contract, including a classification for each worker based on the nature of the work performed, number of regular hours worked, and number of overtime hours worked.

h) Apprentices / Helpers

A worker may be classified as an apprentice **only if participating in a federal or state program**. Documentation of participation must be submitted. Generally, the apprentice program specifies that the apprentice will be compensated at a percentage of journeyman rate. For Davis-Bacon Act purposes, the hourly rate cannot be lower than the percentage of the hourly rate for the classification in the applicable wage decision.

If the worker does not participate in a federal or state apprentice program, then the worker must be classified according to duties performed. This procedure may require classification in the trade depending on tools used, or as a laborer if specialized tools of the trade are not used. The contractor may want to consult with the Wage and Hour Division of the U.S. Department of Labor located in most large cities regarding the appropriate classification.

Presently, no worker may be classified as a helper. As with apprentices not participating in a formal apprentice program, the worker must be classified according to duties performed and tools used.

APPENDIX D TO THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

American Iron and Steel Requirement

The Contractor acknowledges to and for the benefit of the North Bay Village ("Owner") and the State of Florida (the "State") that it understands that iron and steel products to be installed as a part of this contract must be in compliance with the requirements in H.R. 3547, "Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2014," (Appropriations Act). H.R. 3547 includes the following language in Division G, Title IV, Sec. 436, under the heading, "Use of American Iron and Steel,":

- (a) (1) None of the funds made available by a State water pollution control revolving fund as authorized by title VI of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1381 et seq.) or made available by a drinking water treatment revolving loan fund as authorized by section 1452 of the Safe Drinking Water Act (42 U.S.C. 300j-12) shall be used for a project for the construction, alteration, maintenance, or repair of a public water system or treatment works unless all of the iron and steel products used in the project are produced in the United States.
- (2) In this section, the term "iron and steel products" means the following products made primarily of iron or steel: lined or unlined pipes and fittings, manhole covers and other municipal castings, hydrants, tanks, flanges, pipe clamps and restraints, valves, structural steel, reinforced precast concrete, and construction materials.
- (b) Subsection (a) shall not apply in any case or category of cases in which the Administrator of the Environmental Protection Agency (in this section referred to as the "Administrator") finds that--
 - (1) applying subsection (a) would be inconsistent with the public interest;
- (2) iron and steel products are not produced in the United States in sufficient and reasonably available quantities and of a satisfactory quality; or
- (3) inclusion of iron and steel products produced in the United States will increase the cost of the overall project by more than 25 percent.
- (c) If the Administrator receives a request for a waiver under this section, the Administrator shall make available to the public on an informal basis a copy of the request and information available to the Administrator concerning the request, and shall allow for informal public input on the request for at least 15 days prior to making a finding based on the request. The Administrator shall make the request and accompanying information available by electronic means, including on the official public Internet Web site of the Environmental Protection Agency.
 - (d) This section shall be applied in a manner consistent with United States obligations under international agreements.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, any failure to comply with this paragraph by the Contractor shall permit the Purchaser or State to recover as damages against the Contractor any loss, expense, or cost (including without limitation attorney's fees) incurred by the Purchaser or State resulting from any such failure (including without limitation any impairment or loss of funding, whether in whole or in part, from the State or any damages owed to the State by the Purchaser). While the Contractor has no direct contractual privity with the State, as a lender to the Purchaser for the funding of its project, the Purchaser and the Contractor agree that the State is a third-party beneficiary and neither this paragraph (nor any other provision of this Agreement necessary to give this paragraph force or effect) shall be amended or waived without the prior written consent of the State.

For waivers to these requirements based on (2)(b) above, contact Sheryl Parsons at USEPA Region IV. She can be reached by phone at (404) 562-9337.

General Decision Number: FL150168 03/20/2015 FL168

Superseded General Decision Number: FL20140168

State: Florida

Construction Type: Heavy

County: Miami-Dade County in Florida.

HEAVY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (Including Sewer and Water Lines)

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13658 establishes an hourly minimum wage of \$10.10 for 2015 that applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the solicitation is issued on or after January 1, 2015. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must pay all workers in any classification listed on this wage determination at least \$10.10 (or the applicable wage rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) for all hours spent performing on the contract. The EO minimum wage rate will be adjusted annually. Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

0 01/02/2015 1 01/09/2015 2 03/20/2015

ELEC0349-007 09/01/2014

| | Rates | Fringes |
|---|----------------------------------|--------------------------------------|
| ELECTRICIAN | \$ 30.11 | 10.06 |
| ENGI0487-017 07/01/2013 | | |
| | Rates | Fringes |
| OPERATOR: Backhoe (Except Loader Combo) | \$ 28.32 | 8,80 |
| Hydro/Friction Cranes without Oiler/Apprentices when Approved by Union; & All Type of Flying Cranes; Boom Truck Cranes with Boom Length Less than 150 Feet (With or without jib); Hydro Cranes 25 Tons & Under, & Over 50 Tons (With Oiler/Apprentice); Boom Truck OPERATOR: Drill OPERATOR: Loader OPERATOR: Oiler | \$ 28.32 \$ 25.80 \$ 25.64 | 8.80 8.80 8.80 8.80 8.80 |

^{*} IRON0272-005 02/01/2015

Rates

Fringes

| IRONWORKER, STRUCTURAL\$ | 23.76 | 7.78 |
|--|-------|---------|
| LABO1652-004 06/01/2013 | | |
| F | Rates | Fringes |
| LABORER: Grade Checker\$ | 14.50 | 4.92 |
| PAIN0365-007 08/01/2014 | | |
| F | Rates | Fringes |
| PAINTER: Brush, Roller and Spray\$ | 19.50 | 8.83 |
| SUFL2009-164 06/24/2009 | | |
| F | Rates | Fringes |
| CARPENTER, Includes Form Work\$ | 17.00 | 2.51 |
| CEMENT MASON/CONCRETE FINISHER\$ | 16.61 | 5.52 |
| LABORER: Common or General\$ | 13.09 | 1.26 |
| ABORER: Landscape\$ | 7.25 | 0.00 |
| LABORER: Power Tool Operator (Hand Held Drills/Saws, Jackhammer and Power Saws Only)\$ | 10.63 | 2.20 |
| OPERATOR: Asphalt Paver\$ | 11.59 | 0.00 |
| DPERATOR: Backhoe Loader | 16.10 | 2.44 |
| OPERATOR: Bulldozer\$ | 14.95 | 0.81 |
| DPERATOR: Excavator\$ | 21.16 | 1.67 |
| OPERATOR: Grader/Blade\$ | 16.00 | 2.84 |
| DPERATOR: Mechanic\$ | 14.32 | 0.00 |
| DPERATOR: Roller\$ | 10.95 | 0.00 |
| OPERATOR: Scraper\$ | 11.00 | 1.74 |
| DPERATOR: Trackhoe\$ | 20.92 | 5.50 |
| DPERATOR: Tractor\$ | 10.54 | 0.00 |
| TRUCK DRIVER, Includes Dump | 9.60 | 0.00 |
| TRUCK DRIVER: Lowboy Truck\$ | 12.73 | 0.00 |
| TRUCK DRIVER: Off the Road Truck\$ | 12.21 | 1.97 |

WELDERS - Receive rate prescribed for craft performing operation to which welding is incidental.

Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within the scope of the classifications listed may be added after award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses (29CFR 5.5 (a) (1) (ii)).

The body of each wage determination lists the classification and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the cited type(s) of construction in the area covered by the wage determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical

order of "identifiers" that indicate whether the particular rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate for local), a survey rate (weighted average rate) or a union average rate (weighted union average rate).

Union Rate Identifiers

A four letter classification abbreviation identifier enclosed in dotted lines beginning with characters other than "SU" or "UAVG" denotes that the union classification and rate were prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example: PLUM0198-005 07/01/2014. PLUM is an abbreviation identifier of the union which prevailed in the survey for this classification, which in this example would be Plumbers. 0198 indicates the local union number or district council number where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 0198. The next number, 005 in the example, is an internal number used in processing the wage determination. 07/01/2014 is the effective date of the most current negotiated rate, which in this example is July 1, 2014.

Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all rate changes in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing this classification and rate.

Survey Rate Identifiers

Classifications listed under the "SU" identifier indicate that no one rate prevailed for this classification in the survey and the published rate is derived by computing a weighted average rate based on all the rates reported in the survey for that classification. As this weighted average rate includes all rates reported in the survey, it may include both union and non-union rates. Example: SULA2012-007 5/13/2014. SU indicates the rates are survey rates based on a weighted average calculation of rates and are not majority rates. LA indicates the State of Louisiana. 2012 is the year of survey on which these classifications and rates are based. The next number, 007 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 5/13/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

Survey wage rates are not updated and remain in effect until a new survey is conducted.

Union Average Rate Identifiers

Classification(s) listed under the UAVG identifier indicate that no single majority rate prevailed for those classifications; however, 100% of the data reported for the classifications was union data. EXAMPLE: UAVG-OH-0010 08/29/2014. UAVG indicates that the rate is a weighted union average rate. OH indicates the state. The next number, 0010 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 08/29/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January of each year, to reflect a weighted average of the current negotiated/CBA rate of the union locals from which the rate is based.

WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS

- 1.) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can be:
- * an existing published wage determination
- * a survey underlying a wage determination
- * a Wage and Hour Division letter setting forth a position on a wage determination matter
- * a conformance (additional classification and rate) ruling

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests for summaries of surveys, should be with the Wage and Hour Regional Office for the area in which the survey was conducted because those Regional Offices have responsibility for the

Davis-Bacon survey program. If the response from this initial contact is not satisfactory, then the process described in 2.) and 3.) should be followed.

With regard to any other matter not yet ripe for the formal process described here, initial contact should be with the Branch of Construction Wage Determinations. Write to:

Branch of Construction Wage Determinations Wage and Hour Division U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

2.) If the answer to the question in 1.) is yes, then an interested party (those affected by the action) can request review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator (See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Write to:

Wage and Hour Administrator U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the interested party's position and by any information (wage payment data, project description, area practice material, etc.) that the requestor considers relevant to the issue.

3.) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board). Write to:

Administrative Review Board U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

4.) All decisions by the Administrative Review Board are final.

END OF GENERAL DECISION